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Message from the Chairman

As we entered the second half of 2008 Visteon had begun to see the benefits of

our multi4aceted thremyear improvement plan This plan designcd in late 2005
addressed unprofitable and nomcore operations improved quality and safety

attacked costs and bureaucracy and targeted profitable business growth

We were nearing completion restructuring more than 30 facihties around the globe

faster and at less cost than planned and signifi antly improving

our cost structure Our strong product portfolio was yielding

nnovative technologies and driving new business wins We were

capitalizing on diversified customer base globally balanced

manufacturing and engineering footprint and improved product

quality In short we were positioning Visteon to begin generating

the financial returns that had long eluded the company

Then in mid summer 2008 the world changed Financial

and housing markets collapsed fuel prices soared and

credit markets tightened sending the global economy into

tailspin The swiftness of this decline and its impact on

consumer confidence had significant impact on car

and truck sales Vehicle production levels fell dramatically

impacting the entire supplier industry Our restructuring

efforts were overwhelmed by factors beyond our control

As result we have been taking more aggressive actions cutting

costs more deeply and working more diligently to align our resources

with todays economy We are preserving the capabilities that give us

competit ye advantage and will fuel our future growth

While completing our thremyear plan Visteon accomplished great

amount in challenging 2008 We won nearly $700 million in new

business including breakthroughs on lowcost and alternative fuel

vehicles We expanded our capabilities in emerging markets

including India Russia and the Czech Republic while launching two

U.S plants to support new vehicles We solidified our reputation for

automotive intellect by earning Automotive News PACE recognitiol

for our product innovations

While our industry faces many hurdles we are committed to

in step with the new market reality Our diversified

strong global resources innovative technolc an

will serve Visteon well when the econo

am proud to be member of talented team of Visteon em
Their resilience fortitude ana commitment give me confiden

will achieve our goal to be company that delivers value for all of our

stakeholders

Donad Stebbins

Chairman ad
Chief Execu5ve Officer



Advancing in Changing Global Market

Vistecn is focused on succeeding in

the new ar tomotive market that is

expected to emerge from today

unpr cedented idustry enviror ment

Our recently completed threeyear

plan involving estructuring

improving base operations and

grow ng the business provides

soid foundation upon whih the

compony intends to capitalize

Vistecn key fo us areas outlined on

thesr oages align with several new

mark3 realities including he

emergence of new vehicle

manufacturers the transition to small

lowcost and ecofriendly vehicles

and rapid industry globalization

Wir New Business th

Strategic Customers

Over the past three years Visteon

averaged $900 million annually in new

busir ess wins from global auto

manufacturers When the industry

reco\ ers Visteon stands to benefit

from our innovative and highquality

products improved cost structure and

broad global resources

Visteons business wins were evenly

distributed among Asia Pacific

Europe and North America In

addition Visteon has an outstanding

record rewinning programs

illustiating our customers satisfaction

with our capabilities

Visteon is expanding business with

traditional customers in new markets

such as Russia At the same time

we re making inroads with emerging

automakers in China and India such

as Geely Great Wall JAC Tata

Chery SAIC Mahindra Mahindra

Changan and others

Capture Growth

Segments

Nearly twothirds of future vehicle

growth is expected to be in small

highly fuePefficient models Winning

business in this segment requires

manufacturing flexibi
ity

and

competitive pricing Visteons

streamlined cost structcro scalable

iange of products and ability to apply

technology in different configurations

provide us with an advantage in

serving this segment

An example of Visteons success in

the smalPcar segment is the Ford

riesta which is available in Europe

hut planned as global platform

Visteon supplies this fuekefficient car

with significant content from fully

integrated cockpit electronics and

climate technologies to lighting The

trend toward hybrid and alternative

fuel vehicles also offers an opportunity

for Visteon which is adept at

designing lightweight components in

flexible package sizes

Lead in Emerging Markets

Visteon is committed to being

leading supplier in automotive growth

markets Our most signif cant grow

has been in the Asia Pc cific region



which nr rased to percent of our

globa sal in 2008 up from 17

percer 2005 Visteon is alraady

weHposi oned in azfl Russia dia

and Chira wh ch are expected to be

key growth markets when the global

autornotie indust recovers

Approx mately 75 percent of Visteons

manufac uring and bout half our

engineer resources are in lowcost

countries Recent in tiatives induCe

expandirg our electronics capabilty

in China and lndi creating interiors

reaource to serve Russia and

Mexico aunching technical center

in Brazil rxpanding climate

capabilities in China India and the

Czech Rsoublic and investing further

in joint ventures ii Korea India and

Cf ma

Russia is key emerging market

2008 Vhteon opened its business

developrient center in St Petersburg

Ri ssia rind in 2010 we plan to launch

our first Russian manufacturing plant

in Kalugri

Exploit Key Technologies

Across our core product areas

Visteon is welhaligned with market

trends such as the integration of

consumer electronics in vehicles the

migration toward lighter.weight

higherperforming climate control

products and the emergence of

interiors and lighting as key vehicle

styling differentiators Visteons

proprietary consumer research drives

the development of concepts for new

segments and markers Visteon is

developing flexible product platforms

that can be tailored to different

customers and markets reducing

costs and development time

In electronics were leaders in the

integration of multimedia systems and

consumer electronics into vehicles by

using the latest mobile connectivity

and human machine interface HMI
technologies We offer exciting

products including premium audio

and infotainment systems

reconfigurable displays that can be

personalized to the driver nd

electronic controls that ofer ouch

sencory feedback similar to those on

portable devices

Using our lighting expertise Visteon

combines three features advanced

front lighting predictive lighting and

automatic glare elimination for

oncrning traffic in one prckage

offering drivers improved visibility at

night

In c1imate we are recogniied leader

in developing reliable alternative

refriqerant systems to meet upcoming

European and worldwide legislation

to Ii iit man.made greenhouse gas

emissior

In interiors Visteons work the

awardwinning 2009 Dodge Ram has

drawn industry awards and consumer

accolades ndustryfirst obotic

stitching helps create the highly crafted

look of stitched instrurr ert panel in

highvoIume production truck



Corporate Information

Investor Relations

As Visteon shareholder youre invited to take

advantage of shareholder services or to request more

information about Visteon

Investor Information

You can contact Visteons Investor Relations group to

order financial documents such as this annual report and

the Form 10K Call us toll4ree at 877 3676092 We
can be contacted during business hours to answer

investmentoriented questions about Visteon

In addition you can write to us at

Investor Relations

Visteon Corporation

One \illage Center Drive

Van Eturen Township Ml 48111 USA

Or send us an email at vcstockvisteoncom
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Shareholder Account Services

Our transfer agent and registrar The Bank of New York

can help registered shareholders with variety of

shareholderrelated services including

Change of address

Lost stock certificates

Transfer of stock to another person

Dividend reinvestment or dividend direct deposit

Direct stock purchase

Additional administrative services

You can call our transfer agent at

877 8815962

201 6806669 Outside the US and Canada
800 2315469 Hearing impaired TTY Phone

You can also write to our transfer agent at

Visteon Corporation

do BNY Mellon Shareholders Services

480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City NJ 073101 900 USA

Or you can email our transfer agent at

wwwshrrelations@bnymellon.com

Th nk of York also offer online to
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

The Companys Business

Visteon Corporation Visteon or the Company is leading global supplier of automotive systems
modules and components to global vehicle manufacturers OEM5 and the automotive aftermarket The

Company is headquartered in Van Buren Township Michigan has workforce of approximately

33500 employees and has network of manufacturing sites technical centers sales offices and joint

ventures located in every major geographic region of the world The Company was incorporated in

Delaware in January 2000 as wholly-owned subsidiary of Ford Motor Company Ford or Ford Motor

Company Subsequently Ford transferred the assets and liabilities comprising its automotive

components and systems business to Visteon The Company separated from Ford on June 28 2000

when all of the Companys common stock was distributed by Ford to its shareholders

In September 2005 the Company transferred 23 of its North American facilities and certain other related

assets and liabilities the Business to Automotive Components Holdings LLC ACH an indirect

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company On October 2005 the Company sold ACH to Ford for cash

proceeds of approximately $300 million as well as the forgiveness of certain other postretirement

employee benefit liabilities and other obligations relating to hourly employees associated with the

Business and the assumption of certain other liabilities together the ACH Transactions The

transferred facilities included all of the Companys plants that leased hourly workers covered by Fords

Master Agreement with the United Auto Workers Union UAW The Business accounted for

approximately $6.1 billion of the Companys total product sales for 2005 the majority being products

sold to Ford

In January 2006 the Company announced multi-year improvement plan that involved the restructuring of

certain underperforming and non-strategic plants and businesses to improve operating and financial

performance and to reduce costs The multi-year improvement plan which was initially expected to affect

up to 23 facilities was completed during 2008 and addressed total of 30 facilities and businesses

including divestitures and 14 closures These activities resulted in sales declines of $1 billion and

$675 million during the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

During 2008 weakened economic conditions largely attributable to the global credit crisis and erosion of

consumer confidence negatively impacted the automotive sector on global basis Significant factors

including the deterioration of housing values rising fuel prices equity market volatility and rising

unemployment levels resulted in consumers delaying purchases of durable goods particularly highly

deliberated purchases such as automobiles Additionally the absence of available credit hindered vehicle

affordability forcing willing consumers out of the market globally Together these factors combined to drive

decline in demand for automobiles across substantially all geographies

The deterioration of market conditions in 2008 was compounded by the rapid pace at which it occurred as

evidenced by double digit year-over-year declines in fourth quarter 2008 automotive sector sales in North

America Europe China Korea and South America Despite actions taken by the Company to reduce its

operating costs in 2008 the rate of such reductions did not keep pace with that of the rapidly deteriorating

market conditions and related decline in OEM production volumes which resulted in significant operating

losses and cash flow usage by the Company particularly in the fourth quarter of 2008



ITEM BUSINESSContinued

Additionally current credit and capital market conditions combined with the Companys credit ratings and

recent history of operating losses and negative cash flows as well as projected industry conditions are

likely to restrict the Companys ability to access capital markets in the near term and any such access

would likely be at an increased cost and under more restrictive terms and conditions Further such

constraints may also affect the Companys commercial agreements and payment terms Absent access to

additional liquidity from credit markets which remain severely constrained or other sources of external

financial support including accommodations from key customers the Company expects to be at or near

minimum levels of cash necessary to operate the business during 2009 Accordingly the Company

believes that substantial doubt exists as to its ability to meet its obligations as they come due through the

normal course of business during 2009

Pursuant to affirmative covenants contained in the agreements associated with the Companys senior

secured facilities and European Securitization the Facilities the Company is required to provide audited

annual financial statements within prescribed period of time after the end of each fiscal year without

going concern audit report or like qualification or exception On March 31 2009 the Companys

independent registered public accounting firm included an explanatory paragraph in its audit report on

the Companys 2008 consolidated financial statements indicating substantial doubt about the Companys

ability to continue as going concern The receipt of such an explanatory statement constitutes default

under the Facilities On March 31 2009 the Company entered into amendments and waivers the

Waivers with the lenders under the Facilities which provide for waivers of such defaults for limited

periods of time as more fully described in Item 9B Other Information of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The Company is exploring various strategic and financing alternatives and has retained legal and financial

advisors to assist in this regard The Company has commenced discussions with lenders under the

Facilities including an ad hoc committee of lenders under its senior secured term loan the Ad Hoc

Committee regarding the restructuring of the Companys capital structure Additionally the Company

has commenced discussions with certain of its major customers to address its liquidity and capital

requirements Any such restructuring may affect the terms of the Facilities other debt and common stock

and may be affected through negotiated modifications to the related agreements or through other forms of

restructurings including under court supervision pursuant to voluntary bankruptcy filing under

Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code There can be no assurance that an agreement regarding

any such restructuring will be obtained on acceptable terms with the necessary parties or at all If an

acceptable agreement is not obtained an event of default under the Facilities would occur as of the

expiration of the Waivers excluding any extensions thereof and the lenders would have the right to

accelerate the obligations thereunder Acceleration of the Companys obligations under the Facilities

would constitute an event of default under the senior unsecured notes and would likely result in the

acceleration of these obligations as well In any such event the Company may be required to seek

protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code

The aforementioned resulted in the current classification of substantially all of the Companys long-term

debt as current liabilities in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2008

On March 31 2009 Visteon UK Limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales and

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company the UK Debtor filed for administration the UK

Administration under the United Kingdom Insolvency Act of 1986 with the High Court of Justice

Chancery division in London England The UK Administration does not include the Company or any

of the Companys other subsidiaries The UK Administration was initiated in response to continuing

operating losses of the UK Debtor and mounting labor costs and their related demand on the Companys

cash flows Under the UK Administration the UK Debtor will likely be run down The UK Debtor has

operations in Enfield UK Basildon UK and Belfast UK and recorded sales of $250 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 The UK Debtor had total assets of $153 million as of December 31 2008



ITEM BUSINESSContinued

The Companys Industry

The Company supplies range of integrated systems modules and components to vehicle manufacturers

for use in the manufacture of new vehicles as well as to the aftermarket for use as replacement and

enhancement parts Historically large vehicle manufacturers operated internal divisions to provide wide

range of component parts for their vehicles Vehicle manufacturers have moved toward competitive

sourcing process for automotive parts including increased purchases from independent suppliers as they

seek lower-priced and/or higher-technology products

In general the automotive sector is capital and labor intensive operates under highly competitive

conditions experiences slow growth and is cyclical in nature Accordingly the financial performance of

the industry is highly sensitive to changes in overall economic conditions Significant trends in the

automotive industry include

Market conditions The current economic downturn has negatively impacted the automotive sector on

global basis causing dramatic decrease in sales and significant production cuts across substantially

all OEMs during the fourth quarter of 2008 Such conditions have continued to persist into 2009 and are

not expected to improve significantly in the near-term In light of these market conditions the need to

conserve and generate cash in the automotive sector is expected to remain top priority Elimination of

excess production capacity reduction of high fixed cost structures and limitations on capital and other

investments will be required to preserve liquidity and adapt to new industry realities Failure to do so will

negatively impact the financial condition of the automotive sector particularly domestic OEMs and

automotive suppliers resulting in heightened potential for bankruptcy

While these market conditions are not expected to abate in the near-term the restructuring and cost

reduction efforts of the automotive sector must be carefully balanced with the need to invest in new

technologies and global vehicle platforms to be prepared for the future However given the globally

constrained liquidity conditions the automotive sector is likely to experience further consolidation and an

increase in program collaborations vehicle assembly alliances and partnerships designed to leverage

capital resources

Globalization Given the need for cost reduction and cash preservation the automotive sector is

expected to increase the use and speed development of global vehicle platforms as means to

streamline the supply chain speed time to market and reduce global production costs Additionally

growth opportunities in the automotive sector exist in emerging economies and vehicle manufacturers

are expanding globally into these regions through localized vehicle assembly operations

By utilizing global vehicle platforms and localizing assembly operations vehicle manufacturers can

achieve advantages including more efficient supply chain low cost manufacturing capabilities new

market entry existing market expansion reduced exposure to currency fluctuations and enhanced

customer responsiveness As vehicle manufacturers work to reduce costs preserve cash and achieve

global growth they are increasingly interested in buying components and systems from suppliers that can

serve multiple markets support global vehicle platform and maintain local presence

Shifting consumer demand Vehicle affordability continues to drive global consumer preference

towards smaller more fuel-efficient vehicles which generally have lower profit margins During 2008

significant and sustained increases in fuel prices resulted in shift of U.S consumer preference away
from sport utility vehicles and trucks toward more fuel-efficient passenger cars adding to regulatory

momentum in the U.S to improve Corporate Average Fuel Economy standards for light vehicles to

35 miles per gallon by 2020 In Europe vehicle affordability has been challenged not only by elevated fuel

prices but by higher carbon emissions taxes In emerging markets vehicle affordability is driven by the

entry price and consumer demand in these markets has resulted in significant low cost vehicle

development efforts These changes in consumer behavior have resulted in an unfavorable shift in

product mix towards lower margin vehicles and continue to present significant challenges for the

automotive sector



ITEM BUSINESSContinued

Conversely consumers are increasingly interested in products that make them feel safer and more

secure and include increased electronic and technical content such as in-vehicle communication

navigation and entertainment capabilities To achieve sustainable profitable growth automotive part

suppliers must effectively support their customers in developing and delivering integrated products and

innovative technologies at competitive prices that provide for differentiation and that address consumer

preferences Suppliers that are able to generate new products and add greater intrinsic value to the

end consumer will have significant competitive advantage

Shift in Original Equipment Manufacturers market share Vehicle manufacturers domiciled outside the

United States continued to gain market share at the expense of the domestic vehicle manufacturers

Many of these foreign vehicle manufacturers have strong existing relationships with foreign-based

suppliers This has increased the competitive pressure on domestically domiciled suppliers like Visteon

However the Company believes that this trend creates growth opportunities for domestically domiciled

suppliers such as Visteon to leverage existing customer relationships to grow with vehicle

manufacturers domiciled in the United States as they penetrate emerging markets and to leverage

the Companys innovative and competitively priced technologies to develop new relationships with

foreign vehicle manufacturers as they establish local manufacturing and assembly facilities in North

America

Customer price pressures and raw material cost inflation Downward pricing pressure from OEMs has

been historical characteristic of the automotive industry Virtually all OEMs have aggressive price

reduction initiatives and objectives each year with their suppliers and given the difficult economic

conditions such actions are expected to continue Additionally in recent years the automotive supply

industry has experienced significant inflationary pressures primarily in ferrous and non-ferrous metals

and petroleum-based commodities such as resins These inflationary pressures have placed significant

operational and financial burdens on automotive suppliers at all levels Generally the increased costs of

raw materials and components used in the manufacture of the Companys products have been difficult to

pass on to customers and the need to maintain continued supply of raw materials has made it difficult to

resist price increases and surcharges imposed by suppliers Accordingly successful suppliers must be

able to reduce their operating costs in order to maintain profitability The Company has taken steps to

reduce its operating costs to offset customer price reductions through operating efficiencies new

manufacturing processes sourcing alternatives and other cost reduction initiatives

The Companys Business Strategy

The Companys immediate priority is to address the its capital structure and liquidity requirements

However the Company can provide no assurance that it will be able to implement any such actions in

manner or on terms that would be satisfactory to the Company Despite these challenges the Company

aims to grow leading positions in its key climate interiors and electronics product groups and to improve

overall margins long-term operating profitability and cash flows by leveraging the Companys extensive

experience innovative technology and geographic strengths To achieve these goals and respond to

industry factors and trends the Company is working to reduce costs and preserve liquidity improve its

operations and grow the business



ITEM BUSINESSContinued

Reduce Costs and Preserve Liquidity

Difficult economic and market conditions have increased the need to conserve and generate cash in the

automotive sector Elimination of excess production capacity reduction of high fixed cost structures and

strengthening of financial disciplines will be required to preserve liquidity and adapt to new industry

realities During 2008 the Company completed the previously announced multi-year improvement plan

that was designed to sell fix or close certain unprofitable or non-core businesses These actions

addressed 30 facilities and will result in cumulative gross savings of approximately $500 million

During 2008 the Company reduced manufacturing employee census by 27% including 15%
decrease in the fourth quarter Salaried employee census was reduced by 14% during 2008 including

6% in the fourth quarter As market conditions change the Companys strategy to reduce costs and

preserve cash includes the following

Eliminate excess production capacity and high fixed cost structures The Company will continue to

develop and execute as appropriate actions designed to generate liquidity including customer

accommodation agreements asset sales cash repatriation and further cost reductions including

facility closures and business exits

Reduce administrative costs The Company continues to implement actions designed to

fundamentally reorganize and streamline its administrative functions and reduce overall costs in line

with lower customer volumes and weakened economic conditions Such actions include organizational

realignment and consolidation employee salary and benefit reductions resource relocation to more

competitive cost locations selective functional outsourcing and evaluation of third-party supplier

arrangements for purchased services

Enhance financial disciplines The Company has enhanced its financial disciplines over all spending

activities including the evaluation of investment in and profitability of new customer programs to improve

the Companys operating margins and related return on investment and to achieve the best use of its

capital

Improve Base Operations

The Company remains focused on driving improvement in its operations despite the turbulent production

environment During 2008 the Company maintained or improved its operational performance as measured

by key metrics Quality performance measured in defective parts per million improved by 36% during

2008 Premium costs decreased by 64% in 2008 reflecting significantly improved product launch

performance Employee safety metrics were maintained at best in class levels in the industry

Significant elements of the Companys strategy to improve base operations are as follows

Achieve production efficiencies The Company continues to take actions to lower its manufacturing

costs by increasing its focus on production utilization and related investment closure and consolidation

of facilities and relocation of production to lower cost environments to take further advantage of its global

manufacturing footprint The Company has consolidated its regional purchasing activities into global

commodity driven organization to provide increased spending leverage to optimize supplier

relationships and to further standardize its production and related material purchases

Product quality The Company has increased its efforts to ensure that the products provided to its

customers are of the highest quality and specification Processes and standards continue to be

implemented to prevent the occurrence of non-conforming production as measured by various

industry standard quality ratings such as defective parts per million

Health and safety of employees The health and safety of the Companys employees is of utmost

importance and the Company continues to implement programs training and awareness in all of its

operations to limit safety related incidents and to improve lost time case rates



ITEM BUSINESSContinued

Grow the Business

As result of the difficult market conditions in 2008 many of the Companys customers reassessed their

future vehicle cycle plans resulting in the deferral or cancellation of many programs that were set to be

awarded in 2008 Despite these conditions the Company achieved new business wins of approximately

$700 million during 2008 The wins were balanced across major geographic regions Asia 38%
North America 32% Europe 27% and were balanced across product lines Climate 47%
Electronics 32% and Interiors 21% Key aspects of the Companys strategy to achieve profitable

growth include the following

Focused product portfolio The global automotive parts industry is highly competitive winning and

maintaining new business requires suppliers to rapidly produce new and innovative products on cost-

competitive basis Accordingly the Company has focused its resources on products core to its future

success including Interiors Electronics and Climate products Additionally the Company believes there

are opportunities to capitalize on the continuing demand for additional electronics integration and

associated products with its product portfolio and technical capabilities

Customer and geographic diversification The Company is well positioned globally with diverse

customer base Although Ford remains the Companys largest customer the Company has been

steadily diversifying its sales with other OEMs Product sales to customers other than Ford were 66% of

total product sales for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to 61% for the year ended

December31 2007 The Companys regional sales mix has also become more balanced with greater

percentage of product sales outside of North America As percent of total product sales the

Companys product sales by region for the year ended December 31 2008 were as follows

North America 24% Europe 41% Asia 30% and South America 5% In comparison

product sales by region as percentage of total product sales for the year ended December 31

2007 were as follows North America 32% Europe 37% Asia 27% and South America 4%

Financial Information about Segments

The Companys operations are organized in global product groups including Climate Electronics

Interiors and Other Additionally the Company operates centralized administrative function to

monitor and facilitate the delivery of transition services in support of divestiture transactions primarily

related to the ACH Transactions Further information relating to the Companys reportable segments can

be found in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Note 22 Segment Information to the Companys consolidated financial statements

The Companys Products and Services

The following discussion provides an overview description of the products associated with major design

systems within each of the Companys global product groups and summary description of services

provided by the Company

Electronics Product Group

The Company is one of the leading global suppliers of advanced in-vehicle entertainment driver

information wireless communication climate control body and security electronics and lighting

technologies and products

Electronics Products Description

Audio Systems The Company produces wide range of audio systems and components

ranging from base radio head units to integrated premium audio systems and

amplifiers Examples of the Companys latest electronics products include digital

and satellite radios HD Radio broadcast tuners and premium systems
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Electronics Products Description

Driver Information Systems The Company designs and manufacturers wide range of instrument clusters

from analog-electronic to high-impact instrument clusters that incorporate LCD

displays

Infotainment Information Entertainment and

Multimedia The Company has developed numerous products to assist driving and provide

in-vehicle entertainment sampling of these technologies include MACHR
Voice Link Technology connectivity solutions for portable devices and range

of Family Entertainment Systems designed to support variety of applications

and vehicle segments

Powertrain and Feature Control Modules The Company designs and manufactures wide range of powertrain and feature

control modules for worldwide customer base Powertrain control modules

cover range of applications from single-cylinder small engine control systems

to fully-integrated V8N1O engine and transmission controllers Feature control

modules include products which manage variety of electrical loads related to

powertrain and vehicle functions including controllers for fuel pumps 4x4

transfer cases intake manifold tuning valves customer convenience features

security and voltage regulation systems

Electronic Climate Controls The Company designs and manufactures complete line of climate control

modules with capability to provide full system integration The array of modules

available varies from single zone manual electronic modules to fully automatic

multiple zone modules The Company also provides integrated audio and

climate control assemblies allowing styling and electrical architecture

flexibility for various applications

Lighting The Company designs and builds wide variety of headlamps projector

reflector or Advanced Front Lighting Systems Rear Combination Lamps

Center High-Mounted Stop Lamps CHMSLr and Fog Lamps The Company

utilizes variety of light-generating sources including Light Emitting Diode

LED High Intensity Discharge HID and Halogen-based systems

Climate Product Group

The Company is one of the leading global suppliers in the design and manufacturing of components

modules and systems that provide automotive heating ventilation air conditioning and powertrain cooling

Climate Products Description

Climate Systems The Company designs and manufactures fully integrated heating ventilation

and air conditioning HVAC systems The Companys proprietary analytical

tools and systems integration expertise enables the development of climate-

oriented components subsystems and vehicle-level systems Products

contained in this area include Heat Exchangers Climate Controls

Compressors and Fluid Transport Systems

Powertrain Cooling Systems Cooling functionality and thermal management for the vehicles powertrain

system engine and transmission is provided by powertrain cooling-related

technologies
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Interiors Product Group

The Company is one of the leading global suppliers of cockpit modules instrument panels door and

console modules and interior trim components

Interiors Products Description

Cockpit Modules The Companys cockpit modules incorporate structural electronic climate

control mechanical and safety components Customers are provided with

complete array of services including advanced engineering and computer-aided

design styling concepts and modeling and in-sequence delivery of

manufactured parts The Companys Cockpit Modules are built around its

instrument panels which consist of substrate and the optional assembly of

structure ducts registers passenger airbag system integrated or

conventional finished panels and the glove box assembly

Door Panels and Trims The Company provides wide range of door panels modules as well as

variety of interior trim products

Console Modules The Companys consoles deliver flexible and versatile storage options to the

consumer The modules are interchangeable units and offer consumers wide

range of storage options that can be tailored to their individual needs

Other Product Group

The Company also designs and manufactures variety of other products including fuel products

powertrain products as well as parts sold and distributed to the automotive aftermarket

Services

The Companys Services operations provide various transition services in support of divestiture

transactions principally related to the ACH Transactions Services to ACH are provided at rate

approximately equal to the Companys cost until such time the services are no longer required by

ACH or the expiration of the related agreement In addition to services provided to ACH the Company
has also agreed to provide certain transition services related to other divestiture transactions

The Companys Customers

The Company sells its products primarily to global vehicle manufacturers as well as to other suppliers and

assemblers In addition it sells products for use as aftermarket and service parts to automotive original

equipment manufacturers and others for resale through independent distribution networks The Company
records revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists delivery occurs or services are

rendered the sales price or fee is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured

Vehicle Manufacturers

The Company sells to all of the worlds largest vehicle manufacturers including BMW Chrysler LLC
Daimler AG Ford General Motors Honda Hyundai/Kia Mazda Mitsubishi Nissan PSA Peugeot

Citroºn Renault Toyota and Volkswagen as well as emerging new vehicle manufacturers in Asia

Ford is the Companys largest customer and product sales to Ford including those sales to Auto

Alliance International joint venture between Ford and Mazda accounted for approximately 34% of

2008 total product sales In addition product sales to Hyundai/Kia accounted for approximately 22% of

2008 total product sales and product sales to Nissan and Renault accounted for approximately 9% of 2008
total product sales Sales to customers other than Ford include sales to Mazda of which Ford holds

13.78% equity interest
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Price reductions are typically negotiated on an annual basis between suppliers and vehicle manufacturers

Such reductions are intended to take into account expected annual reductions in the overall cost to the

supplier of providing products and services to the customer through such factors as overall increases in

manufacturing productivity material cost reductions and design-related cost improvements The Company

has an aggressive cost reduction program that focuses on reducing its total costs which are intended to

offset customer price reductions However there can be no assurance that such cost reduction efforts will

be sufficient to fully offset such price reductions The Company records price reductions when specific

facts and circumstances indicate that price reduction is probable and the amounts are reasonably

estimable

Other Customers

The Company sells products to various customers in the worldwide aftermarket as replacement or

enhancement parts such as body appearance packages and in-car entertainment systems for

current production and older vehicles The Companys services revenues relate primarily to the supply

of leased personnel and transition services to ACH in connection with various agreements pursuant to the

ACH Transactions and amended in 2008 The Company has also agreed to provide transition services to

other customers in connection with certain other divestitures

The Companys Competition

The Company conducts its business in complex and highly competitive industry The global automotive

parts industry principally involves the supply of systems modules and components to vehicle

manufacturers for the manufacture of new vehicles Additionally suppliers provide components to

other suppliers for use in their product offerings and to the aftermarket for use as replacement or

enhancement parts As the supplier industry consolidates the number of competitors decreases

fostering extremely competitive conditions Vehicle manufacturers rigorously evaluate suppliers on the

basis of product quality price competitiveness technical expertise and development capability new

product innovation reliability and timeliness of delivery product design and manufacturing capability and

flexibility customer service and overall management summary of the Companys primary independent

competitors is provided below

Electronics Robert Bosch GmbH Delphi Corporation Denso Corporation Hella KGaA Koito

Manufacturing Co Ltd North American Lighting Matsushita Electric Industrial Co Ltd Panasonic

and Continental AG

Climate Behr GmbH Co KG Delphi Corporation Denso Corporation and ValØo S.A

Interiors Faurecia Group Johnson Controls Inc Magna International Inc and International

Automotive Components Group

Other Robert Bosch GmbH Dana Corporation Delphi Corporation Denso Corporation Magna

International Inc GKN Plc JTEKT Corporation ZF Friedrichshafen AG NTN Corporation Kautex

Textron GmbHCo KG Inergy Automotive Systems and TI Automotive

The Companys Product Sales Backlog

Anticipated net product sales for 2009 through 2011 from new and replacement programs less net sales

from phased-out and canceled programs are approximately $550 million The Companys estimate of

anticipated net sales may be impacted by various assumptions including vehicle production levels on new

and replacement programs customer price reductions currency exchange rates and the timing of

program launches In addition the Company typically enters into agreements with its customers at the

beginning of vehicles life for the fulfillment of customers purchasing requirements for the entire

production life of the vehicle These agreements generally may be terminated by customers at any time

Therefore this anticipated net sales information does not represent firm orders or firm commitments
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The Companys International Operations

Financial information about sales and net property by major geographic region can be found in Note 22
Segment Information to the Companys consolidated financial statements included in Item of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K The attendant risks of the Companys international operations are primarily

related to currency fluctuations changes in local economic and political conditions and changes in laws

and regulations The following table sets forth the Companys net sales including product sales and

services revenues and net property and equipment by geographic region as percentage of total

consolidated net sales and total consolidated net property and equipment respectively

Net Property
Net Sales and Equipment

Year Ended December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007

Geographic region

United States 34% 36% 40% 33% 34%
Mexico 1% 2% 3% 2%
Canada 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
Intra-region eliminations 1% 1%

Total North America 35% 37% 42% 37% 37%

Germany 3% 4% 6% 2% 2%
France 8% 8% 8% 7% 9%
United Kingdom 4% 5% 4% 1% 2%
Portugal 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
Spain 6% 6% 6% 4% 4%
Czech Republic 6% 5% 4% 10% 9%

Hungary 5% 4% 2% 4% 3%
Other Europe 2% 1% 2% 3% 2%
Intra-region eliminations 1%

Total Europe 38% 36% 35% 36% 36%

Korea 22% 20% 16% 14% 16%
China 3% 2% 2% 4% 3%
India 2% 2% 2% 3% 2%
Japan 2% 2% 2% 1% 1%
Other Asia 2% 2% 1% 2% 2%
Intra-region eliminations 1% 1% 1%

Total Asia 30% 27% 22% 24% 24%

South America 5% 5% 5% 3% 3%
Intra-region eliminations 8% 5% 4%

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Seasonality and Cyclicality of the Companys Business

The market for vehicles is cyclical and is heavily dependent upon general economic conditions consumer
sentiment and spending and credit availability During 2008 the automotive sector was negatively

impacted by recessionary economic conditions in the United States and Western Europe exacerbated

by the global credit crisis These factors resulted in the deferral of consumer vehicle purchases which

drove severe decline in demand for automobiles across substantially all geographies

10



ITEM BUSINESSContinued

The Companys business is moderately seasonal because its largest North American customers typically

cease production for approximately two weeks in July for model year changeovers and approximately one

week in December during the winter holidays Customers in Europe historically shut down vehicle

production during portion of August and one week in December In addition third quarter automotive

production traditionally is lower as new vehicle models enter production Due to the deteriorating economic

conditions in 2008 vehicle production volumes did not follow this historical pattern but instead declined

throughout the year and severely during the fourth quarter of 2008

Refer to Note 23 Summary Quarterly Financial Data to the Companys consolidated financial statements

included in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for information related to quarterly financial results

The Companys Worktorce and Employee Relations

The Companys workforce as of December 31 2008 included approximately 33500 persons of which

approximately 11000 were salaried employees and 22500 were hourly workers As of December 31

2008 the Company leased approximately 1500 salaried employees to ACH under the terms of the

Amended Salaried Employee Lease Agreement

substantial number of the Companys hourly workforce in the U.S are represented by unions and

operate under collective bargaining agreements In connection with the ACH Transactions the Company

terminated its lease from Ford of its UAW Master Agreement hourly workforce Many of the Companys

European and Mexican employees are members of industrial trade unions and confederations within their

respective countries Many of these organizations operate under collectively bargained contracts that are

not specific to any one employer The Company constantly works to establish and maintain positive

cooperative relations with its unions around the world and believes that its relationships with unionized

employees are satisfactory There have been no significant work stoppages in the past five years except

for brief work stoppages by employees at several climate manufacturing facilities located in India and

South Korea during June July and August of 2008 as well as by employees represented by the IUE-CWA

Local 907 at manufacturing facility located in Bedford Indiana during June of 2004

The Companys Product Research and Development

The Companys research and development efforts are intended to maintain leadership positions in core

product lines and provide the Company with competitive edge as it seeks additional business with new

and existing customers The Company also works with technology development partners including

customers to develop technological capabilities and new products and applications Total research

and development expenditures were approximately $434 million in 2008 decreasing from $510 million

in 2007 and $594 million in 2006 The decreases are attributable to divestitures shifting engineering

headcount from high-cost to low-cost countries as well as right-sizing efforts

The Companys Intellectual Property

The Company owns significant intellectual property including large number of patents copyrights

proprietary tools and technologies and trade secrets and is involved in numerous licensing arrangements

Although the Companys intellectual property plays an important role in maintaining its competitive

position no single patent copyright proprietary tool or technology trade secret or license or group of

related patents copyrights proprietary tools or technologies trade secrets or licenses is in the opinion of

management of such value to the Company that its business would be materially affected by the expiration

or termination thereof The Companys general policy is to apply for patents on an ongoing basis in

appropriate countries on its patentable developments which are considered to have commercial

significance

11
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The Company also views its name and mark as significant to its business as whole In addition the

Company holds rights in number of other trade names and marks applicable to certain of its businesses

and products that it views as important to such businesses and products

The Companys Raw Materials and Suppliers

Raw materials used by the Company in the manufacture of its products include aluminum resins precious

metals steel urethane chemicals and electronics components All of the materials used are generally

available from numerous sources In general the Company does not carry inventories of raw materials in

excess of those reasonably required to meet production and shipping schedules To date the Company
has not experienced any significant shortages of raw materials nor does it anticipate significant interruption

in the supply of raw materials However the possibilities of such shortages exist especially in light of

deteriorating global economic conditions credit and capital market constraints and the weakened state of

the automotive sector

Over the past few years the automotive supply industry has experienced significant inflationary pressures

with respect to raw materials which have placed operational and financial burdens on the entire supply

chain During 2008 those inflationary pressures decreased due to the overall reduction in demand

resulting from weakened economic conditions and the global credit crisis While the costs of raw

materials have receded from recent high levels the Company continues to take actions with its

customers and suppliers to mitigate the impact of these inflationary pressures in the future Actions to

mitigate inflationary pressures with customers include collaboration on alternative product designs and

material specifications contractual price escalation clauses and negotiated customer recoveries Actions

to mitigate inflationary pressures with suppliers include aggregation of purchase requirements to achieve

optimal volume benefits negotiation of cost reductions and identification of more cost competitive

suppliers While these actions are designed to offset the impact of inflationary pressures the

Company cannot provide assurance that it will be successful in fully offsetting increased costs

resulting from inflationary pressures in the future

Impact of Environmental Regulations on the Company

The Company is subject to the requirements of federal state local and foreign environmental and

occupational safety and health laws and regulations These include laws regulating air emissions water

discharge and waste management The Company is also subject to environmental laws requiring the

investigation and cleanup of environmental contamination at properties it presently owns or operates and

at third-party disposal or treatment facilities to which these sites send or arranged to send hazardous

waste During 2008 the Company did not make any material capital expenditures relating to

environmental compliance

At the time of spin-off the Company and Ford agreed on division of liability for and responsibility for

management and remediation of environmental claims existing at that time and further that the Company
would assume all liabilities for existing and future claims relating to sites that were transferred to it and its

operation of those sites including off-site disposal except as otherwise specifically retained by Ford in the

Master Transfer Agreement In connection with the ACH Transactions Ford agreed to re-assume these

liabilities to the extent they arise from the ownership or operation prior to the spin-off of the locations

transferred to ACH excluding any increase in costs attributable to the exacerbation of such liability by the

Company or its affiliates
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The Company is aware of contamination at some of its properties and relating to various third-party

Superfund sites at which the Company or its predecessor has been named as potentially responsible

party The Company is in various stages of investigation and cleanup at these sites and at December 31

2008 had recorded reserve of approximately $5 million for this environmental investigation and cleanup

However estimating liabilities for environmental investigation and cleanup is complex and dependent upon

number of factors beyond the Companys control and which may change dramatically Accordingly

although the Companybelieves its reserve is adequate based on current information the Company cannot

provide any assurance that its ultimate environmental investigation and cleanup costs and liabilities will not

exceed the amount of its current reserve

The Companys Website and Access to Available Information

The Companys current and periodic reports filed with the United States Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC including amendments to those reports may be obtained through its internet

website at www.visteon.com free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company files

these reports with the SEC copy of the Companys code of business conduct and ethics for directors

officers and employees of Visteon and its subsidiaries entitled Ethics and Integrity Policy the Corporate

Governance Guidelines adopted by the Companys Board of Directors and the charters of each committee

of the Board of Directors are also available on the Companys website printed copy of the foregoing

documents may be requested by contacting the Companys Investor Relations department in writing at

One Village Center Drive Van Buren Township Ml 48111 by phone 877 367-6092 or via email at

vcstock@visteon.com
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The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing the Company Additional risks

and uncertainties including those not presently known or that the Company believes to be immaterial also

may adversely affect the Companys results of operations and financial condition Should any such risks

and uncertainties develop into actual events these developments could have material adverse effects on

the Companys business and financial results

The Company has obtained temporary waivers of defaults under its senior secured credit and

securitization facilities and if it is unable to achieve an acceptable negotiated restructuring with

its lenders and customers or make such waivers permanent prior to their expiration it may seek

reorganization under the U.S Bankruptcy Code

Pursuant to affirmative covenants contained in the agreements associated with the Facilities the

Company is required to provide audited annual financial statements within prescribed period of time

after the end of each fiscal year without going concern audit report or like qualification or exception On

March 31 2009 the Companys independent registered public accounting firm included an explanatory

paragraph in its audit report on the Companys 2008 consolidated financial statements indicating

substantial doubt about the Companys ability to continue as going concern The receipt of such an

explanatory statement constitutes default under the Facilities On March 31 2009 the Company entered

into the Waivers with the lenders under the Facilities which provide for waivers of such defaults for limited

periods of time as more fully described in Item 9B Other Information of this Annual Report on Form 0-K

The Company is exploring various strategic and financing alternatives and has retained legal and financial

advisors to assist in this regard The Company has commenced discussions with lenders under the

Facilities including the Ad Hoc Committee regarding the restructuring of the Companys capital structure

Additionally the Company has commenced discussions with certain of its major customers to address its

liquidity and capital requirements Any such restructuring may affect the terms of the Facilities other debt

and common stock and may be affected through negotiated modifications to the related agreements or

through other forms of restructurings including under court supervision pursuant to voluntary bankruptcy

filing under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code There can be no assurance that an agreement

regarding any such restructuring will be obtained on acceptable terms with the necessary parties or at all If

an acceptable agreement is not obtained an event of default under the Facilities would occur as of the

expiration of the Waivers excluding any extensions thereof and the lenders would have the right to

accelerate the obligations thereunder Acceleration of the Companys obligations under the Facilities

would constitute an event of default under the senior unsecured notes and would likely result in the

acceleration of these obligations as well In any such event the Company may be required to seek

protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code

The aforementioned resulted in the current classification of substantially all of the Companys long-term

debt as current liabilities in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2008 As of

December 31 2008 the Company had total indebtedness of approximately $2.76 billion and interest

expense in excess of $200 million

If the Companys cash provided by operating activities continues to be insufficient to fund its cash

requirements it could face substantial liquidity problems

The Companys working capital requirements and cash provided by operating activities can vary greatly

from quarter to quarter and from year to year depending in part on the level variability and timing of its

customers worldwide vehicle production and the payment terms with the Companys customers and

suppliers Prior to 2008 the Company generated cash from operating activities albeit insufficient to fund

all of the Companys cash requirements As result the Company has used its cash balances

accumulated primarily through asset sales and outside liquidity sources As of the end of 2008 the

Companys cash balances decreased by approximately $578 million from the beginning of the year and

the Company used cash in its operating activities for the year ended December 31 2008
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The Company cannot provide assurance that it will be able to satisfy its cash requirements during 2009 or

subsequent years or during any particular quarter from cash provided by operating activities If the

Companys working capital needs and capital expenditure requirements exceed its cash provided by

operating activities then the Company would again look to its cash balance and committed credit lines to

satisfy those needs However current credit and capital market conditions combined with the Companys
credit ratings and recent history of operating losses and negative cash flows as well as projected industry

conditions are likely to restrict the Companys ability to access capital markets in the near term and any

such access would likely be at an increased cost and under more restrictive terms and conditions Further

such constraints may also affect the Companys commercial agreements and payment terms with

suppliers

Absent access to additional liquidity from credit markets which remain severely constrained or other

sources of external financial support including accommodations from key customers the Company

expects to be at or near minimum levels of cash necessary to operate the business during 2009 The

Company may need to delay capital expenditures curtail eliminate or dispose of substantial assets or

operations or undertake significant restructuring measures including protection under Chapter 11 of the

U.S Bankruptcy Code For discussion of these and other factors affecting the Companys liquidity refer

to Liquidity Matters in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Significant declines in automotive production levels have reduced the Companys sales and
harmed its operations and financial condition and further significant declines could make it

difficult for the Company to continue its operations

Demand for the Companys products is directly related to automotive vehicle production Automotive sales

and production can be affected by general economic conditions such as employment levels and trends

fuel prices and interest rates labor relations issues regulatory requirements trade agreements and other

factors Automotive industry conditions particularly in North America and Western Europe continue to be

challenging In North America the domestic automotive industry is characterized by sales declines

significant overcapacity fierce competition high fixed cost structures and significant employee pension

and health care obligations for the domestic automakers Further declines in automotive production levels

of its current and future customers would reduce the Companys sales and harm its results of operations

and financial condition

The financial distress of the Companys major customers and within the supply base could

significantly affect its operating performance

During 2007 and more severely in 2008 automotive OEMs particularly those domiciled in the United

States continued to experience lower demand for their products which resulted in lower production levels

on several of the Companys key platforms particularly light truck platforms In addition these customers

have experienced declining market shares in North America and are continuing to restructure their North

American operations in an effort to improve profitability The domestic automotive manufacturers are also

burdened with substantial structural costs such as pension and healthcare costs that have impacted their

profitability and labor relations Several other global automotive manufacturers are also experiencing

operating and profitability issues as well as labor concerns In this environment it is difficult to forecast

future customer production schedules the potential for labor disputes or the success or sustainability of

any strategies undertaken by any of the Companys major customers in response to the current industry

environment This environment may also put additional pricing pressure on their suppliers like Visteon to

reduce the cost of its products which would reduce the Companys margins In addition cuts in production

schedules are also sometimes announced by customers with little advance notice making it difficult to

respond with corresponding cost reductions
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Given the difficult environment in the automotive industry there is an increased risk of bankruptcies or

similar events among Visteons customers Each of General Motors and Chrysler has reported severe

liquidity concerns and the potential inability to meet short-term cash funding requirements These

domestic automakers have sought and obtained funding support from the U.S federal government in

light of the economic and credit crisis and its impact on the automotive industry Notwithstanding any

federal support provided to the domestic automotive industry the financial prospects of certain of the

Companys significant customers remain highly uncertain It is also uncertain the extent if any to which

any such federal support would be made available directly to automotive suppliers or the Companys ability

to access such funding Further the terms conditions and extent of any funding support provided by the

U.S government to the Companys customers and the supply base could have material adverse effect on

the Companys business financial condition and results of operations

The Companys supply base has also been adversely affected by industry conditions Lower production

levels for the global automotive OEMs and increases in certain raw material commodity and energy costs

during 2007 and 2008 have resulted in severe financial distress among many companies within the

automotive supply base Several large suppliers have filed for bankruptcy protection or ceased operations

Unfavorable industry conditions have also resulted in financial distress within the Companys supply base

and an increase in commercial disputes and the risk of supply disruption In addition the adverse industry

environment has required the Company to provide financial support to distressed suppliers or take other

measures to ensure uninterrupted production While Visteon has taken certain actions to mitigate these

factors it has offset only portion of the overall impact on the Companys operating results The

continuation or worsening of these industry conditions would adversely affect the Companys

profitability operating results and cash flow

The Company is highly dependent on Ford and further decreases in Fords vehicle production

volume would adversely affect the Companys results

Ford is the Companys largest customer and accounted for approximately 34% of total product sales in

2008 39% of total product sales in 2007 and 45% of total product sales in 2006 The Company has made

significant progress in diversifying its customer base with other automakers and reducing its sales

concentration with Ford Ford will continue to be the Companys largest customer for the near future

As in the past any change in Fords vehicle production volume will have significant impact on the

Companys sales volume and restructuring efforts

The Company currently leases approximately 1500 salaried employees to ACH company controlled by

Ford and has an agreement with Ford to reimburse the Company for the costs related to separating any of

the leased employees should they be returned to the Company for any reason In the event that Ford is

unable or unwilling to fulfill its obligations under this agreement the Company could be adversely affected

The discontinuation o1 the loss of business with respect to or lack of commercial success of

particular vehicle model for which the Company is significant supplier could affect the

Companys estimates of anticipated net sales

Although the Company has purchase orders from many of its customers these purchase orders generally

provide for the supply of customers annual requirements for particular model and assembly plant and

are renewable on year-to-year basis rather than for the purchase of specific quantity of products

Therefore the discontinuation loss of business with respect to or lack of commercial success of

particular vehicle model for which the Company is significant supplier could reduce the Companys sales

and affect its estimates of anticipated net sales including new business and net new business
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Escalating price pressures from customers may adversely affect the Companys business

Downward pricing pressures by automotive manufacturers is characteristic of the automotive industry

Virtually all automakers have aggressive price reduction initiatives and objectives each year with their

suppliers and such actions are expected to continue in the future In addition estimating such amounts is

subject to risk and uncertainties as any price reductions are result of negotiations and other factors

Accordingly suppliers must be able to reduce their operating costs in order to maintain profitability The

Company has taken steps to reduce its operating costs to offset customer price reductions in addition to

other actions designed to resist such reductions however price reductions have impacted the Companys
sales and profit margins and are expected to do so in the future If the Company is unable to offset

customer price reductions in the future through improved operating efficiencies new manufacturing

processes sourcing alternatives and other cost reduction initiatives the Companys results of operations

and financial condition would be adversely affected

Severe inflationary pressures impacting ferrous and non-ferrous metals and petroleum-based

commodities may adversely affect the Companys profitability and the profitability of the

Companys Tier and Tier supply base

The automotive supply industry has experienced significant inflationary pressures primarily in ferrous and

non-ferrous metals and petroleum-based commodities such as resins These inflationary pressures have

placed significant operational and financial burdens on automotive suppliers at all levels and are expected

to continue for the foreseeable future Generally it has been difficult to pass on in total the increased costs

of raw materials and components used in the manufacture of the Companys products to its customers In

addition the Companys need to maintain continued supply of raw materials and/or components has

made it difficult to resist price increases and surcharges imposed by its suppliers

Further this inflationary pressure combined with other factors has adversely impacted the financial

condition of several domestic automotive suppliers including resulting in several significant supplier

bankruptcies Because the Company purchases various types of equipment raw materials and

component parts from suppliers it may be materially and adversely affected by the failure of those

suppliers to perform as expected This non-performance may consist of delivery delays failures caused by

production issues or delivery of non-conforming products or supplier insolvency or bankruptcy

Consequently the Companys efforts to continue to mitigate the effects of these inflationary pressures

may be insufficient if conditions were to worsen resulting in negative impact on the Companys financial

results

The Company could be adversely affected by shortages of components from suppliers

In an effort to manage and reduce the costs of purchased goods and services the Company like many

suppliers and automakers has been consolidating its supply base As result the Company is dependent

on single or limited sources of supply for certain components used in the manufacture of its products The

Company selects its suppliers based on total value including price delivery and quality taking into

consideration their production capacities and financial condition However there can be no assurance that

strong demand capacity limitations or other problems experienced by the Companys suppliers will not

result in occasional shortages or delays in their supply of components If the Companywas to experience

significant or prolonged shortage of critical components from any of its suppliers particularly those who

are sole sources and could not procure the components from other sources the Company would be

unable to meet its production schedules for some of its key products and to ship such products to its

customers in timely fashion which would adversely affect sales margins and customer relations
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Work stoppages or similardifficulties could significantly disrupt the Companys operations

work stoppage at one or more of the Companys manufacturing and assembly facilities could have

material adverse effects on the business Also if one or more of the Companys customers were to

experience work stoppage that customer would likely halt or limit purchases of the Companys products

which could result in the shut down of the related manufacturing facilities Further because the automotive

industry relies heavily on just-in-time delivery of components during the assembly and manufacture of

vehicles significant disruption in the supply of key component due to work stoppage at one of the

Companys suppliers or any other supplier could have the same consequences and accordingly have

material adverse effect on the Companys financial results

Impairment charges relating to the Companys assets and possible increases to its valuation

allowances may have material adverse effect on its earnings and results of operations

The Company recorded asset impairment charges of $234 million $95 million and $22 million in 2008

2007 and 2006 respectively to adjust the carrying value of certain assets to their estimated fair value

Additional asset impairment charges in the future may result in the event that the Company does not

achieve its internal financial plans and such charges could materially affect the Companys results of

operations and financial condition in the periods recognized In addition the Company cannot provide

assurance that it will be able to recover its remaining net deferred tax assets which is dependent upon

achieving future taxable income in certain foreign jurisdictions Failure to achieve its taxable income

targets may change the Companys assessment of the recoverability of its remaining net deferred tax

assets and would likely result in an increase in the valuation allowance in the applicable period Any

increase in the valuation allowance would result in additional income tax expense would reduce

stockholders equity and could have significant impact on the Companys earnings going forward

The Companys pension and other postretirement employee benefits expense and funding levels

of pension plans could materiallydeteriorate or the Company maybe unable to generate sufficient

excess cash flow to meet increased pension and other postretirement employee benefit

obligations

Substantially all of the Companys employees participate in defined benefit pension plans or retirement

termination indemnity plans The Company also sponsors other postretirement employee benefit

OPEB plans in the United States The Companys worldwide pension and OPEB obligations

exposed the Company to approximately $893 million in unfunded liabilities as of December 31 2008

of which approximately $326 million and $242 million was attributable to unfunded U.S and

Non-U.S pension obligations respectively and $325 million was attributable to unfunded OPEB

obligations

The Company has previously experienced declines in interest rates and pension asset values Future

declines in interest rates or the market values of the securities held by the plans or certain other changes

could materially deteriorate the funded status of the Companys plans and affect the level and timing of

required contributions in 2009 and beyond Additionally material deterioration in the funded status of the

plans could significantly increase pension expenses and reduce the Companys profitability

The Company funds its OPEB obligations on pay-as-you-go basis accordingly the related plans have no

assets The Company is subject to increased OPEB cash outlays and costs due to among other factors

rising health care costs Increases in the expected cost of health care in excess of current assumptions

could increase actuarially determined liabilities and related OPEB expenses along with future cash

outlays
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS Continued

The Companys assumptions used to calculate pension and OPEB obligations as of the annual

measurement date directly impact the expense to be recognized in future periods While the

Companys management believes that these assumptions are appropriate significant differences in

actual experience or significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the Companys

pension and OPEB obligations and future expense For more information on sensitivities to changing

assumptions please see Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations and Note 14 Employee Retirement Benefits to the Companys consolidated

financial statements included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

The Companys ability to generate sufficient cash to satisfy its obligations may be impacted by the factors

discussed herein

The Companys expected annual effective tax rate could be volatile and materially change as

result of changes in mix of earnings and other factors

Changes in the Companys debt and capital structure among other items may impact its effective tax rate

The Companys overall effective tax rate is equal to consolidated tax expense as percentage of

consolidated earnings before tax However tax expense and benefits are not recognized on global

basis but rather on jurisdictional basis Further the Company is in position whereby losses incurred in

certain tax jurisdictions generally provide no current financial statement benefit In addition certain

jurisdictions have statutory rates greater than or less than the United States statutory rate As such

changes in the mix and source of earnings between jurisdictions could have significant impact on the

Companys overall effective tax rate in future periods Changes in tax law and rates changes in rules

related to accounting for income taxes or adverse outcomes from tax audits that regularly are in process in

any of the jurisdictions in which the Company operates could also have significant impact on the

Companys overall effective rate in future periods

The Company may not be able to fully utilize its U.S net operating loss carryforwards

If Visteon were to have change of ownership within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue

Code under current conditions its annual federal net operating loss NOL utilization could be limited to

an amount equal to its market capitalization at the time of the ownership change multiplied by the federal

long-term tax exempt rate Visteon cannot provide any assurance that such an ownership change will not

occur in which case the availability of Visteons substantial NOL carryforward and other federal income tax

attributes would be significantly limited or possibly eliminated

The Companys ability to effectively operate could be hindered if it fails to attract and retain key

personnel

The Companys ability to operate its business and implement its strategies effectively depends in part on

the efforts of its executive officers and other key employees In addition the Companys future success will

depend on among other factors the ability to attract and retain qualified personnel particularly engineers

and other employees with critical expertise and skills that support key customers and products The loss of

the services of any key employees or the failure to attract or retain other qualified personnel could have

material adverse effect on the Companys business
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS Continued

The Companys international operations including Asian joint ventures are subject to various

risks that could adversely affect the Companys business results of operations and financial

condition

The Company has operating facilities and conducts significant portion of its business outside the United

States The Company has invested significantly in joint ventures with other parties to conduct business in

South Korea China and elsewhere in Asia The Companys ability to repatriate funds from these joint

ventures depends not only upon their uncertain cash flows and profits but also upon the terms of particular

agreements with the Companys joint venture partners and maintenance of the legal and political status

quo The Company risks expropriation in China and the instability that would accompany civil unrest or

armed conflict within the Asian region More generally the Companys Asian joint ventures and other

foreign investments could be adversely affected by changes in the political economic and financial

environments in host countries including fluctuations in exchange rates political instability changes in

foreign laws and regulations or new interpretations of existing laws and regulations and changes in trade

policies import and export restrictions and tariffs taxes and exchange controls Any one of these factors

could have an adverse effect on the Companys business results of operations and financial condition In

addition the Companys consolidated financial statements are denominated in U.S dollars and require

translation adjustments which can be significant for purposes of reporting results from and the financial

condition of its foreign investments

Warranty claims product liability claims and product recalls could harm the Companys business

results of operations and financial condition

The Company faces inherent business risk of exposure to warranty and product liability claims in the event

that its products fail to perform as expected or such failure results or is alleged to result in bodily injury or

property damage or both In addition if any of the Companys designed products are defective or are

alleged to be defective the Company may be required to participate in recall campaign As suppliers

become more integrally involved in the vehicle design process and assume more of the vehicle assembly

functions automakers are increasingly expecting them to warrant their products and are increasingly

looking to them for contributions when faced with product liability claims or recalls successful warranty or

product liability claim against the Company in excess of its available insurance coverage and established

reserves or requirement that the Company participate in product recall campaign would have adverse

effects that could be material on the Companys business results of operations and financial condition

The Company is involved from time to time in legal proceedings and commercial or contractual

disputes which could have an adverse effect on its business results of operations and financial

position

The Company is involved in legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes that from time to

time are significant These are typically claims that arise in the normal course of business including

without limitation commercial or contractual disputes including disputes with suppliers intellectual

property matters personal injury claims and employment matters No assurances can be given that such

proceedings and claims will not have material adverse impact on the Companys profitability and financial

position
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS Continued

The Company could be adversely impacted by environmental laws and regulations

The Companys operations are subject to U.S and non-U.S environmental laws and regulations

governing emissions to air discharges to water the generation handling storage transportation

treatment and disposal of waste materials and the cleanup of contaminated properties Currently

environmental costs with respect to former existing or subsequently acquired operations are not

material but there is no assurance that the Company will not be adversely impacted by such costs

liabilities or claims in the future either under present laws and regulations or those that may be adopted or

imposed in the future

Developments or assertions by or against the Company relating to intellectual property rights

could materially impact its business

The Company owns significant intellectual property including large number of patents trademarks

copyrights and trade secrets and is involved in numerous licensing arrangements The Companys
intellectual property plays an important role in maintaining its competitive position in number of the

markets served Developments or assertions by or against the Company relating to intellectual property

rights could materially impact the business Significant technological developments by others also could

materially and adversely affect the Companys business and results of operations and financial condition

The Companys business and results of operations could be affected adversely by terrorism

Terrorist-sponsored attacks both foreign and domestic could have adverse effects on the Companys
business and results of operations These attacks could accelerate or exacerbate other automotive

industry risks such as those described above and also have the potential to interfere with the Companys
business by disrupting supply chains and the delivery of products to customers

failure of the Companys internal controls could adversely affect the Companys ability to report

its financial condition and results of operations accurately and on timely basis As result the

Companys business operating results and liquidity could be harmed

Because of the inherent limitations of any system of internal control including the possibility of human

error the circumvention or overriding of controls or fraud even an effective system of internal control may

not prevent or detect all misstatements In the event of an internal control failure the Companys ability to

report its financial results on timely and accurate basis could be adversely impacted which could result in

loss of investor confidence in its financial reports or have material adverse affect on the Companys

ability to operate its business or access sources of liquidity

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

21



ITEM PROPERTIES

The Companys principal executive offices are located in Van Buren Township Michigan Set forth below is

listing of the Companys most significant manufacturing and/or assembly facilities that are owned or

leased by the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31 2008

Interiors Climate

Alabama TuscaloosaL Alabama ShorterL

Michigan Benton HarborO Argentina General Pacheco Buenos

AiresO

Michigan Benton HarborL Argentina Quilmes Buenos AiresO

Michigan Highland ParkL Argentina Rio Grande Terra del

FuegoO
Mississippi CantonL Canada Belleville OntarioO

Mississippi DurantL China Nanchang CityL

Missouri EurekaL China Dalian LianoningO

Tennessee LaVergneL China ChongqingL

Belgium GenkL China Nanchang Jiangxi

ProvinceO

Brazil Camacari BahiaL China BeijingL

France AubergenvilleL France Charleville Mezieres

CedexO
France CarvinO India ChennaiL
France GondecourtO India BhiwadiL

France Noyal-Chatillon-sur-SeicheL India MaharashtraL

France RougegoutteO Mexico Juarez ChihuahuaO

Germany BerlinL Mexico Juarez ChihuahuaL

Mexico SaltilloL Mexico Juarez ChihuahuaL

Philippines Santa Rosa LagunaL Portugal PalmelaO
Poland SwarzedzL Slovakia lavaL

Slovakia NitraL Slovakia DubnicaL

South Korea Choongnam AsanO South Africa Port ElizabethL

South Korea Kangse-gu Busan-siL South Korea PyungtaekO
South Korea Kangse-gu Busan-siL South Korea Namgo UlsanO
South Korea Shinam-myon Yesan-gun South Korea Taedok-Gu TaejonO

ChoongnamO
South Korea Ulsan-si UlsanO Thailand Amphur Pluakdaeng

RayongO

Spain BarcelonaL Turkey Gebze KocaeliL

Spain lgualadaO United Kingdom BasildonL

Spain Medina de Rioseco

ValladolidO

Spain PontevedraO

Thailand Amphur Pluakdaeng

RayongO
Thailand Bangsaothoong

SamutprakamL

United Kingdom Enfield MiddlesexL
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ITEM PROPERTIES Continued

Electronics Other

Pennsylvania LansdaleL Ohio SpringfieldL

Brazil Guarulhos Sao PauloO United Kingdom Belfast Northern lrelandL

Brazil Manaus AmazonasL

Czech Republic HlukO

Czech Republic Novy JicinO

Czech Republic RychvaldO

Hungary SzekesfehervarO

Japan Higashi HiroshimaO

Mexico Apodaca Nuevo LeonO
Mexico Apodaca Nuevo LeonO
Mexico Chihuahua ChihuahuaL

Portugal PalmelaO

Spain CadizO

indicates owned facilities indicates leased facilities

As of December 31 2008 the Company also owned or leased 43 corporate and sales offices technical

and engineering centers and customer service centers in fourteen countries around the world 38 of which

were leased and of which were owned The Company considers its facilities to be adequate for its current

uses In addition the Companys non-consolidated affiliates operate approximately 30 manufacturing

and/or assembly locations primarily in the Asia Pacific region

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On March 31 2009 Visteon UK Limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales and

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company the UK Debtor filed for administration the UK
Administration under the United Kingdom Insolvency Act of 1986 with the High Court of Justice

Chancery division in London England The UK Administration does not include the Company or any

of the Companys other subsidiaries The UK Administration is discussed in Note 24 Subsequent Event

as included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Various legal actions governmental investigations and proceedings and claims are pending or may be

instituted or asserted in the future against the Company including those arising out of alleged defects in the

Companys products governmental regulations relating to safety employment-related matters customer

supplier and other contractual relationships intellectual property rights product warranties product

recalls and environmental matters Some of the foregoing matters may involve compensatory punitive

or antitrust or other treble damage claims in very large amounts or demands for recall campaigns

environmental remediation programs sanctions or other relief which if granted would require very large

expenditures

Litigation is subject to many uncertainties and the outcome of individual litigated matters is not predictable

with assurance Reserves have been established by the Company for matters discussed in the

immediately foregoing paragraph where losses are deemed probable and reasonably estimable It is

possible however that some of the matters discussed in the foregoing paragraph could be decided

unfavorably to the Company and could require the Company to pay damages or make other expenditures

in amounts or range of amounts that cannot be estimated at December31 2008 and that are in excess

of established reserves The Company does not reasonably expect except as otherwise described herein

based on its analysis that any adverse outcome from such matters would have material effect on the

Companys financial condition results of operations or cash flows although such an outcome is possible
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ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None

ITEM 4A EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF VISTEON

The following table shows information about the executive officers of the Company Ages are as of

March 26 2009

Age Position

Donald Stebbins 51 Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

William Quigley Ill 47 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

John Donofrio 47 Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Robert Pallash 57 Senior Vice President and President Global Customer

Group

Dorothy Stephenson 59 Senior Vice President Human Resources

Terrence GohI 47 Vice President and President Interiors and Lighting

Product Groups

Joy Greenway 48 Vice President and President Climate Product Group

Steve Meszaros 45 Vice President and President Electronics Product

Group

Michael Widgren 40 Vice President Corporate Controller and Chief

Accounting Officer

Donald Stebbins has been Visteons Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer since

December 2008 and member of the Board of Directors since December 2006 Prior to that he

was President and Chief Executive Officer since June 2008 and President and Chief Operating Officer

since joining the Company in May 2005 Before joining Visteon Mr Stebbins served as President and

Chief Operating Officer of operations in Europe Asia and Africa for Lear Corporation since August 2004

and prior to that he was President and Chief Operating Officer of Lears operations in the Americas since

September 2001 Mr Stebbins is also director of WABCO Holdings

William Quigley Ill has been Visteons Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since

November 2007 Prior to that he was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since March 2007

and Vice President Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer since joining the company in

December 2004 Before joining Visteon he was Vice President and Controller Chief Accounting Officer

of Federal-Mogul Corporation since June 2001

John Donofrio has been Visteons Senior Vice President and General Counsel since joining the Company
in June 2005 Before joining Visteon he was Vice President and General Counsel Honeywell Aerospace

of Honeywell International since 2000 where he also served as Vice President and Deputy General

Counsel of Honeywell International from 1996 through 2005 Prior to that he was partner at the law firm

Kirkland Ellis LLP Mr Donofrio is also director of FARO Technologies Inc

Robert Pallash has been Visteons Senior Vice President and President Global Customer Group since

January 2008 and Senior Vice President Asia Customer Group since August 2005 Prior to that he was
Vice President and President Asia Pacific since July 2004 and Vice President Asia Pacific since joining

the Company in September 2001 Before joining Visteon Mr Pallash served as president of TRW
Automotive Japan since 1999 and president of Lucas Varity Japan prior thereto Mr Pallash is also

director of FMC Corporation

Dorothy Stephenson has been Visteons Senior Vice President Human Resources since joining the

Company in May 2006 Prior to that she was human resources consultant since May 2003 and Vice

President Human Resources for Bethlehem Steel prior thereto
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ITEM 4A EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF VISTEON Continued

Terrence Gohi has been Visteons Vice President and President Interiors and Lighting Product Groups

since October 2008 Prior to that he was Vice President of Interiors Lighting and Global Manufacturing

Operations since July 2007 Vice President Global Manufacturing Operations Quality MPL and

Business Practices since October 2005 and Vice President North America Manufacturing Operations

since joining the Company in August 2005 Before joining Visteon Mr GohI served as Senior Vice

President of North American Operations for Tower Automotive since August 2004 and Vice President

North American Operations for Lear Corporation since 2001

Joy Greenway has been Visteons Vice President and President Climate Product Group since October

2008 Prior to that she was Vice President Climate Product Group since August 2005 Director

Powertrain since March 2002 and Director of Visteons Ford truck customer business group since

April 2001 She joined Visteon in 2000 as Director of Fuel Storage and Delivery Strategic Business Unit

Steve Meszaros has been Visteons Vice President and President Electronics Product Group since

October 2008 Prior to that he was Vice President Electronics Product Group since August 2005 and

Managing Director China Operations and General Manager Yanfeng Visteon since February 2001 Prior

to that he was based in Europe where he was responsible for Visteons interior systems business in the

United Kingdom and Germany since 1999

Michael Widgren has been Visteons Vice President Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

since May 2007 Prior to that he was Assistant Corporate Controller since joining the Company in October

2005 Before joining Visteon Mr Widgren served as Chief Accounting Officer for Federal-Mogul

Corporation

PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Prior to March 2009 the Companys common stock was listed on the New York Stock Exchange

NYSE under the trading symbol VC On March 2009 the Companys common stock was

suspended from trading on the NYSE and began trading over-the-counter under the symbol VSTN

As of March 26 2009 the Company had 130482861 shares of its common stock $1 .00 par value

outstanding which were owned by 96328 shareholders of record The table below shows the high and low

sales prices for the Companys common stock as reported by the NYSE for each quarterly period for the

last two years

2008

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Common stock price per share

High $4.39 $5.03 $3.78 $2.31

Low $3.02 $2.63 $1.93 $0.27

2007

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Common stock price per share

High $9.24 $10.08 $8.08 $6.35

Low $7.56 7.53 $4.66 $3.84
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ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES Continued

On February 2005 the Companys Board of Directors suspended the Companys quarterly cash

dividend on its common stock Accordingly no dividends were paid by the Company during the years

ended December 31 2008 or 2007 The Board evaluates the Companys dividend policy based on all

relevant factors The Companys credit agreements limit the amount of cash payments for dividends that

may be made Additionally the ability of the Companys subsidiaries to transfer assets is subject to various

restrictions including regulatory requirements and governmental restraints Refer to Note 10 Non-
Consolidated Affiliates to the Companys consolidated financial statements included in Item Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The following table summarizes information relating to purchases made by or on behalf of the Company or

an affiliated purchaser of shares of the Companys common stock during the fourth quarter of 2008

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum number
Total Number or Approximate

of Shares or Units Dollar Value
Total Average Purchased as Part of Shares or Units

Number of Price Paid of Publicly that May Yet Be
Shares or Units per Share Announced Plans Purchased Under the

Period Purchased1 or Unit or Programs Plans or Programs2

October 2008 to

October 31 2008

November 12008 to

November 30 2008

December 2008 to

December 31 2008 732 0.56 1650000

Total 732 $0.56 1650000

This column includes only shares surrendered to the Company by employees to satisfy tax withholding obligations in connection

with the vesting of restricted share awards made pursuant to the Visteon Corporation 2004 Incentive Plan and/or the Visteon

Corporation Employees Equity Incentive Plan

On December12 2007 the Board of Directors of the Company authorized the open market purchases of up to two million shares

of the Companys common stock during the subsequent 24 months to be used solely to satisfy obligations under the Companys

employee benefit programs
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ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES Continued

The following information in Item is not deemed to be soliciting material or be filed with the SEC or

subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Exchange Act or to the

liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act and will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into

any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act except to the extent the Company

specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing

The following graph compares the cumulative total return on the Companys common stock over five year

period with the cumulative total return on the Standard and Poors 500 Composite Index and the Standard

and Poors Supercomposite Auto Parts Equipment Index

The graph assumes an initial investment of $100 and reinvestment of cash dividends The comparisons in

this table are required by the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not intended to forecast or be

indicative of possible future performance of the Companys common stock or the referenced indices

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return

12/31/06

2006

83.46

134.22

84.50

2007

43.21

141.59

102.56

2008

3.44

89.80

48.83

$200

$150

$100

$50

12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05

--- SP 500visteon A-- SP Auto Parts

12/31/07

Visteon Corporation

SP 500

SP 500 Auto Parts

12/31/08

December 31

2003 2004 2005

$100.00 96.16 61.61

100.00 110.73 116.10

100.00 100.79 80.56
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents information from the Companys consolidated financial statements for each of

the five years ended December 31 This information should be read in conjunction with Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data included under Items and respectively of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Dollars in Millions Except Per Share Amounts

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales $9544 $11275 $11256 $16750 $18354

Gross margin 459 573 753 544 882

Net loss from continuing operations before

change in accounting and extraordinary

item 681 348 145 262 1537
Loss income from discontinued operations

net of tax 24 22
Net loss before change in accounting and

extraordinary item 681 372 167 270 1536
Cumulative effect of change in accounting net

oftax

Net loss before extraordinary item 681 372 171 270 1536
Extraordinary item net of tax

Net loss 681 372 163 270 $1536

Basic and diluted per share data

Loss from continuing operations before change
in accounting and extraordinary item 5.26 2.69 1.13 2.08 12.27

Loss income from discontinued operations

net of tax 0.18 0.17 0.06 0.01

Loss before change in accounting and

extraordinary item 5.26 2.87 1.30 2.14 $12.26

Cumulative effect of change in accounting net

of tax 0.03

Loss before extraordinary item 5.26 2.87 1.33 2.14 12.26

Extraordinary item net of tax 0.06

Basic and diluted loss per share $5.26 2.87 1.27 2.14 $12.26

Cash dividends per share 0.24

Balance Sheet Data

Total assets $5248 7205 6938 6736 $10292

Total debt $2762 2840 2228 1994 2021

Total deficit/equity 887 90 188 48 320

Statement of Cash Flows Data

Cash used by provided from operating

activities 116 293 281 417 418

Cash used by investing activities 208 177 337 231 782
Cash used by provided from financing

activities 193 547 214 51 135
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Managements Discussion and Analysis MDA is intended to help the reader understand the results of

operations financial condition and cash flows of Visteon Corporation Visteon or the Company MDA
is provided as supplement to and should be read in conjunction with the Companys consolidated

financial statements and related notes appearing in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Description of the Business

Visteon is leading global supplier of climate interiors electronics and other automotive systems
modules and components to vehicle manufacturers as well as the automotive aftermarket The

Company sells to the worlds largest vehicle manufacturers OEMs including BMW Chrysler LLC
Daimler AG Ford General Motors Honda Hyundia/Kia Nissan PSA Peugeot Citroºn Renault Toyota

and Volkswagen The Company has broad network of manufacturing technical engineering and joint

venture operations throughout the world supported by approximately 33500 employees dedicated to the

design development manufacture and support of its product offering and its global customers

The Company conducts its business in the automotive sector which is labor and capital intensive

industry that is characterized by highly competitive conditions low growth and cyclicality Accordingly the

financial performance of the industry is highly sensitive to changes in overall economic conditions During

2008 weakened economic conditions largely attributable to the global credit crisis and erosion of

consumer confidence negatively impacted the automotive sector on global basis Significant factors

including the deterioration of housing values elevated fuel prices equity market volatility and rising

unemployment levels resulted in delayed purchases of durable consumer goods particularly highly

deliberated purchases such as automobiles Additionally the absence of available credit hindered

vehicle affordability forcing willing consumers out of the market globally Together these factors

combined to drive decline in demand for automobiles across substantially all geographies The

dramatic decrease in sales resulted in significant production cuts across substantially all OEMs during

the fourth quarter of 2008 which continued to persist into the first quarter of 2009

Market Conditions and Overview of 2008 Financial Results

Vehicle sales in North America were negatively impacted by severe declines in the United States where

seasonally adjusted annual sales fell by 18% to 13.2 million units in 2008 compared to 16.1 million units in

2007 Sales in the U.S started to slow during the first quarter of 2008 due to high fuel prices and the

weakness intensified in each successive quarter as crude oil prices reached all time highs during 2008 and

the economic picture worsened through the fourth quarter in connection with the credit crisis Additionally

increases in fuel prices during 2008 resulted in shift of U.S consumer preference away from sport utility

vehicles and trucks toward more fuel-efficient passenger cars These changes in consumer behavior not

only contributed to lower volumes in 2008 but also resulted in shift of product mix during 2008 to smaller

and more fuel efficient vehicles with lower margins

In Europe new vehicle registrations were 14.7 million units in 2008 compared to 16 million units in 2007 for

an 8% decrease During December 2008 new vehicle registrations in Europe were down 18% when

compared to December 2007 despite two additional working days in 2008 In addition to recessionary

economic conditions and the credit crisis auto demand in Europe has been negatively impacted by

reduced vehicle affordability resulting from elevated fuel prices and higher carbon emissions taxes while

uncertainty related to pending national emissions tax schemes has resulted in further delays in purchase

decisions
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS Continued

The global credit crisis and weakening global economy also impacted Asia but the impact was tempered in

comparison to North America and Europe In China the sales growth rate of passenger cars and

commercial vehicles declined in 2008 representing the slowest rate of growth in years In Japan

2008 vehicle sales also decreased compared with 2007 Both China and Japan experienced double digit

declines in the month of December 2008 as compared to December 2007 South Korean automakers were

able to offset lower sales in their domestic markets with higher export sales

During 2008 the Companys product sales were $9.1 billion representing decrease of $1.6 billion or 15%

when compared to product sales for the same period of 2007 This decline was due to the impact of

divestitures plant closures and lower customer production volumes particularly during the fourth quarter

of 2008 During 2008 the Companys product sales were down across all regions including 33% in North

America 11% in Europe and 4% in Asia The Companys product sales in North America were significantly

impacted by lower Ford and Nissan production in the region for 2008 Ford North America production

declined 605000 units or 21% during 2008 including decline of 212000 units in the fourth quarter alone

Nissan North America truck production declined 148000 units or 47% for 2008 including decline of

67000 units in the fourth quarter of 2008 In Europe the Companys product sales were significantly

impacted by lower PSA production in the region for 2008 PSA Europe production declined 202000 units

or 11% for 2008 including 141000 units in the fourth quarter of 2008 The decline in the Companys

product sales for Asia was primarily due to overall softening of the global economy driven by the global

credit crisis

The Companys gross margin was $459 million in 2008 compared with $573 million in 2007 representing

decrease of $114 million Lower customer production volume and unfavorable product mix primarily in

North America and Europe resulted in $299 million gross margin reduction while plant divestitures and

closures further reduced gross margin by $135 million These reductions were partially offset by net cost

performance of $232 million reflecting efficiencies achieved through restructuring actions cost reduction

efforts and commercial agreements Additional partial offsets include favorable currency of $46 million and

gains associated with pension and other postretirement employee benefits OPEB curtailments and

settlements During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Companys gross margin was negative $10 million

principally due to the rapid and significant decrease in OEM production volumes which outpaced the

Companys substantial cost reduction efforts

The Company concluded that significant operating losses resulting from the deterioration of market

conditions and related production volumes in the fourth quarter of 2008 represented an indicator that the

carrying amount of the Companys long lived assets may not be recoverable Based on the results of the

Companys assessment which was based upon the fair value of the affected assets using appraisals

management estimates and discounted cash flow calculations the Company recorded an impairment

charge of approximately $200 million to reduce the net book value of Interiors long-lived assets considered

to be held for use to their estimated fair value Additionally the Company recorded valuation allowance

of $22 million for deferred tax assets in Brazil Further deterioration of market conditions resulting in

sustained adverse impact on the global automotive sector could reduce the Companys sales and harm its

results of operations cash flows and financial position including but not limited to significant operating

losses asset impairments deferred tax asset valuation allowances and reduced availability under asset

backed credit arrangements
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Liquidity Matters

The Companys cash and liquidity needs are impacted by the level variability and timing of its customers

worldwide vehicle production which varies based on economic conditions and market shares in major

markets Current industry and market conditions pose significant challenges to the whole of the global

automotive sector particularly with respect to liquidity Pressures associated with rapidly decreasing

sales growing inventories severely constrained credit markets rising costs global competition and

changing consumer preferences have resulted in significant cash usage and evaporation of available

liquidity sources

The deterioration in market conditions in 2008 was compounded by the rapid pace at which it occurred as

evidenced by double digit year-over-year declines in fourth quarter 2008 automotive sector sales in North

America Europe China Korea and South America Additionally during the fourth quarter of 2008 two of

the three largest North America domiciled OEMs forecasted that they would reach minimum operating

levels of cash by the end of December 2008 and would likely run out of cash in 2009 absent

U.S Government financial assistance

In December 2008 the executive branch of the U.S government extended $17.4 billion of bridge loans to

General Motors and Chrysler subject to various terms and conditions that if not met by March 31 2009

may require repayment of the bridge loan funds On February 17 2009 and in accordance with the terms of

the bridge loans General Motors and Chrysler submitted updated restructuring plans for the period

2009-2014 designed to demonstrate long-term viability to the U.S Department of Treasury On March 30

2009 the U.S government declined to provide further long-term financial support to General Motors and

Chrysler instead granted 60 day extension to General Motors to submit an acceptable restructuring plan

and 30 day extension to Chrysler to complete combination with Fiat SpA The U.S government offered

to provide working capital support to General Motors during the 60 day extension period and offered to

provide up to an additional $6 billion of federal loan funding to Chrysler to support the merger with Fiat SpA
if such merger discussions are successful within the 30 day extension period Additionally the

U.S government announced that it will guarantee General Motors and Chrysler product warranties to

reassure consumers Failure of these companies to secure necessary funding to support ongoing

operations may cause significant disruption in the automotive sector and have severe negative

impact on the U.S economy

The Companys consolidated net sales during the year ended December 31 2008 decreased $1.7 billion

or 15% when compared to the same period of 2007 which included decrease in net sales for the fourth

quarter of 2008 of $1 .2 billion The Companys gross margin for the year ended December 31 2008

decreased by $1 14 million or 20% when compared to the same period of 2007 which included decrease

in gross margin for the fourth quarter of 2008 of $212 million Visteon used $116 million of cash for

operating activities for the year ended December 31 2008 representing additional use of $409 million as

compared to 2007 which includes an incremental use of operating cash in the fourth quarter of 2008 of

approximately $300 million The significant deterioration of financial results in the fourth quarter of 2008

including net sales gross margin and operating cash primarily represents the impact of significantly lower

OEM production volumes The Companydoes not anticipate that these conditions will improve significantly

in the near term
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During 2008 the Company continued to execute restructuring actions designed to reduce costs and

improve related cash flows including activities under the multi-year improvement plan and other cost

reduction plans The multi-year improvement plan which commenced in 2006 was completed during

2008 and addressed total of 30 underperforming and non-strategic facilities and businesses In

September 2008 the Company commenced program designed to reduce its salaried employee

census by upwards of 800 positions to reduce hourly headcount by about 2000 and to eliminate

certain pension and other postretirement employee benefits In November 2008 the Company

implemented additional employee cost reductions including freeze on hiring and travel suspension

of 401k company match elimination of salary increases for 2009 elimination of car program benefits for

executives and reduction of such benefits for other eligible employees mandatory unpaid shutdown in the

U.S for December 22 and 23 2008 and elimination of paid 2009 winter holidays from December 28

through December 31 2009

Despite aggressive actions taken to reduce costs in 2008 the rate of such reductions did not keep pace

with that of the rapidly deteriorating market conditions and related decline in automotive sales and

production volumes in the fourth quarter of 2008 Therefore in January 2009 the Company implemented

short workweek schedule for about 2000 U.S salaried employees and corresponding 20% decrease in

regular base salaries Starting February 2009 U.S salaried employees resumed standard five-day

work schedule and as further cost-savings action regular base salaries as of December31 2008 were

reduced by an amount ranging from 10% to 2% based on level Certain of the actions implemented in the

fourth quarter of 2008 and in January 2009 are intended to preserve cash in light of the difficult market and

industry conditions However the full effect of these actions may not be realized until later in 2009 and may
not be sufficient or timely enough to address the negative financial impacts associated with the current and

projected market conditions

Due to the global credit crisis the current state of credit and capital markets is severely constrained and

access to additional sources of funding are significantly limited Additionally access to and the cost of

borrowing depend in part on the Companys credit ratings which are currently below investment grade

Moodys current corporate rating of the Company is Ca with negative outlook and the SGL rating is

The rating on the 2010 and 2014 senior unsecured debt is the rating on the 2016 senior guaranteed

unsecured debt is Ca and the rating on the senior secured term loan is Caa2 The current corporate rating

of the Company by SP is CCC with negative outlook SPs rating on the senior unsecured debt is CCC-

and the rating on the senior secured term loan is B- Fitchs current rating on the Companys senior secured

debt is with negative outlook

Current credit and capital market conditions combined with the Companys credit ratings and recent history of

operating losses and negative cash flows as well as projected industry conditions are likely to significantly

restrict the Companys ability to access capital markets in the near term and any such access would likely be

at an increased cost and under more restrictive terms and conditions Further such constraints may also affect

the Companys commercial arrangements and payment terms Absent access to additional liquidity from credit

markets which remain severely constrained or other sources of external financial support the Company

expects to be at or near minimum levels of cash required to operate the business

As of December 31 2008 the Companys consolidated cash balances totaled $1.2 billion and

approximately 59% of these consolidated cash balances were held within the U.S As the Companys
operating profitability has become more concentrated with its foreign subsidiaries and joint ventures the

Companys cash generated from operations and related balances located outside of the U.S continue to

be significant The Companys ability to efficiently access cash balances in certain foreign jurisdictions is

subject to local regulatory and statutory requirements

The Company had additional sources of liquidity available as of December 31 2008 of $352 million under

various financial arrangements as described below
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Amended escrow account In connection with the ACH Transactions Ford paid $400 million into an escrow

account for use by the Company to restructure its businesses subject to the terms and conditions of the

Escrow Agreement dated October 2005 among the Company Ford and Deutsche Bank Trust Company

Americas Cash in the escrow account is invested at the direction of the Company in high quality short-term

investments and related investment earnings are credited to the account as earned

The Escrow Agreement provides that the Company will be reimbursed from the escrow account for the

first $250 million of reimbursable restructuring costs as defined in the Escrow Agreement and up to one

half of the next $300 million of such costs Investment earnings of $28 million became available to

reimburse the Companys restructuring costs following the use of the first $250 million of available funds

In August 2008 and pursuant to the Amended Escrow Agreement Ford contributed an additional

$50 million into the escrow account The Amended Escrow Agreement provides that such additional

funds are available to fund restructuring and other qualified costs on 100% basis As of December31

2008 the Company had received cumulative reimbursements from the escrow account of $417 million

and $68 million was available for reimbursement pursuant to the terms of the Amended Escrow

Agreement

Asset securitization Availability of funding under the Companys European Securitization facility

depends primarily upon the amount of trade account receivables reduced by outstanding

borrowings under the program and other characteristics of those receivables that affect their

eligibility such as bankruptcy or the grade of the obligor delinquency and excessive concentration

As of December 31 2008 approximately $98 million of the Companys transferred receivables were

considered eligible for borrowing under this facility $92 million was outstanding and $6 million was

available for funding

U.S asset-backed lending facility ABL Facility The Companys ABL Facility allows for available

borrowings of up to $350 million The amount of availability at any time is dependent upon various

factors including outstanding letters of credit the amount of eligible receivables inventory and property

and equipment Borrowings under the ABL Facility bear interest based on variable rate interest option

selected at the time of borrowing The ABL Facility expires on August 14 2011 As of December 31

2008 the ABL Facility availability was $174 million with $50 million of available borrowings after

$75 million of borrowings and $49 million of obligations under letters of credit In January 2009 the

Company borrowed an additional $30 million under the ABL Facility

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the ABL Facility the Administrative Agent is permitted at its

discretion to reduce the borrowing base under the ABL Facility On March 17 2009 the Company was

notified by the Administrative Agent at its sole discretion of $30 million reduction to the Companys

borrowing base to reflect the impairment of long-lived assets Accordingly the Company had no available

liquidity under the ABL Facility effective March 17 2009

Other As of December 31 2008 the Company had availability on various other credit facilities of

approximately $228 million Certain of these facilities are related to number of the Companys
non-U.S operations portion of which are payable in non-U.S currencies including but not limited

to the Euro Korean Won and Brazilian Real

During February 2009 auto suppliers in North America represented by two trade groups requested

financial support from the U.S government On March 19 2009 the U.S Treasury Department announced

that it will provide up to $5 billion in financing to certain auto parts suppliers under the governments

Troubled Assets Relief Program The financing program will be run through U.S automakers and suppliers

to those companies would have to agree to terms of the government-backed protection and pay fee for

the right to participate The timing amount and long-term impact of the Companys participation in such

financing program if any is highly uncertain as is the extent to which such financing will be made available

on terms commercially acceptable to the Company
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The Company continues to develop and execute as appropriate additional actions designed to generate

liquidity including customer accommodation agreements asset sales cash repatriation and further cost

reductions including employee census reductions facility closures and business exits The success of the

Companys liquidity plans depends on global economic conditions levels of automotive sales and

production trade creditor business conduct and occurrence of no other material adverse

developments The Companys liquidity plans are also subject to number of risks and uncertainties

including those identified above and those identified under Item Risk Factors of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

In consideration of current and projected market conditions overall automotive sector instability and

Visteons recent history of operating losses and cash usage projections indicate that even with the

successful implementation of additional liquidity actions the Companys liquidity will be at or near

minimum cash levels required to operate the business during 2009 Additionally various macro-level

factors outside of the Companys control may further negatively impact the Companys ability to meet its

obligations as they come due Such factors include but are not limited to the following

Sustained weakness and/or continued deterioration of global economic conditions

Continued automotive sales and production at levels consistent with or lower than fourth quarter 2008

Failure of U.S OEMs to meet the necessary terms and conditions of U.S government bridge loans

Bankruptcy of any significant customer resulting in delayed payments and/or non-payment of amounts

receivable

Bankruptcy of any significant supplier resulting in delayed shipments of materials necessary for

production

Actions of trade creditors to accelerate payments for goods and services provided

Other events of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of short or long-term debt obligations

Despite the actions management has taken or plans to take there can be no assurance that factors

outside of the Companys control including but not limited to the financial condition of OEMs or other

automotive suppliers will not cause further significant financial distress for Visteon Additionally while the

Company has already taken significant restructuring and cost reduction measures and plans to implement

further actions designed to provide additional liquidity there can be no assurance that such actions will

provide sufficient amount of funds or that such actions will supply funds in timely manner necessary to

meet the Companys ongoing liquidity requirements Accordingly there exists substantial doubt as to the

Companys ability to operate as going concern and meet its obligations as they come due

Going Concern Considerations

Pursuant to affirmative covenants contained in the agreements associated with the Companys senior

secured facilities and European Securitization the Facilities the Company is required to provide audited

annual financial statements within prescribed period of time after the end of each fiscal year without

going concern audit report or like qualification or exception On March 31 2009 the Companys

independent registered public accounting firm included an explanatory paragraph in its audit report on

the Companys 2008 consolidated financial statements indicating substantial doubt about the Companys

ability to continue as going concern The receipt of such an explanatory statement constitutes default

under the Facilities On March 31 2009 the Company entered into amendments and waivers the

Waivers with the lenders under the Facilities which provide for waivers of such defaults for limited

periods of time as more fully described in Item 9B Other Information of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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The Company is exploring various strategic and financing alternatives and has retained legal and financial

advisors to assist in this regard The Company has commenced discussions with lenders under the

Facilities including an ad hoc committee of lenders under its senior secured term loan the Ad Hoc

Committee regarding the restructuring of the Companys capital structure Additionally the Company

has commenced discussions with certain of its major customers to address its liquidity and capital

requirements Any such restructuring may affect the terms of the Facilities other debt and common stock

and may be affected through negotiated modifications to the related agreements or through other forms of

restructurings including under court supervision pursuant to voluntary bankruptcy filing under

Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code There can be no assurance that an agreement regarding

any such restructuring will be obtained on acceptable terms with the necessary parties or at all If an

acceptable agreement is not obtained an event of default under the Facilities would occur as of the

expiration of the Waivers excluding any extensions thereof and the lenders would have the right to

accelerate the obligations thereunder Acceleration of the Companys obligations under the Facilities

would constitute an event of default under the senior unsecured notes and would likely result in the

acceleration of these obligations as well In any such event the Company may be required to seek

protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code

The aforementioned resulted in the current classification of substantially all of the Companys long-term

debt as current liabilities in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2008

Results of Operations

2008 Compared with 2007

Sales Gross Margin

2008 2007 Change 2008 2007 Change

Dollars in Millions

Climate $2994 3370 376 $207 $233 26
Electronics 3251 3646 395 193 276 83
Interiors 2748 3183 435 27 75 48
Other 505 1178 673 29 26

Eliminations 421 656 235

Total products 9077 10721 1644 456 587 131
Services 467 554 87

Total segments 9544 11275 1731 459 593 134

Reconciling Items

Corporate 20 20

Total consolidated $9544 $11275 $1731 $459 $573 $114

Net Sales

The Companys consolidated Net Sales during the year ended December31 2008 decreased $1.7 billion

or 15% when compared to the same period of 2007 Plant divestitures and closures accounted for

$1.0 billion of the decline while production volume and mix further deteriorated sales by $0.8 billion

primarily in North America and Europe across all key customers Favorable currency offset net customer

pricing changes
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Net sales for Climate were $2.99 billion in 2008 compared with $3.37 billion in 2007 representing

decrease of $376 million or 11% This decrease included $147 million related to the closure of the

Companys Connersville Indiana facility unfavorable production volumes related to key customers in

North America of $95 million and net customer price reductions Additionally unfavorable currency of

$153 million in Asia Pacific primarily related to the Korean Won resulted in sales reduction These

decreases were partially offset by net new business and vehicle production volume and mix in Asia of

$148 million primarily related to Hyundai/Kia and favorable currency in Europe of $48 million primarily due

to the strengthening of the Euro

Net sales for Electronics were $3.25 billion in 2008 compared with $3.65 billion in 2007 representing

decrease of $395 million or 11% This decrease included $565 decline related to production volumes and

mix and the impact of past customer sourcing decisions across all regions and key customers and net

customer price reductions Favorable currency of $213 million primarily related to the strengthening of the

Euro was partial offset

Net sales for Interiors were $2.75 billion in 2008 compared with $3.18 billion in 2007 representing

decrease of $435 million or 14% This decrease includes lower customer production volumes and mix of

$41 million primarily related to Nissan in North America and Nissan/Renault and PSA in Europe

$91 million related to the Halewood Divestiture and closure of the Companys Chicago Illinois facility

$76 million due to unfavorable currency in Asia and net customer price reductions These decreases were

partially offset by favorable currency of $121 million in Europe and revenue associated with customer

agreements at certain of the Companys UK operations

Net sales for Other were $505 million in 2008 compared with $1.18 billion in 2007 representing

decrease of $673 million or 57% The decrease was primarily attributable to divestitures and plant closures

of $635 million including the divestiture of the Companys chassis operations the Bedford Indiana plant

closure the Visteon Powertrain Control Systems India divestiture and the North America Aftermarket

divestiture Customer production volumes and mix and the impact of past sourcing decisions further

reduced sales This reduction was partially offset by revenue associated with customer agreements at

certain of the Companys UK operations

Services revenues primarily relate to information technology engineering administrative and other

business support services provided by the Company to ACH under the terms of various agreements

with ACH Such services are generally provided at an amount that approximates cost Total services

revenues were $467 in 2008 compared with $554 million in 2007 Services revenues and related costs

include approximately $33 million related to contractual reimbursement from Ford under the Amended

Reimbursement Agreement for costs associated with the separation of ACH leased employees no longer

required to provide such services The decrease in services revenue represents lower ACH utilization of

the Companys services in connection with the terms of various agreements

Gross Margin

The Companys gross margin was $459 million in 2008 compared with $573 million in 2007 representing

decrease of $114 million Lower production volume and unfavorable product mix primarily in

North America and Europe resulted in $299 million gross margin reduction Gross margin declines

also included $135 million related to plant closures divestitures and past customer sourcing decisions and

$14 million of net commercial and other settlements These reductions were partially offset by net cost

performance of $240 million reflecting efficiencies achieved through restructuring actions cost reduction

efforts and commercial agreements Additional partial offsets include $46 million of favorable currency

$34 million of gains associated with pension and OPEB curtailments and settlements and $13 million

reduction in accelerated depreciation year-over-year
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Gross margin for Climate was $207 million in 2008 compared with $233 million in 2007 representing

decrease of $26 million This decrease included the non-recurrence of $51 million of 2007 OPEB
curtailment gains $34 million related to lower customer production volumes primarily in North America

and Europe and $17 million related to the closure of the Connersville Indiana facility These decreases

were partially offset by $31 million related to net cost efficiencies achieved through manufacturing

performance purchasing improvement efforts and restructuring activities $17 million related to the

non-recurrence of 2007 accelerated depreciation and amortization $17 million of 2008 building sales

and $8 million of 2008 pension and OPEB curtailments

Gross margin for Electronics was $193 million in 2008 compared with $276 million in 2007 representing

decrease of $83 million This decrease includes $169 million related to lower production volumes across all

regions and past customer sourcing decisions These reductions were partially offset by $36 million related

to net cost efficiencies achieved through manufacturing performance and restructuring efforts $27 million

related to 2008 OPEB curtailments and $24 million related to favorable currency

Gross margin for Interiors was $27 million in 2008 compared with $75 million in 2007 for reduction of

$48 million This reduction included $103 million from lower customer production volumes primarily in

North America and Europe and $43 million for the non-recurrence of 2007 favorable customer settlements

and building sales These reductions were partially offset by $70 million of net cost efficiencies achieved

through manufacturing performance restructuring savings and purchasing improvement efforts

$11 million related to 2008 customer settlement $10 million related to favorable currency

$1 million related to lower accelerated depreciation and other costs and revenue associated with

customer agreements at certain of the Companys UK operations

Gross margin for Other was $29 million in 2008 compared with $3 million in 2007 for an increase of

$26 million The effect of divestitures plant closures and lower production volumes was more than offset by

the restructuring savings resulting from those actions and revenue associated with customer agreements

at certain of the Companys UK operations

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses were $553 million in 2008 compared with $636 million in

2007 representing reduction of $83 million The improvement is primarily attributable to $77 million of

cost efficiencies resulting from the Companys ongoing restructuring activities net of economics and the

implementation costs associated with those restructuring activities Additional decreases in selling

general and administrative expenses included $20 million decrease in compensation expense

related to incentive compensation programs and lower costs associated with the European

Securitization facility These improvements were partially offset by the non-recurrence of $15 million

favorable customer bad debt recovery in 2007

Restructuring Expenses and Reimbursement from Escrow Account

The Company recorded restructuring expenses of $147 million for the year ended December 31 2008

compared to $152 million for the same period in 2007 The Company recorded reimbursement for such

costs of $1 13 million and $142 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

pursuant to the terms of the Amended Escrow Agreement

The following is summary of the Companys consolidated restructuring reserves and related activity for

the year ended December 31 2008 including amounts related to its discontinued operations

Substantially all of the Companys restructuring expenses are related to employee severance and

termination benefit costs
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Interiors Climate Electronics Other Total

Dollars in Millions

December 31 2007 $58 $23 $24 $112

Expenses 42 20 82 147

Exchange

Utilization 48 40 98 192

December 31 2008 $49 $3 $4 $8 64

Included in the 2008 expense is $107 million for additional actions under the previously announced multi-

year improvement plan Significant actions under the multi-year improvement plan include the following

$33 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with approximately

290 employees to reduce the Companys salaried workforce in higher cost countries

$23 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with approximately 20

salaried and 250 hourly employees at European Interiors facility

$18 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with 55 employees at the

Companys Other products facility located in Swansea UK

$9 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs related to approximately 100 hourly and

salaried employees at certain manufacturing facilities located in the UK

$6 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with approximately

40 employees at European Interiors facility

$5 million of contract termination charges related to the closure of European Other facility

$5 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs related to the closure of European

Interiors facility

Utilization for 2008 includes $131 million of payments for severance and other employee termination

benefits $46 million of special termination benefits reclassified to pension and other postretirement

employee benefit liabilities where such payments are made from the Companys benefit plans and

$15 million in payments related to contract termination and equipment relocation costs

The Company has incurred $382 million in cumulative restructuring costs related to the multi-year

improvement plan including $156 million $129 million $66 million and $31 million for the Other

Interiors Climate and Electronics product groups respectively Substantially all restructuring expenses

recorded to date relate to employee severance and termination benefit costs and are classified as

Restructuring expenses on the consolidated statements of operations As of December 31 2008

restructuring reserves related to the multi-year improvement plan are approximately $54 million including

$35 million and $19 million classified as other current liabilities and other non-current liabilities

respectively The Company estimates that the total cost associated with the multi-year improvement

plan will be approximately $475 million
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In September 2008 the Company commenced program designed to fundamentally realign consolidate

and rationalize the Companys administrative organization structure on global basis through various

voluntary and involuntary employee separation actions Related employee severance and termination

benefit costs of $26 million were recorded during 2008 associated with approximately 320 salaried

employees in the United States and 100 salaried employees in other countries for which severance and

termination benefits were deemed probable and estimable The Company expects to record additional

costs related to this global program in future periods when elements of the plan are finalized and the timing

of activities and the amount of related costs are not likely to change The Companyalso recorded $9 million

of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with approximately 850 hourly and 60

salaried employees at North American Climate facility As of December31 2008 restructuring reserves

related to these programs were approximately $10 million

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company concluded that significant operating losses resulting from the deterioration of market

conditions and related production volumes in the fourth quarter of 2008 represented an indicator that the

carrying amount of the Companys long lived assets may not be recoverable Based on the results of the

Companys assessment which was based upon the fair value of the affected assets using third party

appraisals management estimates and discounted cash flow calculations the Company recorded an

impairment charge of approximately $200 million to reduce the net book value of Interiors long-lived assets

considered to be held for use to their estimated fair value

On June 30 2008 Visteon UK Limited an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company transferred

certain assets related to its chassis manufacturing operation located in Swansea United Kingdom to

Visteon Swansea Limited company incorporated in England and wholly-owned subsidiary of Visteon

UK Limited Effective July 2008 Visteon UK Limited sold the entire share capital of Visteon Swansea

Limited to Linamar UK Holdings Inc wholly-owned subsidiary of Linamar Corporation for nominal cash

consideration The Swansea operation which was included within the Other product group generated

negative gross margin of approximately $40 million on sales of approximately $80 million during 2007 The

Company recorded asset impairment and loss on divestiture of approximately $23 million in connection

with the transaction including $16 million of losses on the Visteon Swansea Limited share capital sale and

$7 million of asset impairment charges

During the first quarter of 2008 the Company announced the sale of its North American-based aftermarket

underhood and remanufacturing operations NA Aftermarket including facilities located in Sparta

Tennessee and Reynosa Mexico together the NA Aftermarket Divestiture The NA Aftermarket

manufactured starters and alternators radiators compressors and condensers and also

remanufactureci steering pumps and gears These operations recorded sales for the year ended

December 31 2007 of approximately $133 million and generated negative gross margin of

approximately $16 million The Company recorded total losses of $46 million on the NA Aftermarket

Divestiture including an asset impairment charge of $21 million and losses on disposition of $25 million

The Company also recorded asset impairments and loss on divestitures of $6 million during 2008 in

connection with other divestiture activities including the sale of its Interiors operation located in Halewood

UK

Interest

Interest expense was $215 millionfor the year ended December31 2008 compared to $225 millionfor the

year ended December 31 2007 Interest expense decreased $10 million due to lower borrowing rates

partially offset by higher debt levels when compared to 2007 Interest income was $46 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 compared to $61 million for the year ended December 31 2007 Interest

income decreased $15 million due to lower investment rates partially offset by higher average cash

balances in 2008
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Income Taxes

The income tax provisions for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 reflect income tax expense

related to those countries where the Company is profitable accrued withholding taxes certain non

recurring and other discrete itemsand the inability to record tax benefit for pre-tax losses in the U.S and

certain foreign countries to the extent not offset by other categories of income in those jurisdictions The

companys 2008 provision for income taxes of $1 16 million represents net increase of $96 million when

compared with 2007 as follows

Non-recurrence of $91 million tax benefit recorded in 2007 related to offsetting pre-tax operating losses

against current year net pre-tax income from other categories of income or loss in particular pre-tax

other comprehensive income attributable to pension and OPEB obligations and foreign currency

translation

$38 million attributable to changes in earnings between jurisdictions where the Company is profitable

and accrues income and withholding tax and beginning in 2008 includes withholding tax

related to the Companys undistributed earnings not considered permanently reinvested from its

non-U.S unconsolidated affiliates

$22 million attributable to deferred tax asset valuation allowance related to the Companys operations

in Brazil recorded in consideration of negative evidence associated with the Companys ability to

generate the necessary taxable earnings to recover such deferred tax assets

Non-recurrence of $18 million net tax benefit recorded in 2007 resulting from the Companys redemption

of its ownership interest in newly formed Korean company as part of legal restructuring of its climate

control operations in Asia In connection with this redemption the Company concluded that portion of

its earnings in Halla Climate Control Korea 70% owned affiliate of the Company were permanently

reinvested resulting in $30 million reduction of previously accrued withholding taxes This benefit was

partially offset by $12 million of income tax expense related to taxable gain from the restructuring

These 2008 year-over-year increases in tax expense items were partially offset by decreases attributable

to the following items

$60 million decrease in unrecognized tax benefits including interest and penalties reflects ongoing

process improvements in connection with the Companys transfer pricing initiatives as well the receipt of

an advance pricing agreement from Hungary during the fourth quarter of 2008 both of which contributed

to the overall decrease in unrecognized tax benefits year-over-year

Favorable tax law changes in 2008 resulted in tax benefits of $6 million which includes U.S legislation

enacted in July 2008 allowing the Company to record certain U.S research tax credits previously subject

to limitation as refundable In 2007 favorable tax law changes in Portugal which resulted in an $1 million

tax benefit were more than offset by unfavorable tax law changes in Mexico which resulted in $18 million

of additional tax expense
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2007 Compared with 2006

Sales Gross Margin

2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change

Dollars in Millions

Climate 3370 3123 247 $233 $170 63

Electronics 3646 3514 132 276 373 97
Interiors 3183 3059 124 75 65 10

Other 1178 1658 480 68 65
Eliminations 656 648

Total products 10721 10706 15 587 676 89
Services 554 550

Total segments 11275 11256 19 593 681 88
Reconciling Items

Corporate 20 72 92

Total consolidated $11275 $11256 19 $573 $753 $180

Net Sales

The Companys consolidated net sales during the year ended December 31 2007 were essentially flat

when compared to the same period of 2006 Changes in currency resulted in an increase of $569 million

primarily related to the strengthening of the Euro Korean Won Brazil Real and British Pound during 2007

Divestitures and closures reduced sales by $675 million and included the Companys chassis operations

the Chennai India operation and the Chicago Illinois facility North America sales volumes decreased by

$434 million related to lower Ford and Nissan volumes in North America and the result of customer

sourcing actions primarily in the Electronics product group Sales in Asia increased $537 million including

$269 million of directed source content related to Hyundai/Kia production and net new business wins

Higher Ford and Premium Auto Group production volumes in Europe contributed to an increase in sales of

$136 million

Net sales for Climate were $3.4 billion in 2007 compared with $3.1 billion in 2006 representing an

increase of $247 million or 8% Sales increased in Asia by $237 million principally attributable to new

business and higher production volumes primarily Hyundai/Kia Climate sales increased in Europe by

$68 million principally related to higher Ford vehicle production volumes Sales were lower in North

America by $121 million due to lower Ford North America vehicle production volume and unfavorable

product mix partially offset by new business Net customer price reductions were more than offset by

favorable currency of $153 million

Net sales for Electronics were $3.6 billion in 2007 compared with $3.5 billion in 2006 representing an

increase of $132 million or 4% Sales in 2007 included higher sales in Europe of $178 million due to

increased Ford vehicle production volumes partially offset by lower Ford North American vehicle

production volumes and adverse product mix related to past customer sourcing actions of

$191 million Net customer price reductions were more than offset by favorable currency of $198 million

Net sales for Interiors were $3.2 billion in 2007 compared with $3.1 billion in 2006 representing an

increase of $124 million or 4% Increased sales in Asia of $298 million primarily due to an increase in

directed source content for Hyundai/Kia production were partially offset by lower sales in North America of

$297 million primarily due to lower Ford and Nissan vehicle production volumes as well as the impact of

lost volume related to the closure of the Chicago Illinois facility Net customer price reductions were more

than offset by customer commercial settlements and favorable currency of $165 million
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Net salesfor Otherwere $1.2 billion in 2007 compared with $1.7 billion in 2006 representing decrease of

$480 million or 29% The decrease is largely attributable to the divestiture of the Companys chassis

operations which resulted in decrease of $390 million and the Chennai India divestiture which resulted

in decrease of $35 million Sales decreased by $95 million with reductions in all regions related to lower

vehicle production volumes and adverse product mix Net customer price reductions were more than offset

by favorable currency of $53 million

Services revenues relate to information technology engineering administrative and other business

support services provided by the Company under the terms of various transition agreements Such

services are generally provided at an amount that approximates cost Services revenues totaled

$554 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared with $550 million for the year ended

December 31 2006

Gross Margin

The Companys gross margin was $573 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared with

$753 million for the year ended December31 2006 representing decrease of $180 million or 24% The

decrease resulted from the following items

Non-recurrence of certain benefits recorded in 2006 including $72 million of postretirement benefit relief

related to the transfer of certain Visteon salaried employees to Ford commercial agreements of

$39 million and non-income tax reserve adjustments of $27 million

Non-recurrence of certain expense items recorded in 2006 including $1 million of employee benefit

curtailment expense included in cost of sales but reimbursed from the escrow account and $9 million

litigation settlement

Certain 2007 benefits including OPEB curtailment gains related to restructuring activities of $58 million

commercial agreements of $35 million and gains on the sale of land and buildings in the UK of

$24 million

Certain 2007 expense items including accelerated depreciation of $50 million resulting from the

Companys restructuring activities $23 million of employee benefit curtailment and settlement

expense included in cost of sales but reimbursed from the escrow account and $20 million of

pension settlement expenses related to previously closed Canadian facility

The divestiture of the Companys chassis operations resulted in reduction in gross margin of

$33 million

The remainder was related to vehicle production volume and mix past sourcing actions and customer

pricing partially offset by improved operating performance

Gross margin for Climate was $233 million in 2007 compared with $170 million in 2006 representing an

increase of $63 million or 37% Material and manufacturing cost reduction activities lower OPEB

expenses and restructuring savings were partially offset by customer pricing and increases in raw

material costs resulting in net increase in gross margin of $101 million Favorable currency

increased gross margin by $9 million These increases were partially offset by $47 million of

unfavorable vehicle and product mix lower vehicle production volumes in North America and

accelerated depreciation
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Gross margin for Electronics was $276 million in 2007 compared with $373 million in 2006 representing

decrease of $97 million or 26% Vehicle production volume and mix was unfavorable $125 million in North

America primarily related to lower Ford vehicle production volumes and the impact of past Ford sourcing

actions However vehicle production volume and mix was favorable $54 million in other regions primarily

in Europe reflecting increased Ford Europe vehicle production volume Accelerated depreciation related to

restructuring activities reduced gross margin by $20 million Material and manufacturing cost reduction

activities lower OPEB expenses and restructuring savings were more than offset by premium launch

costs net customer price reductions and increased raw material costs resulting in decrease in gross

margin of $28 million Favorable currency increased gross margin by $22 million

Gross margin for Interiors was $75 million in 2007 compared with $65 million in 2006 representing an

increase of $10 million or 15% Customer commercial settlements material and manufacturing cost

reduction activities lower OPEB expenses and restructuring savings were partially offset by customer

pricing and increases in raw material costs which resulted in net increase in gross margin of $8 million

Additionally the Companys Interiors operations recorded gain on the sale of building located in the UK
which increased gross margin by $12 million Favorable currency further increased gross margin by

$1 million These increases were partially offset by vehicle production volume and mix of $15 million

reflecting lower Ford and Nissan vehicle production volumes in North America facility partially offset by

increases in Europe related to Ford production volume and in Asia related to net new business

Accelerated depreciation related to restructuring activities reduced gross margin by $6 million

Gross margin for Otherwas $3 million in 2007 compared with $68 million in 2006 representing decrease

of $65 million or 96% This decrease includes unfavorable customer vehicle production volume and

product mix of $58 million $33 million related to the divestiture of the Companys chassis operations and

$12 million of net pension curtailment and settlement expense included in cost of sales but reimbursed

from the escrow account These decreases were partially offset by $16 million related to the net of material

and manufacturing cost reduction activities lower OPEB expense and restructuring savings partially

offset by customer price reductions and increases in raw material costs Additionally the gross margin

decrease for Other was partially offset by the non-recurrence of 2006 litigation settlement of $9 million

and the 2007 sale of buildings in the UK for $13 million

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

Selling general and administrative expenses were $636 million in 2007 compared with $713 million in

2006 representing decrease of $77 million or 11% The decrease resulted from $60 million in efficiency

actions primarily related to salaried headcount reductions implemented during the fourth quarter of 2006

and the first quarter of 2007 lower stock-based compensation expense of $22 million and $12 million of

lower bad debt and other expenses partially offset by $17 million of unfavorable currency

Restructuring Expenses and Reimbursement from Escrow Account

The Company recorded restructuring expenses of $162 million for the year ended December 31 2007

compared to $95 million for the same period in 2006 The Company recorded reimbursement for such

costs of $142 million and $104 million for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively

pursuant to the terms of the Escrow Agreement The following is summary of the Companys
consolidated restructuring reserves and related activity as of and for the year ended December 31

2007 including amounts related to discontinued operations Substantially all of the Companys

restructuring expenses are related to employee severance and termination benefit costs
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Interiors Climate Electronics Other Total

Dollars in Millions

December31 2006 $18 $21 $2 $12 53

Expenses 66 27 60 162

Utilization 26 25 48 103

December31 2007 $58 $23 $7 $24 $112

Substantially all restructuring expenses recorded in 2007 were related to the multi-year improvement plan

Significant restructuring actions under the multi-year improvement plan for the year ended December 31
2007 included the following

$31 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with the elimination of

approximately 300 salaried positions

$27 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs for approximately 300 employees at

European Interiors facility related to the announced 2008 closure of that facility

$21 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs for approximately 600 hourly and 100

salaried employees related to the announced 2008 closure of North American Other facility

$14 million was recorded related to the December 2007 closure of North American Climate facility for

employee severance and termination benefits contract termination and equipment move costs

$12 million of expected employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with

approximately 100 hourly employees under plant efficiency action at European Climate facility

$10 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with the exit of brake

manufacturing operations at European Other facility Approximately 160 hourly and 20 salaried

positions were eliminated as result of this action

$10 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs were recorded for approximately

40 hourly and 20 salaried employees at various European facilities

The Company recorded an estimate of employee severance and termination benefit costs under the

multi-year improvement plan of approximately $34 million for the probable payment of such post-

employment benefit costs

Utilization of $103 million for the year ended December 31 2007 includes $79 million of payments for

severance and other employee termination benefits $16 million of special termination benefits reclassified

to pension and other postretirement employee benefit liabilities where such payments are made from the

Companys benefit plans and $8 million in payments related to contract termination and equipment

relocation costs

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

During the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company recorded impairment charges of $16 million to reduce the

net book value of long-lived assets associated with the Companys fuel products to their estimated fair

value This amount was recorded pursuant to impairment indicators including lower than anticipated

current and near term future customer volumes and the related impact on the Companys current and

projected operating results and cash flows resulting from change in product technology
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During the third quarter of 2007 the Company completed the sale of its Visteon Powertrain Control

Systems India VPCSI operation located in Chennai India The Company determined that assets

subject to the VPCSI divestiture including inventory intellectual property and real and personal property

met the held for sale criteria of SFAS 144 Accordingly these assets were valued at the lower of carrying

amount or fair value less cost to sell which resulted in asset impairment charges of approximately

$14 million

During the first quarter of 2007 the Company determined that assets subject to divestiture in connection

with the Companys chassis operations including inventory intellectual property and real and personal

property met the held for sale criteria of SFAS 144 Accordingly these assets were valued at the lower of

carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell which resulted in asset impairment charges of approximately

$28 million

In connection with the Companys announced exit of the brake manufacturing business at its Swansea UK

facility an asset impairment charge of $16 million was recorded to reduce the net book value of certain

long-lived assets at the facility to their estimated fair value The Companys estimate of fair value was

based on market prices prices of similar assets and other available information

During 2007 the Company entered into agreements to sell two Electronics buildings located in Japan The

Companydetermined that these buildings met the held for sale criteria of SFAS 144 and were recorded at

the lower of carrying value or fair value less cost to sell which resulted in asset impairment charges of

approximately $15 million

Interest

Interest expense net was $164 million for the year ended December31 2007 compared to $159 millionfor

the year ended December 31 2006 Interest expense increased $35 million due to higher average debt

levels in 2007 Interest income was $61 million for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to

$31 million for the year ended December 31 2006 Interest income increased $30 million due to higher

average cash balances in 2007

Income Taxes

The Companys 2007 income tax provision of $20 million reflects income tax expense of $50 million related

to certain countries where the Company is profitable accrued withholding taxes and the inability to record

tax benefit for pre-tax losses in the U.S and certain foreign countries to the extent not offset by other

categories of income The 2007 income tax provision also includes $72 million for an increase in

unrecognized tax benefits resulting from positions taken in tax returns filed during the year as well as

those expected to be taken in future tax returns including interest and penalties Additionally the Company
recorded approximately $18 million of income tax expense related to significant tax law changes in Mexico

enacted in the fourth quarter of 2007 These expense items were offset by an $1 million benefit due to

favorable tax law changes in Portugal also enacted in the fourth quarter of 2007

Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Cash used by operating activities during 2008 totaled $116 million compared with $293 million provided

from operating activities for the same period in 2007 The increase in usage is attributable to higher net

loss as adjusted for certain non-cash items higher net restructuring cash outflow lower dividends from

non-consolidated affiliates an increase in recoverable tax assets lower trade working capital excluding

change in receivables sold and higher interest payments The increase in usage was partially offset by

non-recurrence of reduction in receivables sold in 2007
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Investing Activities

Cash used by investing activities was $208 million during 2008 compared with $177 million for the same

period in 2007 The increase in cash usage primarily resulted from lower proceeds from divestitures and

asset sales partially offset by lower capital expenditures The proceeds from divestitures and asset sales

for 2008 which included proceeds from the NA Aftermarket Divestiture totaled $83 million compared to

$207 million for 2007 which included proceeds from the divestiture of the Companys chassis operations

Capital expenditures excluding capital leases were $294 million in 2008 compared with $376 million in

2007 The Companys credit agreements limit the amount of capital expenditures the Company may make

Financing Activities

Cash used by financing activities totaled $193 million in 2008 compared with $547 million provided from

financing activities in 2007 Cash used by financing activities in 2008 primarily resulted from the

repurchase of $344 million in aggregate principal amount of the Companys 8.25% notes and issuance

of $206.4 million in aggregate principal amount of 12.25% senior notes due 2016 reductions in affiliate

debt decrease in book overdrafts and dividends to minority shareholders partially offset by $75 million

draw on the Companys ABL Facility Cash provided from financing activities in 2007 reflects the proceeds

from the Companys $500 million addition to its seven-year term loan and approximately $139 million from

two separate unsecured Korean bonds partially offset by reductions in affiliate debt dividends to minority

shareholders and decrease in book overdrafts The Companys credit agreements limit the amount of

cash payments for dividends the Company may make

Debt and Capital Structure

Debt

Pursuant to affirmative covenants contained in the agreements associated with the Facilities the

Company is required to provide audited annual financial statements within prescribed period of time

after the end of each fiscal year without going concern audit report or like qualification or exception On
March 31 2009 the Companys independent registered public accounting firm included an explanatory

paragraph in its audit report on the Companys 2008 consolidated financial statements indicating

substantial doubt about the Companys ability to continue as going concern The receipt of such an

explanatory statement constitutes default under the Facilities On March 31 2009 the Company entered

into the Waivers with the lenders under the Facilities which provide for waivers of such defaults for limited

periods of time as more fully described in Item 9B Other Information of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The Company is exploring various strategic and financing alternatives and has retained legal and financial

advisors to assist in this regard The Company has commenced discussions with lenders under the

Facilities including the Ad Hoc Committee regarding the restructuring of the Companys capital structure

Additionally the Company has commenced discussions with certain of its major customers to address its

liquidity and capital requirements Any such restructuring may affect the terms of the Facilities other debt

and common stock and may be affected through negotiated modifications to the related agreements or

through other forms of restructurings including under court supervision pursuant to voluntary bankruptcy

filing under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code There can be no assurance that an agreement

regarding any such restructuring will be obtained on acceptable terms with the necessary parties or at all If

an acceptable agreement is not obtained an event of default under the Facilities would occur as of the

expiration of the Waivers excluding any extensions thereof and the lenders would have the right to

accelerate the obligations thereunder Acceleration of the Companys obligations under the Facilities

would constitute an event of default under the senior unsecured notes and would likely result in the

acceleration of these obligations as well In any such event the Company may be required to seek

protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code
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The aforementioned resulted in the current classification of substantially all of the Companys long-term

debt as current liabilities in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2008

Additional information related to the Companys debt and related agreements is set forth in Note 13

Debt to the consolidated financial statements which are included in Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Covenants and Restrictions

Subject to limited exceptions each of the Companys direct and indirect existing and future domestic

subsidiaries as well as limited number of foreign subsidiaries act as guarantor under its term loan credit

agreement The obligations under the credit agreement are secured by first-priority lien on certain assets

of the Company and most of its domestic subsidiaries including intellectual property intercompany debt

the capital stock of nearly all direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries and at least 65% of the stock of most

foreign subsidiaries and 100% of the stock of certain foreign subsidiaries that are guarantors as well as

second-priority lien on substantially all other material tangible and intangible assets of the Company and

most of its domestic subsidiaries

The obligations under the ABL Facility are secured by first-priority lien on certain assets of the Company

and most of its domestic subsidiaries including real property accounts receivable inventory equipment

and other tangible and intangible property including the capital stock of nearly all direct and indirect

domestic subsidiaries other than those domestic subsidiaries the sole assets of which are capital stock of

foreign subsidiaries as well as second-priority lien on substantially all other material tangible and

intangible assets of the Company and most of its domestic subsidiaries which secure the Companys term

loan credit agreement

The terms relating to both credit agreements specifically limit the obligations to be secured by security

interest in certain U.S manufacturing properties and intercompany indebtedness and capital stock of

U.S manufacturing subsidiaries in order to ensure that at the time of any borrowing under the Credit

Agreement and other credit lines the amount of the applicable borrowing which is secured by such assets

together with other borrowings which are secured by such assets and obligations in respect of certain

sale-leaseback transactions do not exceed 15% of Consolidated Net Tangible Assets as defined in the

indenture applicable to the Companys outstanding bonds and debentures

The credit agreements contain among other things mandatory prepayment provisions for certain asset

sales recovery events equity issuances and debt incurrence covenants representations and warranties

and events of default customary for facilities of this type Such covenants include certain restrictions on the

incurrence of additional indebtedness liens acquisitions and other investments mergers consolidations

liquidations and dissolutions sales of assets dividends and other repurchases in respect of capital stock

voluntary prepayments of certain other indebtedness capital expenditures transactions with affiliates

changes in fiscal periods hedging arrangements lines of business negative pledge clauses subsidiary

distributions and the activities of certain holding company subsidiaries subject to certain exceptions The

ability of the Companys subsidiaries to transfer assets is subject to various restrictions including

regulatory governmental and contractual restraints

Under certain conditions amounts outstanding under the credit agreements may be accelerated

Bankruptcy and insolvency events with respect to the Company or certain of its subsidiaries will result

in an automatic acceleration of the indebtedness under the credit agreements Subject to notice and cure

periods in certain cases other events of default under the credit agreements will result in acceleration of

indebtedness under the credit agreements at the option of the lenders Such other events of default include

failure to pay any principal interest or other amounts when due failure to comply with covenants breach of

representations or warranties in any material respect non-payment or acceleration of other material debt

entry of material judgments not covered by insurance or change of control of the Company
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Guarantees

The Company has guaranteed approximately $90 million for lease payments and $8 million of debt

capacity related to its subsidiaries The Company has also guaranteed certain Tier supplier and other

third-party obligations of up to $2 million to ensure the continued supply of essential parts

During January 2009 the Company reached an agreement with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation

PBGC pursuant to U.S federal pension law provisions that permit the agency to seek protection when

plant closing results in termination of employment for more than 20 percent of employees covered by

pension plan In connection with this agreement the Company agreed to provide guarantee by certain

affiliates of certain contingent pension obligations of up to $30 million

These guarantees have not nor does the Company expect they are reasonably likely to have material

current or future effect on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

Asset Securitization

In October 2008 the Company amended and restated agreements related to its European trade accounts

receivable securitization facility to among other things include an additional selling entity and change the

master service provider In connection with these amendments the Company regained control of

previously transferred trade receivables such that effective October 2008 this facility which was

previously accounted for as sale of receivables under the provisions of Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No 140 SFAS 140 Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial

Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities was accounted for as secured borrowing and Visteon

Financial Centre P.L.C bankruptcy-remote qualifying special purpose entity was consolidated in

accordance with the requirements of FASB Interpretation No 46 revised Consolidation of Variable

Interest Entities The accounting impact at the time of these amendments was non-cash affecting and

included an increase in Accounts receivable net of $291 million decrease in Interests in accounts

receivable transferred of $207 million and an increase in Long-term debt of $84 million

Other

During 2006 the Company sold account receivables without recourse under European sale of

receivables agreement As of December 31 2006 the Company had sold approximately 62 million

Euro $81 million This European sale of receivables agreement was terminated in December 2006

Losses on these receivable sales were approximately $3 million for the year ended December 31 2006
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the Companys contractual obligations existing as of December31 2008

Total 2009 2010-2011 2012-2013 2014 After

Debt including capital leasesa $2762 $2697 63

Purchase obligationsb 420 119 222 69 10

Interest payments on long-term debtc 681 151 249 228 53

Capital expenditures 109 100

Operating leases 183 49 65 51 18

Postretirement funding commitmentsd 113 15 18 75

Total contractual obligationse $4268 $3121 $623 $368 $156

Pursuant to affirmative covenants contained in the agreements associated with the Facilities the Company is required to provide

audited annual financial statements within prescribed period of time after the end of each fiscal year without going concern

audit report or like qualification or exception On March 31 2009 the Companys independent registered public accounting firm

included an explanatory paragraph in its audit report on the Companys 2008 consolidated financial statements indicating

substantial doubt about the Companys ability to continue as going concern The receipt of such an explanatory statement

constitutes default under the Facilities On March 31 2009 the Company entered into Waivers with the lenders under the

Facilities which provide for waivers of such defaults for limited periods of time as more fully discussed in Item 9B Other

Information of this Annual Report on Form 10-K The aforementioned has resulted in the classification of $2554 million of debt

as current liability
in accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 78 Classification

of Obligations that are Callable by the Creditor and FASB Emerging Issue Task Force Issue No 86-30 Classification of

Obligations When Violation Is Waived by the Creditor

Purchase obligations include amounts related to 10 year Master Service Agreement MSA with IBM in January 2003

Pursuant to this agreement the Company outsourced most of its information technology needs on global basis During 2006

the Company and IBM modified this agreement resulting in certain changes to the service delivery model and related service

charges Accordingly the Company estimates that service charges under the modified MSA are expected to aggregate

approximately $350 million during the remaining term of the MSA subject to decreases and increases based on the Companys

actual consumption of services to meet its then current business needs The outsourcing agreement may be terminated also for

the Companys business convenience under the agreement for scheduled termination fee

Payments include the impact of interest rate swaps and do not assume the replenishment of retired debt

Postretirement funding commitments include the estimated liability to Ford for postretirement employee health care and life

insurance benefits of certain salaried employees as discussed in Note 14 Employee Retirement Benefits to the consolidated

financial statements which is incorporated by reference herein

This table does not include any reserve for income taxes under FIN 48 since the Company is unable to make reasonable

estimates for the periods in which these reserves may become due

The Company has guaranteed approximately $90 million for lease payments and $8 million of debt

capacity related to its subsidiaries The Company has also guaranteed certain Tier supplier and other

third-party obligations of up to $2 million to ensure the continued supply of essential parts In January 2009

the Company agreed to provide guarantee by certain affiliates of certain contingent pension obligations

of up to $30 million
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Other Liquidity Matters

Over the long-term the Company expects to fund its working capital restructuring and capital expenditure

needs with cash flows from operations To the extent that the Companys liquidity needs exceed cash from

operations the Company would look to its cash balances and availability for borrowings to satisfy those

needs as well as the need to raise additional capital However the Companys ability to fund its working

capital restructuring and capital expenditure needs may be adversely affected by many factors including

but not limited to general economic conditions specific industry conditions financial markets competitive

factors and legislative and regulatory changes Therefore assurance cannot be provided that Visteon will

generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that available borrowings will be sufficient to enable the

Company to meet its liquidity needs

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurements in the preparation of its financial statements which utilize

various inputs including those that can be readily observable corroborated or are generally unobservable

The Company utilizes market-based data and valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable

inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs Additionally the Company applies assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability including assumptions about risk The primary

financial instruments that are recorded at fair value in the Companys financial statements are derivative

instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 157 SFAS 157 Fair Value Measurements requires

the categorization of financial assets and liabilities based on the inputs to the valuation technique into

three-level fair value hierarchy The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to the quoted prices in

active markets for identical assets and liabilities and lowest priority to unobservable inputs The various

levels of the SFAS 157 fair value hierarchy are described as follows

Level Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on unadjusted quoted market prices

for identical assets and liabilities in an active market that the Company has the ability to access

Level Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on quoted prices in markets that are

not active or model inputs that are observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability

Level Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on prices or valuation techniques that

require inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement

The Companys use of derivative instruments creates exposure to credit loss in the event of

nonperformance by the counterparty to the derivative financial instruments The Company limits this

exposure by entering into agreements directly with variety of major financial institutions with high credit

standards and that are expected to fully satisfy their obligations under the contracts Fair value

measurements related to derivative assets take into account the non-performance risk of the

respective counterparty while derivative liabilities take into account the non-performance risk of the

Company and its foreign affiliates

The fair values of derivative instruments are determined under an income approach using industry-

standard models that consider various assumptions including time value volatility factors current market

and contractual prices for the underlying and counterparty non-performance risk Substantially all of

which are observable in the marketplace throughout the full term of the instrument can be derived from

observable data or are supported by observable levels at which transactions are executed in the

marketplace therefore are categorized as Level assets or liabilities in the fair value hierarchy

established by SFAS 157 The hypothetical gain or loss from 100 basis point change in non
performance risk would be less than $1 million for the fair value of foreign currency derivatives and

net interest rate swaps as of December 31 2008
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Crittcal Accounting Estimates

The Companys consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes as included in Item

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K have been

prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States Accordingly

the Companys significant accounting policies have been disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements and accompanying notes under Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies The

Company provides enhanced information that supplements such disclosures for accounting estimates

when

The estimate involves matters that are highly uncertain at the time the accounting estimate is made and

Different estimates or changes to an estimate could have material impact on the reported financial

position changes in financial condition or results of operations

When more than one accounting principle or the method of its application is generally accepted

management selects the principle or method that it considers to be the most appropriate given the

specific circumstances Application of these accounting principles requires the Companys management

to make estimates about the future resolution of existing uncertainties Estimates are typically based upon

historical experience current trends contractual documentation and other information as appropriate

Due to the inherent uncertainty involving estimates actual results reported in the future may differ from

those estimates In preparing these financial statements management has made its best estimates and

judgments of the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements

Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Employee Benefit Plans

Using appropriate actuarial methods and assumptions the Companys defined benefit pension and non-

pension postretirement employee benefit plans are accounted for in accordance with Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 87 SFAS 87 Employers Accounting for Pensions and

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 106 SFAS 106 Employers Accounting for

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions respectively and as amended by Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 158 SFAS 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit

Pension and Other Postretirement Plans Disability early retirement and other postretirement

employee benefits are accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No 112 SFAS 112 Employer Accounting for Postemployment Benefits

The determination of the Companys obligation and expense for its pension and other postretirement

employee benefits such as retiree health care and life insurance is dependent on the Companys

selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such amounts Selected assumptions

are described in Note 14 Employee Retirement Benefits to the Companys consolidated financial

statements included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K which are incorporated herein by reference including the discount rate expected long-term

rate of return on plan assets and rates of increase in compensation and health care costs
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In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States actual results that differ

from assumptions used are accumulated and amortized over future periods and accordingly generally

affect recognized expense in future periods Therefore assumptions used to calculate benefit obligations

as of the annual measurement date directly impact the expense to be recognized in future periods The

primary assumptions affecting the Companys accounting for employee benefits under SFAS Nos 87 106
112 and 158 as of December 31 2008 are as follows

Long-term rate of return on plan assets The expected long-term rate of return is used to calculate net

periodic pension cost The required use of the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets may
result in recognized returns that are greater or less than the actual returns on those plan assets in any

given year Over time however the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is designed to

approximate actual earned long-term returns The expected long-term rate of return for pension assets

has been chosen based on various inputs including historical returns for the different asset classes held

by the Companys trusts and its asset allocation as well as inputs from internal and external sources

regarding expected capital market returns inflation and other variables In determining its pension

expense for 2008 the Company used long-term rates of return on plan assets ranging from 5.00% to

10.25% outside the U.S and 8.25% in the U.S

Actual returns on U.S pension assets for 2008 2007 and 2006 were 7.9% 8% and 8% respectively

compared to the expected rate of return assumption of 8.25% 8% and 8.5% respectively for each of

those years The Companys market-related value of pension assets reflects changes in the fair value of

assets over five-year period with one-third weighting to the most recent year

Discount rate The discount rate is used to calculate pension and postretirement employee benefit

obligations The discount rate assumption is based on market rates for hypothetical portfolio of high-

quality corporate bonds rated Aa or better with maturities closely matched to the timing of projected

benefit payments for each plan at its annual measurement date The Company used discount rates

ranging from .9% to 10.25% to determine its pension and other benefit obligations as of December31
2008 including weighted average discount rates of 6.10% for U.S pension plans 6.05% for

non-U.S pension plans and 6.00% for postretirement employee health care and life insurance plans

Health care cost trend For postretirement employee health care plan accounting the Company
reviews external data and Company specific historical trends for health care costs to determine the

health care cost trend rate assumptions In determining the projected benefit obligation for

postretirement employee health care plans as of December 31 2008 the Company used health

care cost trend rates of 8.33% declining to an ultimate trend rate of 5.0% in 2014
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While the Company believes that these assumptions are appropriate significant differences in actual

experience or significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the Companys pension and

other postretirement employee benefit obligations and its future expense The following table illustrates the

sensitivity to change in certain assumptions for Company sponsored U.S and non-U.S pension plans on

its 2008 funded status and 2009 pre-tax pension expense excludes certain salaried employees that are

covered by Ford sponsored plan

Impact on Impact on

U.s 2009 Impact on Non-U.S 2009 Impact on
Pre-tax Pension U.S Plan 2008 Pre-tax Pension Non-U.S Plan 2008

Expense Funded Status Expense Funded Status

25 basis point decrease in

discount ratea $0.7 million $44 million $3 million $40 million

25 basis point increase in

discount ratea $0.6 million $42 million $2 million $39 million

25 basis point decrease in

expected return on assetsa $2 million $2 million

25 basis point increase in

expected return on assetsa $2 million $2 million

Assumes all other assumptions are held constant

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to change in the discount rate assumption related to Visteon

sponsored postretirement employee health care and life insurance plans expense excludes certain

salaried employees that are covered by Ford sponsored plan

Impact on 2009 Impact on Visteon

Pre-tax OPEB Sponsored Plan 2008

Expense Funded Status

25 basis point decrease in discount ratea $0.2 million $7 million

25 basis point increase in discount ratea $0.2 million $7 million

Assumes all other assumptions are held constant

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to change in the assumed health care trend rate related to

Visteon sponsored postretirement employee health expense excludes certain salaried employees that

are covered by Ford sponsored plan

Total Service and

Interest Cost APBO

100 basis point increase in health care trend ratea $3 million $28 million

100 basis point decrease in health care trend ratea $3 million $25 million

Assumes all other assumptions are held constant

impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Certain identifiable Intangibles

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of

Long-Lived Assets SFAS 144 requires that long-lived assets and intangible assets subject to

amortization are reviewed for impairment when certain indicators of impairment are present

Impairment exists if estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with long-lived assets are

not sufficient to recover the carrying value of such assets Generally when impairment exists the long-lived

assets are adjusted to their respective fair values
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In assessing long-lived assets for an impairment loss assets are grouped with other assets and liabilities

at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets

and liabilities Asset grouping requires significant amount of judgment Accordingly facts and

circumstances will influence how asset groups are determined for impairment testing In assessing

long-lived assets for impairment management considered the Companys product line portfolio

customers and related commercial agreements labor agreements and other factors in grouping

assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent

Additionally in determining fair value of long-lived assets management uses appraisals management

estimates or discounted cash flow calculations

Product Warranty and Recall

The Company accrues for warranty obligations for products sold based on management estimates with

support from the Companys sales engineering quality and legal functions of the amount that eventually

will be required to settle such obligations This accrual is based on several factors including contractual

arrangements past experience current claims production changes industry developments and various

other considerations

The Company accrues for product recall claims related to potential financial participation in customers

actions to provide remedies related primarily to safety concerns as result of actual or threatened

regulatory or court actions or the Companys determination of the potential for such actions The Company
accrues for recall claims for products sold based on management estimates with support from the

Companys engineering quality and legal functions Amounts accrued are based upon managements

best estimate of the amount that will ultimately be required to settle such claims

Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to the requirements of federal state local and international environmental and

occupational safety and health laws and regulations These include laws regulating air emissions water

discharge and waste management The Company is also subject to environmental laws requiring the

investigation and cleanup of environmental contamination at properties it presently owns or operates and

at third-party disposal or treatment facilities to which these sites send or arranged to send hazardous

waste

At the time of spin-off the Company and Ford agreed on division of liability for and responsibility for

management and remediation of environmental claims existing at that time and further that the

Company would assume all liabilities for existing and future claims relating to sites that were

transferred to it and its operation of those sites including off-site disposal except as otherwise

specifically retained by Ford in the Master Transfer Agreement In connection with the ACH

Transactions Ford agreed to re-assume these liabilities to the extent they arise from the ownership or

operation prior to the spin-off of the locations transferred to ACH excluding any increase in costs

attributable to the exacerbation of such liability by the Company or its affiliates

The Company is aware of contamination at some of its properties and relating to various third-party

superfund sites at which the Company or its predecessor has been named as potentially responsible

party The Company is in various stages of investigation and cleanup at these sites At December31 2008

the Company had recorded reserve of approximately $5 million for this environmental investigation and

cleanup However estimating liabilities for environmental investigation and cleanup is complex and

dependent upon number of factors beyond the Companys control and which may change

dramatically Accordingly although the Company believes its reserve is adequate based on current

information the Company cannot provide any assurance that its ultimate environmental investigation and

cleanup costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of its current reserve
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Income Taxes

The Company which is subject to income taxes in the U.S and numerous non-U.S jurisdictions accounts

for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 109 Accounting

for Income Taxes Significant judgment is required in determining the Companys worldwide provision for

income taxes deferred tax assets and liabilities and the valuation allowance recorded against the

Companys net deferred tax assets Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the future tax

consequences attributable to differences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets

and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the

years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The Companyrecords

valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets when based on all available evidence both positive

and negative it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized This assessment which is

completed on jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis requires significant judgment and in making this

evaluation the evidence considered by the Company includes historical and projected financial

performance as well as the nature frequency and severity of recent losses along with any other

pertinent information

In the ordinary course of the Companys business there are many transactions and calculations where the

ultimate tax determination is uncertain The Company is regularly under audit by tax authorities Accruals

for tax contingencies are provided for in accordance with the requirements of Financial Accounting

Standards Board FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an

interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 as it relates to income tax risks and Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No Accounting for Contingencies as it relates to non-income tax risks where

appropriate

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note Recent Accounting Pronouncements to the accompanying consolidated financial statements

under Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for

discussion of recent accounting pronouncements

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained or incorporated in this Annual Report on Form 10-K which are not

statements of historical fact constitute Forward-Looking Statements within the meaning of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 the Reform Act Forward-looking statements give current

expectations or forecasts of future events Words such as anticipate expect intend plan believe

seek estimate and other words and terms of similar meaning in connection with discussions of future

operating or financial performance signify forward-looking statements These statements reflect the

Companys current views with respect to future events and are based on assumptions and estimates

which are subject to risks and uncertainties including those discussed in Item under the heading Risk

Factors and elsewhere in this report Accordingly undue reliance should not be placed on these forward-

looking statements Also these forward-looking statements represent the Companys estimates and

assumptions only as of the date of this report The Company does not intend to update any of these

forward-looking statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the statement is made and

qualifies all of its forward-looking statements by these cautionary statements

You should understand that various factors in addition to those discussed elsewhere in this document

could affect the Companys future results and could cause results to differ materially from those expressed

in such forward-looking statements including
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Visteons ability to satisfy its future capital and liquidity requirements Visteons ability to access the credit

and capital markets at the times and in the amounts needed and on terms acceptable to Visteon

Visteons ability to comply with covenants applicable to it and the continuation of acceptable supplier

payment terms

Visteons ability to satisfy its pension and other postretirement employee benefit obligations and to retire

outstanding debt and satisfy other contractual commitments all at the levels and times planned by

management

Visteons ability to access funds generated by its foreign subsidiaries and joint ventures on timely and

cost effective basis

Visteons ability to restructure its capital structure which will depend on among other things the

outcome of negotiations with customers and lenders

Changes in the operations including products product planning and part sourcing financial condition

results of operations or market share of Visteons customers particularly its largest customer Ford and

suppliers

Changes in vehicle production volume of Visteons customers in the markets where the Company

operates and in particular changes in Fords North American and European vehicle production volumes

and platform mix

Visteons ability to profitably win new business from customers other than Ford and to maintain current

business with and win future business from Ford and Visteons ability to realize expected sales and

profits from new business

Increases in commodity costs or disruptions in the supply of commodities including steel resins

aluminum copper fuel and natural gas

Visteons ability to generate cost savings to offset or exceed agreed upon price reductions or price

reductions to win additional business and in general improve its operating performance to achieve the

benefits of its restructuring actions and to recover engineering and tooling costs and capital

investments

Visteons ability to compete favorably with automotive parts suppliers with lower cost structures and

greater ability to rationalize operations and to exit non-performing businesses on satisfactory terms

particularly due to limited flexibility under existing labor agreements

Restrictions in labor contracts with unions that restrict Visteons ability to close plants divest

noncompetitive or noncore businesses change local work rules and practices at number of

facilities and implement cost-saving measures

The costs and timing of facility closures or dispositions business or product realignments or similar

restructuring actions including potential asset impairment or other charges related to the

implementation of these actions or other adverse industry conditions and contingent liabilities

Significant changes in the competitive environment in the major markets where Visteon procures

materials components or supplies or where its products are manufactured distributed or sold

Legal and administrative proceedings investigations and claims including shareholder class actions

regulatory inquiries product liability warranty environmental and safety claims and any recalls of

products manufactured or sold by Visteon

Changes in economic conditions currency exchange rates changes in foreign laws regulations or trade

policies or political stability in foreign countries where Visteon procures materials components or

supplies or where its products are manufactured distributed or sold

56



ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS Continued

Shortages of materials or interruptions in transportation systems labor strikes work stoppages or other

interruptions to or difficulties in the employment of labor in the major markets where Visteon purchases

materials components or supplies to manufacture its products or where its products are manufactured

distributed or sold

Changes in laws regulations policies or other activities of governments agencies and similar

organizations domestic and foreign that may tax or otherwise increase the cost of or otherwise

affect the manufacture licensing distribution sale ownership or use of Visteons products or assets

Possible terrorist attacks or acts of war which could exacerbate other risks such as slowed vehicle

production interruptions in the transportation system or fuel prices and supply

The cyclical and seasonal nature of the automotive industry

Visteons ability to comply with environmental safety and other regulations applicable to it and any

increase in the requirements responsibilities and associated expenses and expenditures of these

regulations

Visteons ability to protect its intellectual property rights and to respond to changes in technology and

technological risks and to claims by others that Visteon infringes their intellectual property rights

Visteons ability to provide various employee and transition services in accordance with the terms of

existing agreements as well as Visteons ability to recover the costs of such services

Visteons ability to quickly and adequately remediate control deficiencies in its internal control over

financial reporting

The possibility that Visteon and any of its subsidiaries may need to seek protection under the

U.S Bankruptcy Code or similar laws in other jurisdictions

Other factors risks and uncertainties detailed from time to time in Visteons Securities and Exchange

Commission filings

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The primary market risks to which the Company is exposed include changes in foreign currency exchange

rates interest rates and certain commodity prices The Company manages these risks through derivative

instruments and various operating actions including fixed price contracts with suppliers and cost sourcing

arrangements with customers The Companys use of derivative instruments is limited to hedging activities and

such instruments are not used for speculative or trading purposes as per clearly defined risk management

policies Additionally the Companys use of derivative instruments creates exposure to credit loss in the event

of nonperformance by the counterparty to the derivative financial instruments The Company limits this

exposure by entering into agreements directly with variety of major financial institutions with high credit

standards and that are expected to fully satisfy their obligations under the contracts Additionally the

Companys ability to utilize derivatives to manage market risk is dependent on credit conditions and

market conditions given the current economic environment
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Companys net cash inflows and outflows exposed to the risk of changes in exchange rates arise from

the sale of products in countries other than the manufacturing source foreign currency denominated

supplier payments debt and other payables subsidiary dividends and investments in subsidiaries Where

possible the Company utilizes derivative financial instruments to manage foreign currency exchange rate

risks Forward and option contracts may be utilized to protect the Companys cash flow from adverse

movements in exchange rates Foreign currency exposures are reviewed monthly and any natural offsets

are considered prior to entering into derivative financial instrument The Companys primary foreign

exchange operating exposures include the Euro Korean Won Czech Koruna and Mexican Peso For

transactions in these currencies the Company utilizes strategy of partial coverage As of December31
2008 the Companys coverage for projected transactions in these currencies through 2009 was

approximately 34% As of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 the net fair value of foreign

currency forward and option contracts was an asset of $4 million and liability of $1 million respectively

The hypothetical pre-tax gain or loss in fair value from 10% favorable or adverse change in quoted

currency exchange rates would be approximately $33 million and $30 million as of December31 2008 and

2007 respectively These estimated changes assume parallel shift in all currency exchange rates and

include the gain or loss on financial instruments used to hedge loans to subsidiaries Because exchange

rates typically do not all move in the same direction the estimate may overstate the impact of changing

exchange rates on the net fair value of the Companys financial derivatives It is also important to note that

gains and losses indicated in the sensitivity analysis would generally be offset by gains and losses on the

underlying exposures being hedged

Interest Rate Risk

The Company is subject to interest rate risk principally in relation to fixed-rate and variable-rate debt The

Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rates in

connection with its risk management policies The Company has entered into interest rate swaps for

portion of the 8.25% notes due August 2010 $125 million and portion of the 7.00% notes due

March 10 2014 $225 million These interest rate swaps effectively convert the designated portions of

these notes from fixed interest rate to variable interest rate instruments Additionally the Company has

entered into interest rate swaps for portion of the $1 billion term loan due 2013 $200 million effectively

converting the designated portion of this loan from variable interest rate to fixed interest rate

instrument Approximately 30% and 37% of the Companys borrowings were effectively on fixed rate

basis as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the net fair

value of interest rate swaps was an asset of $17 million and liability of $9 million respectively

The potential loss in fair value of these swaps from hypothetical 50 basis point adverse change in interest

rates would be approximately $5 million as of December31 2008 and $4 million as of December31 2007

The annual increase in pre-tax interest expense from hypothetical 50 basis point adverse change in

variable interest rates including the impact of interest rate swaps would be approximately $10 million and

$9 million as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively This analysis may overstate the adverse

impact on net interest expense because of the short-term nature of the Companys interest bearing

investments
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Commodity Risk

The Companys exposure to market risks from changes in the price of production material commodities are

not hedged due to lack of acceptable hedging instruments in the market The Companys exposures to

price changes in these commodities are addressed through negotiations with suppliers and customers

although there can be no assurance that the Companywill recover all such costs When and if acceptable

hedging instruments are available in the market management will determine at that time if financial

hedging is appropriate depending upon the Companys exposure level at that time the effectiveness of the

financial hedge and other factors
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ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA Continued

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined under Rule 3a-1 5f of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Under the

supervision and with the participation of the principal executive and financial officers of the Company an

evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting was conducted based on the

framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations the COSO Framework of the Treadway Commission Based on the evaluation

performed under the COSO Framework as of December 31 2008 management has concluded that

the Companys internal control over financial reporting is effective

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an independent registered public accounting firm has audited the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 as

stated in their report which is included herein

61



ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA Continued

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To Board of Directors and Shareholders of Visteon Corporation

In our opinion the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of

operations shareholders deficit and cash flows present fairly in all material respects the financial position

of Visteon Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America In addition in

our opinion the financial statement schedules listed in the index appearing under Item 15a2 present

fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related

consolidated financial statements Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects

effective internal control over financial reporting as of December31 2008 based on criteria established in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for these financial

statements and financial statement schedules for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in

the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility

is to express opinions on these financial statements on the financial statement schedules and on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our

audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial

statements included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting

assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audits also included

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that

our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company
will continue as going concern As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the

Companys history of operating losses and cash usage affected by adverse current and projected market

conditions and overall automotive sector instability raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as

going concern Managements plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note of the

consolidated financial statements The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments

that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company changed the manner in

which it accounts for share-based compensation in 2006 the manner in which it accounts for the funded

status of defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans in 2006 and the measurement date for its

defined benefit pension and other post retirement plans in 2007 As discussed in Note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements the Company changed its method of accounting for unrecognized

tax benefits in 2007
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companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance

of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

assets of the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Detroit Michigan

March 31 2009
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions Except Per

Share Amounts

Net sales

Products $9077 $10721 $10706

Services 467 554 550

9544 11275 11256

Cost of sales

Products 8621 10154 9958

Services 464 548 545

9085 10702 10503

Gross margin 459 573 753

Selling general and administrative expenses 553 636 713

Restructuring expenses 147 152 93

Reimbursement from Escrow Account 113 142 104

Asset impairments and loss on divestitures 275 95 22

Operating loss income 403 168 29

Interest expense 215 225 190

Interest income 46 61 31

Debt extinguishment gain

Equity in net income of non-consolidated affiliates 41 47 33

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes minority

interests change in accounting and extraordinary item 531 285 89
Provision for income taxes 116 20 25

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries 34 43 31

Net loss from continuing operations before change in

accounting and extraordinary item 681 348 145
Loss from discontinued operations net of tax 24 22

Net loss before change in accounting and extraordinary item 681 372 167
Cumulative effect of change in accounting net of tax

Net loss before extraordinary item 681 372 171

Extraordinary item net of tax

Net loss 681 372 163

Basic and diluted loss per share

Continuing operations $5.26 2.69 1.13

Discontinued operations 0.18 0.17

Net loss 5.26 2.87 1.27

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents 1180 1758

Accounts receivable net 989 1150

Interests in accounts receivable transferred 434

Inventories net 354 495

Other current assets 249 235

Total current assets 2772 4072

Property and equipment net 2162 2793

Equity in net assets of non-consolidated affiliates 220 218

Other non-current assets 94 122

Total assets $5248 $7205

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS DEFICIT

Short-term debt including current portion of long-term debt and debt in default 2697 95

Accounts payable 058 1766

Accrued employee liabilities 228 316

Other current liabilities 288 351

Total current liabilities 4271 2528

Long-term debt 65 2745

Employee benefits including pensions 627 530

Postretirement benefits other than pensions 404 624

Deferred tax liabilities 139 147

Other non-current liabilities 365 428

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries 264 293

Shareholders deficit

Preferred stock par value $1 .00 50 million shares authorized none

outstanding

Common stock par value $1.00 500 million shares authorized 131 million

shares issued 131 million and 130 million shares outstanding

respectively 131 131

Stock warrants 127 127

Additional paid-in capital 3407 3406

Accumulated deficit 4704 4016
Accumulated other comprehensive income 157 275

Other 13

Total shareholders deficit 887 90

Total liabilities and shareholders deficit 5248 7205
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

Operating Activities

Net loss 681 372 163
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used by provided from

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 416 472 430

Asset impairments and loss on divestitures 275 107 22

Non-cash postretirement benefits 72 29 72
Non-cash tax items 91 68
Equity in net income of non-consolidated affiliates net of dividends

remitted 20

Other non-cash items 11 10
Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable and retained interests 509 216 122

Inventories 44 55

Escrow receivable 15 33 28
Accounts payable 504 123 104
Postretirement benefits other than pensions 65 19
Income taxes deferred and payable net 30 20

Other assets and other liabilities 229 59 117

Net cash used by provided from operating activities 116 293 281

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures 294 376 373
Proceeds from divestitures and asset sales 83 207 42

Other

Net cash used by investing activities 208 177 337
Financing Activities

Short-term debt net 28 33 400
Proceeds from issuance of debt net of issuance costs 260 637 1378

Principal payments on debt 88 88 624
Maturity/repurchase of unsecured debt securities 337 141
Other including book overdrafts 56 35
Net cash used by provided from financing activities 193 547 214

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 61 38 34

Net decrease increase in cash and equivalents 578 701 192

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 1758 1057 865

Cash and equivalents at end of year $1180 $1 758 $1 057

Supplemental Disclosures

Cash paid for interest 226 215 197

Cash paid for income taxes net of refunds 86 91 97

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DEFICIT

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

Common Stock

Balance at January 131 131 131

Balance at December 31 131 131 131

Stock Warrants

BalanceatJanuaryl 127 127 127

Balance at December31 127 127 127

Additional Paid-In Capital

Balance at January 3406 3398 3396
Stock-based compensation

Balance at December 31 3407 3406 3398

Accumulated Deficit

Balance at January $401 $3606 $3440
Net loss 681 372 163
SFAS 158 adjustment 34
Shares issued for stock-based compensation

Balance at December31 $4704 $4016 $3606

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss
Balance at January 275 216 234

Net foreign currency translation adjustment 89 131 121

Net change in pension and OPEB obligations 29 158 25

Net gain loss on derivatives and other

Net other comprehensive income loss adjustments 118 281 147

Cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS 158 210 129
Balance at December31 157 275 216

Other Treasury Stock
Balance at January 13 22 27
Shares issued for stock-based compensation 10

Treasury stock activity

Restricted stock award activity 11

Balance at December 31 13 22
Other

Balance at January

Stock-based compensation net

Other

Balance at December 31

Total Shareholders Deficit 887 90 188

Comprehensive Loss

Net loss 681 372 163
Net other comprehensive income loss adjustments 118 281 147

Total comprehensive loss 799 91 16

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Description of the Business

Visteon Corporation the Company or Visteon is leading global supplier of automotive systems
modules and components to global automotive original equipment manufacturers OEMs and to the

worldwide aftermarket for replacement and enhancement parts The Companys operations are organized

by global product groups including Climate Electronics Interiors and Other and are principally conducted

in the United States Mexico Canada Germany United Kingdom France Spain Portugal Czech

Republic Korea China India Brazil and Argentina

Visteon became an independent company when Ford Motor Company and affiliates Ford or Ford Motor

Company established the Company as wholly-owned subsidiary in January 2000 and subsequently

transferred to the Company the assets and liabilities comprising Fords automotive components and

systems business Ford completed its spin-off of the Company on June 28 2000 Prior to incorporation

the Company operated as Fords automotive components and systems business

On October 2005 Visteon sold Automotive Components Holdings LLC ACH an indirect wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company to Ford for cash proceeds of approximately $300 million as well as the

forgiveness of certain other postretirement employee benefit OPEB liabilities and other obligations

relating to hourly employees associated with ACH and the assumption of certain other liabilities with

respect to ACH together the ACH Transactions The ACH Transactions also provided for the

termination of the Hourly Employee Assignment Agreement and complete relief to the Company of all

liabilities relating to Visteon-assigned Ford UAW hourly employees Additionally on October 2005 Ford

acquired from the Company warrants to acquire 25 million shares of the Companys common stock and

agreed to provide $550 million pursuant to the Escrow Agreement and the Reimbursement

Agreement to be used in the Companys further restructuring

In August 2008 the Company Ford and ACH amended certain agreements initially completed in

connection with the ACH Transactions including the Escrow Agreement the Reimbursement

Agreement the Master Services Agreement dated as of September 30 2005 as amended between

the Company and ACH the Master Services Agreement the Visteon Salaried Employee Lease

Agreement dated as of October 2005 as amended between the Company and ACH the Visteon

Salaried Employee Lease Agreement and the Intellectual Property Contribution Agreement dated as of

October 2005 as amended among the Company Visteon Global Technologies Inc Automotive

Components Holdings Inc and ACH the Intellectual Property Contribution Agreement

The Amended Escrow Agreement The Escrow Agreement was amended to among other things

provide that Ford contribute an additional $50 million into the escrow account and to provide that such

additional funds shall be available to the Company to fund restructuring and other qualifying costs as

defined within the Escrow Agreement on 100% basis The additional $50 million was funded into the

escrow account in August 2008
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The Amended Reimbursement Agreement The Reimbursement Agreement was amended and

restated to among other things require Ford to reimburse the Company in full for certain severance

expenses and other qualifying termination benefits as defined in such agreement relating to the

termination of salaried employees who were leased to ACH Previously the amount required to be

reimbursed by Ford was capped at $150 million of which the first $50 million was to be funded in total by

Ford and the remaining $100 million was to be matched by the Company Any unused portion of the

$150 million as of December 31 2009 was to be deposited into the escrow account governed by the

Escrow Agreement The Reimbursement Agreement was amended to eliminate the $150 million cap as

well as the Companys obligation to match any costs during the term of the agreement Further Fords

obligation to deposit remaining funds into the escrow account which was established pursuant to the

Escrow Agreement was eliminated Approximately $30 million was recorded as Net Sales Services

and Cost of Sales Services under these arrangements for the year ended December 31 2008

The Amended Master Services AgreementThe Master Services Agreement was amended to

among other things extend the term that Visteon will provide certain services to ACH Ford and others

from December 31 2009 to January 2011

The Amended Visteon Salaried Employee Lease AgreementThe Visteon Salaried Employee
Lease Agreement was amended to among other things extend the term that ACH may lease

salaried employees of the Company from December 31 2010 to December 31 2014

The Amended Intellectual Property Contribution Agreement The Intellectual Property Contribution

Agreement was amended to among other things clarify the availability for use by ACH of certain

patents design tools and other proprietary information

The Companycontinues to transact significant amount of ongoing commercial activity with Ford Product

sales services revenues accounts receivable and postretirement employee benefits due to Ford

comprise certain significant account balances arising from ongoing commercial relations with Ford and

are summarized below as adjusted for discontinued operations

For the Year Ended December31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

Product sales $3095 $4131 $4791

Services revenues 451 542 550

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in

Millions

Accounts receivable net $174 $277

Postretirement employee benefits $1 13 $121

Additionally as of December 31 2007 the Company had transferred approximately $154 million of Ford

receivables under European receivables securitization agreement
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Going Concern Considerations

During 2008 the global credit crisis and the erosion of consumer confidence negatively impacted the

automotive sector on global basis Significant factors including the deterioration of housing values rising

fuel prices equity market volatility and rising unemployment levels resulted in consumers delaying

purchases of durable goods particularly highly deliberated purchases such as automobiles

Additionally the absence of available credit hindered vehicle affordability forcing willing consumers out

of the market globally Together these factors combined to drive decline in OEM production particularly

in the fourth quarter of 2008 which resulted in significant operating losses for the Company particularly in

the fourth quarter of 2008

In consideration of current and projected market conditions overall automotive sector instability and

Visteons recent history of operating losses and cash usage projections indicate that the Companys

liquidity will be at or near minimum cash levels required to operate the business during 2009 The

Company continues to develop and execute as appropriate additional actions designed to generate

liquidity including customer accommodation agreements asset sales cash repatriation and cost

reductions The success of the Companys liquidity plans depends on global economic conditions

levels of automotive sales and production trade creditor business conduct and occurrence of no other

material adverse developments Additionally various macro-level factors outside of the Companys control

may further negatively impact the Companys ability to meet its obligations as they come due Such factors

include but are not limited to the following

Sustained weakness and/or continued deterioration of global economic conditions

Continued automotive sales and production at levels consistent with or lower than fourth quarter 2008

Failure of U.S OEMs to meet the necessary terms and conditions of U.S government bridge loans

Bankruptcy of any significant customer resulting in delayed payments and/or non-payment of amounts

receivable

Bankruptcy of any significant supplier resulting in delayed shipments of materials necessary for

production

Actions of trade creditors to accelerate payments for goods and services provided

Other events of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of short or long-term debt obligations

Despite the actions management has taken or plans to take there can be no assurance that factors

outside of the Companys control including but not limited to the financial condition of OEMs or other

automotive suppliers will not cause further significant financial distress for Visteon Additionally while the

Company has already taken significant restructuring and cost reduction measures and plans to implement

further actions designed to provide additional liquidity there can be no assurance that such actions will

provide sufficient amount of funds or that such actions will supply funds in timely manner necessary to

meet the Companys ongoing liquidity requirements Accordingly there exists substantial doubt as to the

Companys ability to operate as going concern and meet its obligations as they come due
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Pursuant to affirmative covenants contained in the agreements associated with the Companys senior

secured facilities and European Securitization the Facilities the Company is required to provide audited

annual financial statements within prescribed period of time after the end of each fiscal year without

going concern audit report or like qualification or exception On March 31 2009 the Companys

independent registered public accounting firm included an explanatory paragraph in its audit report on

the Companys 2008 consolidated financial statements indicating substantial doubt about the Companys

ability to continue as going concern The receipt of such an explanatory statement constitutes default

under the Facilities On March 31 2009 the Company entered into amendments and waivers the

Waivers with the lenders under the Facilities which provide for waivers of such defaults for limited

periods of time as more fully described in Note 13 Debt

The Company is exploring various strategic and financing alternatives and has retained legal and financial

advisors to assist in this regard The Company has commenced discussions with lenders under the

Facilities including an ad hoc committee of lenders under its senior secured term loan the Ad Hoc

Committee regarding the restructuring of the Companys capital structure Additionally the Company
has commenced discussions with certain of its major customers to address its liquidity and capital

requirements Any such restructuring may affect the terms of the Facilities other debt and common stock

and may be affected through negotiated modifications to the related agreements or through other forms of

restructurings including under court supervision pursuant to voluntary bankruptcy filing under

Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code There can be no assurance that an agreement regarding

any such restructuring will be obtained on acceptable terms with the necessary parties or at all If an

acceptable agreement is not obtained an event of default under the Facilities would occur as of the

expiration of the Waivers excluding any extensions thereof and the lenders would have the right to

accelerate the obligations thereunder Acceleration of the Companys obligations under the Facilities

would constitute an event of default under the senior unsecured notes and would likely result in the

acceleration of these obligations as well In any such event the Company may be required to seek

protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code Visteons ability to continue operating as going

concern is among other things dependent on the success of discussions with the lenders under the

Facilities including the Ad Hoc Committee

The aforementioned resulted in the classification of substantially all of the Companys long-term debt as

current liabilities in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2008

Basis of Presentation

The Companys financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States GAAP consistently applied and on going concern basis

which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business

The Companys financial statements do not include any adjustments related to assets or liabilities that may
be necessary should the Company not be able to continue as going concern

NOTE Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company
and all subsidiaries that are more than 50% owned and over which the Company exercises control

Investments in affiliates of 50% or less but greater than 20% are accounted for using the equity method

The consolidated financial statements also include the accounts of certain entities in which the Company
holds controlling interest based on exposure to economic risks and potential rewards variable interests

for which it is the primary beneficiary
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In connection with Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Interpretation No 46 revised

FIN 46R Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities the Company consolidates certain variable

interest entities as follows

Visteon Financial Centre P.L.C is wholly-owned by an independent charitable trust and operates as

conduit between the Company and third-party lenders for the purpose of purchasing receivables

generated by Visteon selling entities and borrowing funds from third-party lenders based on those

receivables The Company consolidates Visteon Financial Centre P.L.C as substantially all of the

entitys operations are performed on behalf of the Company As of December 31 2008 Visteon

Financial Centre P.L.C had total assets of $319 million and total liabilities of $92 million These

amounts are recorded at their carrying values which approximates their fair values as of

December 31 2008

TACO Visteon Engineering Private Limited TACO is joint venture 50% owned by the Company that

provides certain computer aided engineering and design services in India for the Company along with

other manufacturing activities conducted for TATA Autocomp Systems Limited and Visteon

Consolidation of this entity was based on an assessment of the Companys exposure to majority

of the expected losses As of December31 2008 TACO had total assets of $3 million and total liabilities

of $2 million These amounts are recorded at their carrying values which approximates their fair values

as of December31 2008

Reclassifications Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year

presentation

Use of Estimates The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires

management to make estimates judgments and assumptions that affect amounts reported herein

Management believes that such estimates judgments and assumptions are reasonable and

appropriate However due to the inherent uncertainty involved actual results may differ from those

provided in the Companys consolidated financial statements

Foreign Currency Assets and liabilities of the Companys non-U.S businesses are translated into

U.S Dollars at end-of-period exchange rates and the related translation adjustments are reported in the

consolidated balance sheets under the classification of Accumulated other comprehensive income

loss The effects of remeasurement of assets and liabilities of the Companys non-U.S businesses

that use the U.S Dollar as their functional currency are included in the consolidated statements of

operations as transaction gains and losses Income and expense elements of the Companys
non-U.S businesses are translated into U.S Dollars at average-period exchange rates and are

reflected in the consolidated statements of operations as part of sales costs and expenses

Additionally gains and losses resulting from transactions denominated in currency other than the

functional currency are included in the consolidated statements of operations as transaction gains and

losses Transaction gains of $14 million in 2008 and losses of $6 million in both 2007 and 2006 resulted

from the remeasurement of certain deferred foreign tax liabilities and are included within income taxes Net

transaction gains and losses increased net loss by $3 million in 2008 and decreased net loss by $2 million

and $3 million in 2007 and 2006 respectively
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Revenue Recognition The Company records revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement

exists delivery occurs or services are rendered the sales price or fee is fixed or determinable and

collectibility is reasonably assured The Company ships product and records revenue pursuant to

commercial agreements with its customers generally in the form of an approved purchase order

including the effects of contractual customer price productivity The Company does negotiate discrete

price changes with its customers which are generally the result of unique commercial issues between the

Companyand its customers and are generally the subject of specific negotiations between the Company
and its customers The Company records amounts associated with discrete price changes as reduction

to revenue when specific facts and circumstances indicate that price reduction is probable and the

amounts are reasonably estimable The Company records amounts associated with discrete price

changes as an increase to revenue upon execution of legally enforceable contractual agreement and

when collectibility is reasonably assured

Services revenues are recognized as services are rendered and associated costs of providing such

services are recorded as incurred

Fair Value Measurements The Company uses fair value measurements in the preparation of its financial

statements which utilizevarious inputs including those that can be readily observable corroborated or are

generally unobservable The Company utilizes market-based data and valuation techniques that maximize

the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs Additionally the Company

applies assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability including

assumptions about risk

Cash Equivalents The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with maturity of

three months or less including short-term time deposits commercial paper repurchase agreements and

money market funds to be cash equivalents

Accounts Receivable andAllowance for DoubtfulAccounts Accounts receivable are stated at historical

value which approximates fair value The Company does not generally require collateral from its

customers Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for amounts that may be uncollectible in

the future This estimated allowance is determined by considering factors such as length of time accounts

are past due historical experience of write-offs and customer financial condition If not reserved through

specific examination procedures the Companys general policy for uncollectible accounts is to reserve

based upon the aging categories of accounts receivable Past due status is based upon the invoice date of

the original amounts outstanding Included in selling general and administrative SGA expenses are

provisions for estimated uncotlectible accounts receivable of $1 million for the year ended December 31
2008 recoveries in excess of provisions for estimated uncoilectible accounts receivable of $19 million for

the year ended December 31 2007 and provisions for estimated uncollectible accounts receivable of

$4 million for the year ended December 31 2006 The allowance for doubtful accounts balance was

$37 million $18 million and $44 million at December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost determined on first-in first-out FIFO basis or

market Inventories are reduced by an allowance for excess and obsolete inventories based on

managements review of on-hand inventories compared to historical and estimated future sales and

usage
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Product Tooling Product tooling includes molds dies and other tools used in production of specific part

or parts of the same basic design The Company accounts for product tooling in accordance with the

requirements of FASB Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No 99-5 EITF 99-5 Accounting for Pre

Production Costs Related to Long-Term Supply Arrangements EITF 99-5 generally requires that non-

reimbursable design and development costs for products to be sold under long-term supply arrangements

be expensed as incurred and costs incurred for molds dies and other tools that will be owned by the

Company or its customers and used in producing the products under long-term supply arrangements be

capitalized and amortized over the shorter of the expected useful life of the assets or the term of the supply

arrangement Contractually reimbursable design and development costs that would otherwise be

expensed under EITF 99-5 are recorded as an asset as incurred

Product tooling owned by the Company is capitalized as property and equipment and amortized to cost of

sales over its estimated economic life generally not exceeding six years The net book value of product

tooling owned by the Company was $90 million and $148 million as of December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively Unbilled receivables related to production tools in progress which will not be owned by the

Company and for which there is contractual agreement for reimbursement from the customer were

approximately $21 million $14 million and $74 million as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

Restructuring The Company defines restructuring expense to include costs directly associated with exit

or disposal activities accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No 146 SFAS 146 Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities employee

severance and special termination benefit costs incurred as result of an exit or disposal activity or

fundamental realignment accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No 88 SFAS 88 Employers Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension

Plans and for Termination Benefits and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 112

SEAS 112 Employers Accounting for Postemployment Benefits and pension and other

postretirement employee benefit costs incurred as result of an exit or disposal activity or

fundamental realignment accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standard No 87 SFAS 87 Employers Accounting for Pensions and Statement of Accounting

Standard No 106 SFAS 106 Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions

Long-Lived Assets and Certain Identifiable Intangibles Long-lived assets such as property and

equipment and definite-lived intangible assets are stated at cost or fair value for impaired assets

Depreciation or amortization is computed principally by the straight-line method for financial reporting

purposes and by accelerated methods for income tax purposes in certain jurisdictions Long-lived assets

and intangible assets subject to amortization are depreciated or amortized over the estimated useful life of

the asset

Asset impairment charges are recorded for long-lived assets and intangible assets subject to amortization

when events and circumstances indicate that such assets may be impaired and the undiscounted net cash

flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than their carrying amounts If estimated future

undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying value of the assets an impairment

charge is recorded for the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds its fair value The

Company classifies assets and liabilities as held for sale when management approves and commits to

formal plan of sale and it is probable that the sale will be completed The carrying value of the assets and

liabilities held for sale are recorded at the lower of carrying value or fair value less cost to sell and the

recording of depreciation is ceased Fair value is determined using appraisals management estimates or

discounted cash flow calculations
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Capitalized Software Costs Certain costs incurred in the acquisition or development of software for

internal use are capitalized in accordance with Statement of Position No 98-1 Accounting for the Costs of

Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use Capitalized software costs are amortized

using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives generally ranging from three to eight years The

net book value of capitalized software costs was approximately $57 million $66 million and $83 million at

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Related amortization expense was approximately

$41 million $46 million and $44 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively Amortization expense of approximately $27 million is expected for 2009 and is expected

to decrease to $19 million $8 million and $2 million for 2010 2011 and 2012 respectively

Pensions and Other Postretirement Employee Benefits Pensions and other postretirement employee

benefit costs and related liabilities and assets are dependent upon assumptions used in calculating such

amounts These assumptions include discount rates expected returns on plan assets health care cost

trends compensation and other factors In accordance with GAAP actual results that differ from the

assumptions used are accumulated and amortized over future periods and accordingly generally affect

recognized expense in future periods

Product Warranty The Company accrues for warranty obligations for products sold based on

management estimates with support from its sales engineering quality and legal functions of the

amount that eventually will be required to settle such obligations This accrual is based on several factors

including contractual arrangements past experience current claims production changes industry

developments and various other considerations

Product Recall The Company accrues for product recall claims related to probable financial participation

in customers actions to provide remedies related primarily to safety concerns as result of actual or

threatened regulatory or court actions or the Companys determination of the potential for such actions

The Company accrues for recall claims for products sold based on management estimates with support

from the Companys engineering quality and legal functions Amounts accrued are based upon

managements best estimate of the amount that will ultimately be required to settle such claims

Environmental Costs Costs related to environmental assessments and remediation efforts at operating

facilities previously owned or operated facilities and Superfund or other waste site locations are accrued

when it is probable that liability has been incurred and the amount of that liability can be reasonably

estimated Estimated costs are recorded at undiscounted amounts based on experience and

assessments and are regularly evaluated The liabilities are recorded in other current liabilities and

other long-term liabilities in the Companys consolidated balance sheets
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Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards No 109 SFAS 109 Accounting for Income Taxes Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between financial

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating

loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates

expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be

recovered or settled The Company records valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets when it is

more likely than not that such assets will not be realized This assessment requires significant judgment

and must be done on jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis In determining the need for valuation allowance

all available positive and negative evidence including historical and projected financial performance is

considered along with any other pertinent information Additionally deferred taxes have been provided for

the net effect of repatriating earnings from consolidated and unconsolidated foreign affiliates except for

approximately $220 million of Korean earnings considered permanently reinvested under Accounting

Principles Board Opinion No 23 Accounting for Income Taxes-Special Areas If these earnings were

repatriated additional withholding tax expense of approximately $25 million would have been incurred

Debt Issuance Costs The costs related to the issuance or modification of long-term debt are deferred

and amortized into interest expense over the life of each debt issue Deferred amounts associated with

debt extinguished prior to maturity are expensed

Other Costs Advertising and sales promotion costs repair and maintenance costs research and

development costs and pre-production operating costs are expensed as incurred Research and

development expenses include salary and related employee benefits contractor fees information

technology occupancy telecommunications and depreciation Advertising costs were $2 million in

2008 $3 million in 2007 and $4 million in 2006 Research and development costs were $434 million in

2008 $510 million in 2007 and $594 million in 2006 Shipping and handling costs are recorded in the

Companys consolidated statements of operations as Cost of sales

Financial Instruments The Company uses derivative financial instruments including forward contracts

swaps and options to manage exposures to changes in currency exchange rates and interest rates All

derivative financial instruments are classified as held for purposes other than trading The Companys

policy specifically prohibits the use of derivatives for speculative purposes

NOTE Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP No FAS 132R-i FSP FAS 132R-i
Employers Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets This FSP requires disclosure of

how investment allocation decisions are made including the factors that are pertinent to an

understanding of investment policies and strategies the major categories of plan assets the

inputs and valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of plan assets the effect of fair value

measurements using significant unobservable inputs Level on changes in plan assets for the period

and significant concentrations of risk within plan assets FSP FAS 132R-i is effective for fiscal years

ending after December 15 2009 The Company is currently evaluating the impact of these statements on

its consolidated financial statements
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In December 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 FSP FAS 140-4

and FIN 46R-8 Disclosures by Public Entities Enterprises about Transfers of Financial Assets and

Interests in Variable Interest Entities This FSP is intended to provide greater transparency by requiring

additional disclosures about transfers of financial assets and involvement with variable interest entities

FSP FAS 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 are effective for the first reporting period ending after December 15 2008

and was adopted by the Company as of December 31 2008 without material impact on its consolidated

financial statements

In October 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 157-3 FSP FAS 157-3 Determining

the Fair Value of Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active which clarifies the

application of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No 157 SFAS 157 Fair Value

Measurements in market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations

in determining the fair value of financial asset when the market for that financial asset is not active FSP

FAS 157-3 became effective upon issuance and was adopted by the Company for the reporting period

ending September 30 2008 without material impact on its consolidated financial statements

In September 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No FAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 FSP FAS 133-1

and FIN 45-4 Disclosures about Credit Derivatives and Certain Guarantees an amendment of FASB

Statement No 133 and FASB Interpretation No 45 and Clarification of the Effective Date of FASB

Statement No 161 This FSP requires disclosure of information about credit derivatives by sellers of credit

derivatives and disclosure of the current status of the paymentlperformance risk of guarantee This FSP

is effective for financial statements issued for reporting periods ending after November 15 2008 and was

adopted by the Company for the period ending December 31 2008 without material impact on its

consolidated financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 161 Disclosures

about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 This

statement requires disclosure of how and why an entity uses derivative instruments how derivative

instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 133 and its related interpretations and how derivative instruments and related

hedged items affect an entitys financial position results of operations and cash flows This statement

is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after

November 15 2008 and becomes effective for the Company on prospective basis on January 2009

In December 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 141R Business

Combinations and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 160 Non-controlling Interests in

Consolidated Financial Statements an amendment to ARB No 51 These statements change the

accounting and reporting for business combination transactions and minority interests in consolidated

financial statements These statements are required to be adopted simultaneously and are effective for the

first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2008 The Company will adopt this

standard effective January 2009 and does not expect significant impact on its consolidated financial

statements

In February 2007 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 159 The Fair Value

Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Including an Amendment of FASB Statement

No 115 This statement permits measurement of financial instruments and certain other items at fair

value The Company adopted this statement effective January 2008 and has not elected the permitted

fair value measurement provisions of this statement
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In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 157 SFAS 157
Fair Value Measurements This statement which became effective January 2008 defines fair value

establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements regarding fair

value measurements The Company adopted the requirements of SFAS 157 as of January 2008 without

material impact on its consolidated financial statements In February 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff

Position No FAS 157-2 FSP FAS 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157 which delays the

effective date of SFAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or

disclosed in the financial statements on nonrecurring basis to fiscal years beginning after November 15

2008 The Company will adopt the provisions of SFAS 157 for its nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial

liabilities effective January 2009 and does not expect significant impact on its consolidated financial

statements

In September 2006 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 158 SFAS 158
Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits an amendment of

FASB Statements No 87 88 106 and 132R SFAS 158 requires the establishment of net asset or

liability representing the funded status of defined benefit pension and OPEB plans in the balance sheet

Additionally SFAS 158 requires the measurement of plan assets and benefit obligations as of the year-end

balance sheet date effective for fiscal years ending after December 15 2008 The Company adopted the

recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS 158 as of December 31 2006 and the year-end

measurement provisions of SFAS 158 as of January 2007 which resulted in net curtailment loss

of $6 million in the fourth quarter of 2006

The Company re-measured plan assets and obligations as of January 2007 consistent with the

provisions of SFAS 158 initially recording reduction to its pension and OPEB liabilities of

$100 million and $90 million respectively and an increase to accumulated other comprehensive

income of $190 million The Company also adjusted the January 2007 retained earnings balance

by approximately $34 million representing the net periodic benefit costs for the period between

September 30 2006 and January 2007 that would have been recognized on delayed basis during

the first quarter of 2007 absent the change in measurement date The net periodic benefit costs for 2007

were based on this January 2007 measurement or subsequent re-measurements During the fourth

quarter of 2007 the Company further reduced its pension liability by $20 million with corresponding

increase to accumulated other comprehensive income based on revision of its re-measured pension

obligation as of January 2007 The revision had no impact on full year earnings and an immaterial impact

on income as reported in each of the previous three quarters of 2007

In December 2004 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123 Revised

2004 SFAS 123R Share-Based Payments This statement requires that all share-based payments

to employees be recognized in the financial statements based on their estimated fair value SFAS 123R
was adopted by the Company effective January 2006 using the modified-prospective method In

accordance with the modified-prospective method the Companys consolidated financial statements for

prior periods have not been restated to reflect and do not include the impact of SFAS 123R Under the

modified-prospective method compensation expense includes

Share-based payments granted prior to but not yet vested as of January 2006 based on the fair value

estimated in accordance with the original provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No 123 SFAS 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

Share-based payments granted subsequent to January 2006 based on the fair value estimated in

accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R
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The cumulative effect net of tax of adoption of SFAS 123R was $4 million or $0.03 per share as of

January 2006 The Company recorded $13 million or $0.10 per share of incremental compensation

expense during the year ended December31 2006 under SFAS 123R when compared to the amount

that would have been recorded under SFAS 123 Additional disclosures required by SFAS 123R
regarding the Companys stock-based compensation plans and related accounting are provided in

Note 15 Stock-Based Compensation

NOTE Asset Impairments and Loss on Divestitures

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of

Long-Lived Assets SFAS 144 requires that long-lived assets and intangible assets subject to

amortization are reviewed for impairment when certain indicators of impairment are present

Impairment exists if estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with long-lived assets are

not sufficient to recover the carrying value of such assets Generally when impairment exists the long-lived

assets are adjusted to their respective fair values

In assessing long-lived assets for an impairment loss assets are grouped with other assets and liabilities

at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets

and liabilities Asset grouping requires significant amount of judgment Accordingly facts and

circumstances will influence how asset groups are determined for impairment testing In assessing

long-lived assets for impairment management considered the Companys product line portfolio

customers and related commercial agreements labor agreements and other factors in grouping

assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent The

Company considers projected future undiscounted cash flows trends and other factors in its assessment

of whether impairment conditions exist While the Company believes that its estimates of future cash flows

are reasonable different assumptions regarding such factors as future automotive production volumes

customer pricing economics and productivity and cost saving initiatives could significantly affect its

estimates In determining fair value of long-lived assets management uses appraisals management
estimates or discounted cash flow calculations

The Company recorded asset impairment charges of $234 million $95 million and $22 millionfor the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively to adjust certain long-lived assets to their

estimated fair values In addition to asset impairment charges the Company recorded $41 million in losses

on divestitures of certain businesses in 2008

2008 Asset Impairments and Loss on Divestitures

The Company concluded that significant operating losses resulting from the deterioration of market

conditions and related production volumes in the fourth quarter of 2008 represented an indicator that the

carrying amount of the Companys long lived assets may not be recoverable Based on the results of the

Companys assessment which was based upon the fair value of the affected assets using appraisals

management estimates and discounted cash flow calculations the Company recorded an impairment

charge of approximately $200 million to reduce the net book value of Interiors long-lived assets considered

to be held for use to their estimated fair value
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On June 30 2008 Visteon UK Limited an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company transferred

certain assets related to its chassis manufacturing operation located in Swansea United Kingdom to

Visteon Swansea Limited company incorporated in England and wholly-owned subsidiary of Visteon

UK Limited Effective July 2008 Visteon UK Limited sold the entire share capital of Visteon Swansea

Limited to Linamar UK Holdings Inc wholly-owned subsidiary of Linamar Corporation for nominal cash

consideration together the Swansea Divestiture The Swansea operation which manufactu red

driveline products generated negative gross margin of approximately $40 million on sales of

approximately $80 million during 2007 The Company recorded asset impairment and loss on

divestiture of approximately $23 million in connection with the Swansea Divestiture including

$16 million of losses on the Visteon Swansea Limited share capital sale and $7 million of asset

impairment charges

During the first quarter of 2008 the Companyannounced the sale of its North American-based aftermarket

underhood and remanufacturing operations NA Aftermarket including facilities located in Sparta

Tennessee and Reynosa Mexico together the NA Aftermarket Divestiture The NA Aftermarket

manufactured starters and alternators radiators compressors and condensers and also

remanufactures steering pumps and gears These operations recorded sales for the year ended

December 31 2007 of approximately $133 million and generated negative gross margin of

approximately $16 million The Company recorded total losses of $46 million on the NA Aftermarket

Divestiture including an asset impairment charge of $21 million and losses on disposition of $25 million

The Company also recorded asset impairments of $6 million during 2008 in connection with other

divestiture activities including the sale of its Interiors operation located in Halewood UK the
Halewood Divestiture

2007 Impairment Charges

During the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company recorded impairment charges of $16 million to reduce the

net book value of long-lived assets associated with the Companys fuel products to their estimated fair

value This amount was recorded pursuant to impairment indicators including lower than anticipated

current and near term future customer volumes and the related impact on the Companys current and

projected operating results and cash flows resulting from change in product technology

During the third quarter of 2007 the Company completed the sale of its Visteon Powertrain Control

Systems India VPCSI operation located in Chennai India The Company determined that assets

subject to the VPCSI divestiture including inventory intellectual property and real and personal property

met the held for sale criteria of SFAS 144 Accordingly these assets were valued at the lower of carrying

amount or fair value less cost to sell which resulted in asset impairment charges of approximately

$14 million

In March 2007 the Company entered into Master Asset and Share Purchase Agreement MASPA to

sell certain assets and liabilities associated with the Companys chassis operations the Chassis

Divestiture The Companys chassis operations were primarily comprised of suspension driveline

and steering product lines and include facilities located in Dueren and Wuelfrath Germany Praszka

Poland and Sao Paulo Brazil Collectively these operations recorded sales for the year ended

December 31 2006 of approximately $600 million During the first quarter of 2007 the Company

determined that assets subject to the Chassis Divestiture including inventory intellectual property and

real and personal property met the held for sale criteria of SFAS 144 Accordingly these assets were

valued at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell which resulted in asset impairment

charges of approximately $28 million
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In consideration of the MASPA and the Companys announced exit of the brake manufacturing business at

its Swansea UK facility an asset impairment charge of $16 million was recorded to reduce the net book

value of certain long-lived assets at the facility to their estimated fair value in the first quarter of 2007 The

Companys estimate of fair value was based on market prices prices of similar assets and other available

information

During 2007 the Company entered into agreements to sell two Electronics buildings located in Japan The

Company determined that these buildings met the held for sale criteria of SFAS 144 and were recorded at

the lower of carrying value or fair value less cost to sell which resulted in asset impairment charges of

approximately $15 million

2006 Impairment Charges

During the second quarter of 2006 the Company announced the closure of European Interiors facility In

connection with this action the Company recorded an asset impairment of $10 million to reduce the net

book value of certain long-lived assets to their estimated fair value Also during the second quarter of 2006

and in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No 18 The Equity Method of Accounting for

Investments in Common Stock the Company determined that an other than temporary decline in the fair

market value of its investment in Vitro Flex S.A de C.V Vitro Flex had occurred Consequently the

Company reduced the carrying value of its investment in Vitro Flex by approximately $12 million to its

estimated fair market value at June 30 2006

NOTE Restructuring Activities

The Company has undertaken various restructuring activities to achieve its strategic and financial

objectives Restructuring activities include but are not limited to plant closures production relocation

administrative cost structure realignment and consolidation of available capacity and resources In

addition to its ongoing operating cash needs the Company expects to finance restructuring programs

through cash reimbursement from an escrow account established pursuant to the ACH Transactions from

cash generated from its ongoing operations or through cash available under its existing debt agreements

subject to the terms of applicable covenants

Amended Escrow Agreement

Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement dated as of October 2005 among the Company Ford and Deutsche

Bank Trust Company Americas Ford paid $400 million into the escrow account for use by the Company to

restructure its businesses The Escrow Agreement provides that the Company will be reimbursed from the

escrow account for the first $250 million of reimbursable restructuring costs as defined in the Escrow

Agreement and up to one half of the next $300 million of such costs In August 2008 and pursuant to the

Amended Escrow Agreement Ford contributed an additional $50 million into the escrow account The

Amended Escrow Agreement provides that such additional funds are available to fund restructuring and

other qualified costs on 100% basis

81



VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE Restructuring Activities Continued

Cash in the escrow account is invested at the direction of the Company in high quality short-term

investments and related investment earnings are credited to the account as earned Investment earnings

of $28 million became available to reimburse the Companys restructuring costs following the use of the

first $250 million of available funds Investment earnings on the remaining $200 million will be available for

reimbursement after full utilization of those funds While the Company anticipates full utilization of funds

available under the Amended Escrow Agreement any amounts remaining in the escrow account after

December 31 2012 will be disbursed to the Company pursuant to the terms of the Amended Escrow

Agreement The following table provides reconciliation of amounts available in the escrow account

Year Ended Inception through
December 31 2008 December 31 2008

Dollars in Millions

Beginning escrow account available 144 400

Add Amended Escrow Agreement Funding 50 50

Add Investment earnings 35

Deduct Disbursements for restructuring costs 129 417

Ending escrow account available 68 68

Approximately $7 million and $22 million of amounts receivable from the escrow account were classified in

Other current assets in the Companys consolidated balance sheets as of December31 2008 and 2007

respectively

Restructuring Reserves

The following is summary of the Companys consolidated restructuring reserves and related activity for

the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Substantially all of the Companys

restructuring expenses are related to employee severance and termination benefit costs Information in

the table below includes amounts associated with the Companys discontinued operations

Interiors Climate Electronics Other Total

Dollars in Millions

December 31 2005 $10 14

Expenses 24 31 16 24 95

Utilization 10 18 22 56

December 31 2006 18 21 12 53

Expenses 66 27 60 162

Utilization 26 25 48 103

December3l2007 58 23 24 112

Expenses 42 20 82 147

Exchange

Utilization 48 40 98 192

December31 2008 $49 $3 $4 $8 64
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Restructuring reserve balances of $45 million and $87 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively are classified as Other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets The

Company anticipates that the activities associated with the restructuring reserve balance as of

December 31 2008 will be substantially completed by the end of 2009 Other restructuring reserves

of $19 million and $25 million are classified as Other non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance

sheet as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively and relate to employee benefits that are probable

and estimable but for which associated activities will not be completed within one year

Utilization includes $131 million $79 million and $49 million of payments for severance and other employee

termination benefits for the years ended December31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Utilization also

includes $46 million $16 million and $7 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of special termination

benefits reclassified to pension and other postretirement employee benefit liabilities where such

payments are made from the Companys benefit plans For the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 utilization also includes $15 million and $8 million respectively in payments related to contract

termination and equipment relocation costs

Estimates of restructuring costs are based on information available at the time such charges are recorded

In general management anticipates that restructuring activities will be completed within timeframe such

that significant changes to the plan are not likely Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in estimating

restructuring expenses actual amounts paid for such activities may differ from amounts initially estimated

resulting in unexpected costs in future periods Generally charges are recorded as elements of the plan

are finalized and the timing of activities and the amount of related costs are not likely to change

2008 Restructuring Actions

During 2008 the Company recorded restructuring charges of $147 million including $107 million under the

previously announced multi-year improvement plan Significant actions under the multi-year improvement

plan include the following

$33 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with approximately

290 employees to reduce the Companys salaried workforce in higher cost countries

$23 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with approximately 20

salaried and 250 hourly employees at European Interiors facility

$18 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with 55 employees at the

Companys Other products facility located in Swansea UK In connection with the Swansea Divestiture

Visteon UK Limited agreed to reduce the number of employees to be transferred which resulted in

$5 million of employee severance benefits and $13 million of special termination benefits

$9 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs related to approximately 100 hourly and

salaried employees at certain manufacturing facilities located in the UK

$6 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with approximately

40 employees at European Interiors facility

$5 million of contract termination charges related to the closure of European Other facility

$5 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs for the closure of European Interiors

facility
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The Company has incurred $382 million in cumulative restructuring costs related to the multi-year

improvement plan including $156 million $129 million $66 million and $31 million for the Other

Interiors Climate and Electronics product groups respectively Substantially all restructuring expenses

recorded to date relate to employee severance and termination benefit costs and are classified as

Restructuring expenses on the consolidated statements of operations As of December 31 2008

restructuring reserves related to the multi-year improvement plan are approximately $54 million including

$35 million and $19 million classified as other current liabilities and other non-current liabilities

respectively The Company estimates that the total cost associated with the multi-year improvement

plan will be approximately $475 million

In addition to the multi-year improvement plan the Company commenced program during September

2008 designed to fundamentally realign consolidate and rationalize the Companys administrative

organization structure on global basis through various voluntary and involuntary employee

separation actions Related employee severance and termination benefit costs of $26 million were

recorded during 2008 associated with approximately 320 salaried employees in the United States and

100 salaried employees in other countries for which severance and termination benefits were deemed

probable and estimable The Company expects to record additional costs related to this global program in

future periods when elements of the plan are finalized and the timing of activities and the amount of related

costs are not likely to change The Company also recorded $9 million of employee severance and

termination benefit costs associated with approximately 850 hourly and 60 salaried employees at North

American Climate facility As of December31 2008 restructuring reserves related to these programs were

approximately $10 million

2007 Restructuring Actions

During 2007 the company incurred restructuring expenses of $162 million under the multi-year

improvement plan including the following significant actions

$31 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with the elimination of

approximately 300 salaried positions

$27 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs for approximately 300 employees at

European Interiors facility related to the announced 2008 closure of that facility

$21 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs for approximately 600 hourly and 100

salaried employees related to the announced 2008 closure of North American Other facility

$14 million was recorded related to the December 2007 closure of North American Climate facility for

employee severance and termination benefits contract termination and equipment move costs

$12 million of expected employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with

approximately 100 hourly employees under plant efficiency action at European Climate facility

$10 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs associated with the exit of brake

manufacturing operations at European Other facility Approximately 160 hourly and 20 salaried

positions were eliminated as result of this action

$10 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs were recorded for approximately

40 hourly and 20 salaried employees at various European facilities
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In addition to the above announced actions the Company recorded an estimate of expected employee

severance and termination benefit costs of approximately $34 million for the probable payment of such

post-employment benefit costs in connection with the multi-year improvement plan Restructuring

reserves related to the multi-year improvement plan are approximately $112 million including

$87 million and $25 million classified as other current liabilities and other non-current liabilities

respectively on the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2007

2006 Restructuring Actions

During 2006 the Company incurred restructuring expenses of $95 million under the multi-year

improvement plan including the following significant actions

$20 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs for 750 hourly and 170 salaried

employees related to the 2007 closure of North American Climate manufacturing facility

$19 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs for the elimination of approximately 800

salaried positions pursuant to an announced program to reduce salaried workforce in higher cost

countries

$9 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs related to approximately 600 employees

at Climate facilities in North America and 70 employees at certain European manufacturing facilities

$7 million related to the announced closure of European Interiors manufacturing facility Costs include

employee severance and termination benefits for approximately 150 hourly and salaried employees and

certain non-employee related costs associated with closing the facility

$7 million of employee severance and termination benefit costs related to workforce reduction effort at

European Interiors manufacturing facility These costs relate to approximately 110 hourly employees

$6 million of employee severance and termination benefits for approximately 500 hourly and 50 salaried

employees related to workforce reduction at Electronics manufacturing facilities in Mexico and

Portugal

$6 million related to restructuring initiative at North American Electronics manufacturing facility

These costs include severance and termination benefit costs for approximately 1000 employees

$5 million related to the announced closure of North American Interiors manufacturing facility

including employee severance and termination benefit costs for 265 hourly employees 26 salaried

employees and lease termination penalty

NOTE Discontinued Operations and Extraordinary Item

Discontinued Operations

In March 2007 the Company entered into the MASPA for the sale of certain assets and liabilities

associated with the Companys chassis operations The Chassis Divestiture while representing

significant portion of the Companys chassis operations did not result in the complete exit of any of

the affected product lines Effective May 31 2007 the Company ceased to produce brake components at

its Swansea UK facility which resulted in the complete exit of the Companys global suspension product

line Accordingly the results of operations of the Companys global suspension product line have been

reclassified to Loss from discontinued operations net of tax in the consolidated statements of operations

for the years ended December31 2007 and 2006 summary of the results of discontinued operations is

provided in the table below
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Year Ended

December 31

2007 2006

Dollars in

Millions

Net product sales 50 $165

Cost of sales 63 184

Gross margin 13 19
Selling general and administrative expenses

Asset impairments 12

Restructuring expenses 10

Reimbursement from Escrow Account 12

Loss from discontinued operations net of tax $24 $22

Extraordinary Item

On April 27 2006 the Companys wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary Carplastics S.A de C.V

acquired the real property inventory tooling and equipment of Guide Lighting Technologies of Mexico

de R.L de C.V lighting manufacturing facility located in Monterrey Mexico In accordance with

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 141 Business Combinations the Company allocated

the purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired The sum of the amounts assigned to the assets

and liabilities acquired exceeded the cost of the acquired entity and that excess was allocated as pro rata

reduction of the amounts that otherwise would have been assigned to all of the acquired non-financial

assets i.e property and equipment An excess of $8 million remained after reducing to zero the amounts

that otherwise would have been assigned to the non-financial assets and was recorded as an extraordinary

gain in the accompanying consolidated financial statements

NOTE Inventories

Inventories consist of the following components

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in

Millions

Raw materials $145 $159

Work-in-process 184 224

Finished products 67 160

396 543

Valuation reserves 42 48

$354 $495
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Other current assets are summarized as follows

Recoverable taxes

Current deferred tax assets

Deposits

Unamortized debt costs

Prepaid assets

Escrow receivable

Other

Other non-current assets are summarized as follows

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

$34 $39
33

11

49 39

$94 $122

Unamortized debt issue costs of $20 million have been reclassified from Other non-current assets to

Other current assets in accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 78 Classification of Obligations that are Callable by the Creditor SFAS 78

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in

Millions

$119 88

29 47

24 30

20

18 28

22

32 20

$249 $235

Non-current deferred tax assets

Unamortized debt costs and other intangible assets

Notes and other receivables

Other
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Property and equipment net consists of the following

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

Land 73 95

Buildings and improvements 809 1083

Machinery equipment and other 2985 3894

Construction in progress 112 146

Total property and equipment 3979 5218

Accumulated depreciation t907 2573

2072 2645

Product tooling net of amortization 90 148

Property and equipment net 2162 2793

Property and equipment is depreciated principally using the straight-line method of depreciation over the

estimated useful life of the asset Generally buildings and improvements are depreciated over 30-year

estimated useful life and machinery equipment and other assets are depreciated over estimated useful

lives ranging from to 15 years Product tooling is amortized using the straight-line method over the

estimated life of the tool generally not exceeding six years Depreciation and amortization expenses are

summarized as follows

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

Depreciation $380 $425 $377

Amortization 36 47 53

$416 $472 $430

The Company recorded approximately $37 million $50 million and $5 million of accelerated depreciation

expense for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively representing the

shortening of estimated useful lives of certain assets primarily machinery and equipment in

connection with the Companys restructuring activities

NOTE 10 Non-Consolidated Affiliates

The Company had $220 million and $218 million of equity in the net assets of non-consolidated affiliates at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The Company recorded equity in net income of non-

consolidated affiliates of $41 million $47 million and $33 million at December 31 2008 2007 and

2006 respectively The following table presents summarized financial data for such non-consolidated

affiliates The amounts included in the table below represent 100% of the results of operations of the

Companys non-consolidated affiliates accounted for under the equity method Yanfeng Visteon

Automotive Trim Systems Co Ltd Yanfeng of which the Company owns 50% interest is

considered significant non-consolidated affiliate and is shown separately below
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Summarized balance sheet data as of December 31 is as follows

Yanfeng All Others

Dollars in Millions

2008 2007 2008 2007

Current assets $386 $349 $216 $230

Other assets 375 311 205 184

Total assets 761 660 421 414

Current liabilities 453 363 227 211

Other liabilities 75 85 16 23

Shareholders equity 233 212 178 180

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $761 $660 $421 $414

Summarized statement of operations data for the years ended December 31 is as follows

Net Sales Gross Margin Net Income

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

Yanfeng $1059 929 646 $190 $162 $114 $71 $68 $51

All other 805 707 652 119 106 94 14 26 16

$1864 $1636 $1298 $309 $268 $208 $85 $94 $67

The Companys share of net assets and net income is reported in the consolidated financial statements as

Equity in net assets of non-consolidated affiliates on the consolidated balance sheets and Equity in net

income of non-consolidated affiliates on the consolidated statements of operations Included in the

Companys accumulated deficit is undistributed income of non-consolidated affiliates accounted for under

the equity method of approximately $104 million and $99 million at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively

Restricted net assets related to the Companys consolidated subsidiaries were approximately $91 million

and $85 million respectively as of December 31 2008 and 2007 Restricted net assets related to the

Companys non-consolidated affiliates were approximately $220 million and $218 million respectively as

of December31 2008 and 2007 Restricted net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are attributable to the

Companys operations in China where certain regulatory requirements and governmental restraints result

in significant restrictions on the Companys consolidated subsidiaries ability to transfer funds to the

Company
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Other current liabilities are summarized as follows

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in

Millions

Product warranty and recall reserves 50 54

Accrued interest payable 45 62

Restructuring reserves 45 87

Non-income taxes payable 38 34

Income taxes payable 16 13

Other accrued liabilities 94 101

$288 $351

Other non-current liabilities are summarized as follows

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in

Millions

Incometax reserves $155 $154

Non-income taxes payable 57 80

Product warranty and recall reserves 50 54

Deferred income 46 63

Restructuring reserves 19 25

Other accrued liabilities 38 52

$365 $428

In connection with the ACH Transactions the Companysold to and leased-back from Ford certain land and

buildings under two separate lease arrangements both for six-year terms with rental payments at below

market rates which represents continuing involvement under Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No 98 Accounting for Leases Accordingly recognition of the $42 million gain associated

with these sale-leasebacks was deferred During 2008 the Company terminated one of these lease

arrangements and recognized $12 million of related deferred income which was offset by the remaining

net book value associated with the facility The remaining deferred income associated with this sale

leaseback will be recognized upon termination of the Companys continuing involvement with the facility

The Company also carried deferred gains associated with other sale-leaseback transactions of $12 million

and $15 million as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively which will be recognized over the

remaining lease terms of up to five years on these facilities
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In October 2008 the Company amended and restated agreements related to its European trade accounts

receivable securitization facility the European Securitization to among other things include an

additional selling entity and change the master service provider In connection with these

amendments the Company regained control of previously transferred trade receivables such that

effective October 2008 this facility which was previously accounted for as sale of receivables under

the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 140 SFAS 140 Accounting for

Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities was accounted for as

secured borrowing and Visteon Financial Centre Plc bankruptcy-remote qualifying special purpose

entity was consolidated in accordance with the requirements of FIN 46R The accounting impact at the

time of these amendments was non-cash affecting and included an increase in Accounts receivable net of

$291 million decrease in Interests in accounts receivable transferred of $207 million and an increase in

Long-term debt of $84 million

Prior to the October 2008 amendments trade receivables transferred from the Sellers were funded

through cash obtained from the issuance of variable loan notes to third-party lenders and through

subordinated loans obtained from wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which represented the

Companys retained interest in the trade receivables transferred Transfers for which the Company
received consideration other than beneficial interest were accounted for as true sales and were

removed from the consolidated balance sheet Transfers for which the Company received beneficial

interest were not removed from the consolidated balance sheet totaled $434 million as of December 31

2007 were recorded at fair value and were subordinated to the interests of third-party lenders Securities

representing the Companys retained interests were accounted for as trading securities under Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards No 115 Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity

Securities

The table below provides reconciliation of changes in interests in account receivables transferred for the

period through which transfers were accounted for as true sales under SFAS 140

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

Beginning balance 434 482

Receivables transferred 2171 3263

Receivables balance sheet reclassification due to FIN 46R 207
Proceeds from new securitizations 41
Proceeds from collections reinvested in securitization 464 522
Cash flows received on interests retained 1882 2806
Exchange 52 58

Ending balance 434

The Company recorded losses of $7 million and $8 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 respectively related to trade receivables sold under the European Securitization

Other

During 2006 the Company sold account receivables without recourse under European sale of

receivables agreement As of December 31 2006 the Company had sold approximately 62 million

Euro $81 million This European sale of receivables agreement was terminated in December 2006

Losses on these receivable sales were approximately $3 million for the year ended December 31 2006
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Pursuant to affirmative covenants contained in the agreements associated with the Facilities the

Company is required to provide audited annual financial statements within prescribed period of time

after the end of each fiscal year without going concern audit report or like qualification or exception On

March 31 2009 the Companys independent registered public accounting firm included an explanatory

paragraph in its audit report on the Companys 2008 consolidated financial statements indicating

substantial doubt about the Companys ability to continue as going concern The receipt of such an

explanatory statement constitutes default under the Facilities On March 31 2009 the Company entered

into Waivers with the lenders under the Facilities which provide for waivers of such defaults for limited

periods of time as more fully described below

The Company is exploring various strategic and financing alternatives and has retained legal and financial

advisors to assist in this regard The Company has commenced discussions with lenders under the

Facilities including an ad hoc committee of lenders under its senior secured term loan regarding the

restructuring of the Companys capital structure Additionally the Company has commenced discussions

with certain of its major customers to address its liquidity and capital requirements Any such restructuring

may affect the terms of the Facilities other debt and common stock and may be affected through

negotiated modifications to the related agreements or through other forms of restructurings including

under court supervision pursuant to voluntary bankruptcy filing under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy

Code There can be no assurance that an agreement regarding any such restructuring will be obtained on

acceptable terms with the necessary parties or at all If an acceptable agreement is not obtained an event

of default under the Facilities would occur as of the expiration of the Waivers excluding any extensions

thereof and the lenders would have the right to accelerate the obligations thereunder Acceleration of the

Companys obligations under the Facilities would constitute an event of default under the senior unsecured

notes and would likely result in the acceleration of these obligations as well In any such event the

Company may be required to seek protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code

The aforementioned has resulted in the classification of $2554 million of long-term debt as current

liability in accordance with the requirements of SFAS 78 and FASB Emerging Issues Task Force Issue

No 86-30 Classification of Obligations When Violation Is Waived by the Creditor

Effective March 31 2009 the Company entered into limited waivers and amendments to the following

agreements

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of April 10 2007 as amended supplemented

or otherwise modified the Term Credit Agreement among the Company certain of its subsidiaries

the lenders party thereto Credit Suisse Securities USA LLC and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking

Corporation as co-documentation agents Citicorp USA Inc as syndication agent JPMorgan

Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent and J.P Morgan Securities Inc and Citigroup Global

Markets Inc as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners

The Credit Agreement dated as of August 14 2006 as amended supplemented or otherwise modified

the ABL Credit Agreement among the Company certain of its subsidiaries the lenders party thereto

and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Administrative Agent and

The Master Receivables Purchase Servicing Agreement dated as of August 14 2006 and as

amended and restated as of October 29 2008 the Securitization Agreement by and among Visteon

UK Limited Visteon Deutschland GmbH Visteon Sistemas Interiores Espana S.L.U Cadiz Electronica

S.A.U Visteon Portuguesa Limited VC Receivables Financing Corporation Limited Visteon

Electronics Corporation Visteon Financial Centre P.L.C The Law Debenture Trust Corporation

P.L.C Citibank N.A Citibank International Plc Citicorp USA Inc and the Company and the

related securitization agreements

92



VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 13 Debt Continued

Pursuant to the Limited Waiver Term Waiver to the Term Credit Agreement the potential default relating

to the inclusion of an explanatory paragraph in the report of the Companys independent registered public

accounting firm indicating substantial doubt about the Companys ability to continue as going concern

the Going-Concern Default is waived until May 30 2009 and the Company is required to complete

certain collateral disclosure and perfection matters within certain periods following effectiveness or the

Term Waiver may be terminated prior to May 30 2009 and certain other Events of Default may occur The

Company also entered into letter agreement effective as of March 31 2009 the Ad Hoc Committee

Letter Agreement with the Ad Hoc Committee which requires among other things that the Company
and its subsidiaries provide access to management as well as certain analysis and reports to the Ad Hoc

Committee The agreement also requires the Company and its subsidiaries in North America and Europe

to maintain balance of cash and cash equivalents of at least $335.1 million on consolidated basis and

requires the Company and its subsidiaries in North America to maintain balance of cash and cash

equivalents of at least $193.5 million on consolidated basis The Ad Hoc Committee Letter Agreement

provides that the failure to comply with any of its terms will cause termination of the Term Waiver prior to

May 30 2009 and certain other Defaults or Events of Default may occur

Pursuant to the Fourth Amendment and Limited Waiver to the Credit Agreement and Amendment to

Security Agreement the ABL Waiver the Going-Concern Default is waived until May 30 2009 and the

Company is required to complete certain collateral disclosure and perfection matters within certain periods

following effectiveness or the ABL Waiver may be terminated at the discretion of the Administrative Agent
The ABL Waiver also makes several amendments to the ABL Credit Agreement including

Increasing the interest rate applicable to borrowing and commitment fees payable thereunder

Eliminating the availability of swingline loans and overadvances

Restricting future borrowings or the issuance of any new letters of credit if such borrowing or letter of

credit would cause the amount of the Companys cash and cash equivalents in the U.S to exceed

$100 million excluding amounts held in certain designated collateral accounts

Requiring the Company to maintain cash and cash equivalents in certain designated deposit or

securities account in amount that at least equals the amount borrowed plus letters of credit issued under

the ABL Credit Agreement and

Ensuring that only certain amount of cash and cash equivalents are held in accounts that are not

subject to control agreements securing outstanding amounts under the ABL Credit Agreement

Pursuant to the Conditional Waiver the Securitization Waiver to the Securitization Agreement the

Going-Concern Default is waived until June 29 2009 The Securitization Waiver also makes several

amendments to the Securitization Agreement including

Decreasing the variable funding facility limit to $200 million

Increasing the borrowing rates and commitment fees payable thereunder

Increasing certain reserves

Requiring notification to customers by Visteon of the sales of receivables and re-direction of customer

payments to special purpose segregated accounts

Increasing the frequency of borrowing base and other reporting and settlement periods

Giving the agent discretion to access receivables collections and
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Requiring further amendments from May 31 2009 that would require customers whose receivable have

been sold under the program to make payment thereon directly to the lenders

As of December31 2008 the Company had $2697 million and $65 million of debt outstanding classified

as short-term debt and long-term debt respectively The Companys short and long-term debt balances

consist of the following

Weighted

Average

Interest Rate Carrying Value

Maturity 2008 2007 2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

Short-term debt

Debt in default 7.4% $2554

Current portion of long-term debt 6.3% 5.8% 72 44

Othershort-term 6.1% 5.5% 71 51

Total short-term debt 2697 95

Long-term debt

8.25% notes due August 2010 2010 8.4% 553

Term loan due June 13 2013 2013 8.5% 1000

Term loan due December 13 2013 2013 8.6% 500

7.00% notes due March 10 2014 2014 7.7% 449

12.25% notes due December 31 2016 2016

2010-2027 6.3% 5.6% 65 243

65 2745

$2762 $2840

Other

Total long-term debt

Total debt

The fair value of debt including related interest rate swaps was approximately $826 million at

December 31 2008 based on quoted market prices or current rates for similar debt with the same

credit ratings and remaining maturities compared with carrying value of $2762 million The fair value of

debt including related interest rate swaps was approximately $2657 million at December 31 2007

compared with carrying value of $2840 million

2008 Debt Transactions

On June 18 2008 the Company completed the sale of $206.4 million aggregate principal amount of its

12.25% senior notes due 2016 the New Notes in private placement exempt from the registration

requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 On June 18 2008 the Company repurchased $344 million in

aggregate principal amount of its 8.25% senior notes due August 2010 pursuant to partial tender offer

commenced on May 19 2008 collectively the Bond Transactions The Company used the net proceeds

from the sale of the New Notes plus additional cash on hand to pay the aggregate consideration of

approximately $337 million excluding costs and expenses for such repurchase
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The Bond Transactions were accounted for as modification of existing indebtedness under FASB

Emerging Issues Task Force No 96-19 Debtors Accounting for Modification or Exchange of Debt

Instruments Accordingly an aggregate discount of $10 million related to the net amount of the discount on

the New Notes which were issued at price of $916.21 per $1 000 in aggregate principle amount fees

paid to creditors and the gain on retirement of $344 million of 8.25% senior notes due August 2010 has

been deferred and will be amortized over the life of the New Notes up to December 31 2013 Additionally

during the second quarter of 2008 the Company recorded $5 million of expenses related to third party fees

and recognized $3 million of unamortized gains related to previously terminated interest rate swaps in

connection with the Bond Transactions

In October 2008 the Company amended and restated agreements related to the European Securitization

In connection with these amendments the Company regained control of previously transferred trade

receivables such that effective October 2008 this facility which was previously accounted for as sale of

receivables under the provisions of SFAS 140 was accounted for as secured borrowing and the

Transferor was consolidated in accordance with the requirements of FIN 46R

2007 Debt Transactions

On November 27 2007 the Companys 70% owned subsidiary HaIfa Climate Control Corporation issued

two separate unsecured bonds of 60 billion KRW and 70 billion KRW due November 27 2009 and 2010

respectively for total proceeds of approximately $139 million The proceeds from the new loan combined
with existing cash balances were used to subscribe for an ownership interest in newly formed Korean

company that holds interests in certain of the Companys climate control operations in India China and the

United States In December 2007 Visteon redeemed its ownership interest in the newly formed Korean

company in exchange for approximately $292 million

On April 10 2007 the Company entered into an agreement to amend and restate its $1 billion seven-year

term loan due June 13 2013 the Amended Credit Agreement to provide an additional $500 million

seven-year term loan which will mature on December 13 2013 Consistent with the existing term loan the

additional term loan bears interest at Eurodollar rate pIus 3%

8.25% Notes due August 2010

On August 2000 the Company completed public offering of unsecured fixed rate term debt securities

which included $700 million maturing on August 2010 On June 18 2008 the Company repurchased

$344 million in aggregate principal amount of its 8.25% senior notes due August 2010 pursuant to the Bond

Transactions These securities bear interest at stated rate of 8.25% with interest payable semi-annually

on February and August beginning on February 2001 The unsecured term debt securities

agreement contains certain restrictions including among others limitation relating to liens and sale

leaseback transactions as defined in the agreement The Company was in compliance with applicable

restrictions as of December 31 2008
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Seven-Year Term Loans due June 13 2013 and December 13 2013

The $1 billion seven-year term loan due June 13 2013 is collateralized by first-priority lien on certain

assets of the Company and most of its domestic subsidiaries including intellectual property intercompany

debt the capital stock of nearly all direct and indirect subsidiaries and 65% of the stock of certain foreign

subsidiaries as well as second-priority lien on substantially all other tangible and intangible assets of the

Company and most of its domestic subsidiaries The terms of the facility limits the obligation collateralized

by certain U.S assets to ensure compliance with the Companys bond indenture In addition the terms of

the facility limits the amount of dividends that the Company can pay Borrowings under the $1 billion seven-

year term loan bear interest based on variable rate interest option selected at the time of borrowing

Pursuant to the Amended Credit Agreement the Company borrowed an additional $500 million under

seven-year term loan due December 13 2013 Consistent with the $1 billion seven-year term loan due

June 13 2013 the additional $500 million seven-year term loan is collateralized by first-priority lien on

certain assets of the Company and domestic subsidiaries as well as limited number of foreign

subsidiaries including intellectual property intercompany debt the capital stock of nearly all direct and

indirect subsidiaries 65% of the stock of most foreign subsidiaries and 100% of the stock of certain foreign

subsidiaries who act as guarantors as well as second-priority lien on substantially all other tangible and

intangible assets of the Company and most of its domestic subsidiaries The terms of the facility limits the

obligation secured by certain U.S assets to ensure compliance with the Companys bond indenture In

addition the terms of the facility limits the amount of dividends that the Company can pay Borrowings

under the additional $500 million seven-year term loan bear interest based on variable rate interest

option selected at the time of borrowing The Company was in compliance with applicable limitations as of

December 31 2008

7.00% Notes due March 10 2014

On March 10 2004 the Company completed public offering of unsecured fixed-rate term debt securities

totaling $450 million with maturity of 10 years The securities bear interest at stated rate of 7.00% with

interest payable semi-annually on March 10 and September 10 beginning on September 10 2004 The

securities rank equally with the Companys existing and future unsecured fixed-rate term debt securities

and senior to any future subordinated debt The unsecured term debt securities agreement contains

certain restrictions including among others limitation relating to liens and sale-leaseback transactions

as defined in the agreement The Company was in compliance with applicable restrictions as of

December 31 2008

12.25% Notes due December 31 2016

On June 18 2008 the Company completed the sale of $206.4 million aggregate principal amount of its

12.25% senior notes due 2016 in private placement exempt from the registration requirements of the

Securities Act of 1933 The New Notes rank equally with the Companys existing and future unsecured

term debt senior to any future subordinated debt and are guaranteed by certain of its U.S subsidiaries

The New Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or any state securities

laws
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The New Notes were issued pursuant to supplemental indenture which contains covenants that limit

among other things the ability of the Company and its restricted subsidiaries to incur additional

indebtedness make certain distributions investments and other restricted payments dispose of

assets grant liens on assets issue guarantees designate unrestricted subsidiaries engage in

transactions with affiliates enter into agreements restricting the ability of subsidiaries to pay dividends

engage in sale and leaseback transactions and merge or consolidate or transfer substantially all of its

assets subject to certain exceptions and qualifications Each of the Companys existing and future wholly-

owned domestic restricted subsidiaries that guarantee debt under the ABL Facility guarantee the New

Notes

Holders of the New Notes have the right to require the Company to redeem their New Notes in whole or in

part on December31 2013 at redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and

unpaid interest the Put Option The Company may redeem the New Notes prior to December31 2013

in whole at any time or in part from time to time at its option at redemption price equal to the greater of

100% of the principal amount to be redeemed and the sum of the present values of the remaining

scheduled payments of principal and interest on the New Notes to be redeemed discounted to the date of

redemption on semi-annual basis at the applicable Treasury Rate plus 50 basis points plus accrued and

unpaid interest including if applicable liquidated damages on the principal amount being redeemed to

the redemption date Thereafter the Company may redeem the New Notes in whole at any time or in part

from timeto time at its option at specified redemption prices plus accrued and unpaid interest In addition

upon the occurrence of certain change of control events holders of the New Notes have the right to require

the Company to purchase some or all of the New Notes at 101% of the principal amount thereof plus

accrued and unpaid interest

Interest on the New Notes is fixed at an annual rate of 12.25% and is payable semi-annually in arrears on

June 30 and December 31 beginning December 31 2008 The Company is required to pay additional

interest on the New Notes if at any time during the period beginning six months and ending one year after

June 18 2008 adequate current public information with respect to the Company is unavailable

Other Debt

The U.S Asset-Backed Lending Facility ABL Facility allows for total borrowings of up to $350 million

The amount of availability at any time is dependent upon various factors including outstanding letters of

credit the amount of eligible receivables inventory and property and equipment Borrowings under the

ABL Facility bear interest based on variable rate interest option selected at the time of borrowing The

ABL Facility expires on August 14 2011 As of December 31 2008 the total facility availability for the

Company was $174 million with $50 million available for borrowings after $75 million of outstanding

borrowings and $49 million of obligations under outstanding letters of credit In January 2009 the

Company borrowed an additional $30 million under the ABL Facility

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the ABL Facility the Administrative Agent is permitted at its

discretion to reduce the borrowing base under the ABL Facility On March 17 2009 the Company was

notified by the Administrative Agent at its sole discretion of $30 million reduction to the Companys

borrowing base to reflect the impairment of long-lived assets Accordingly the Company had no available

liquidity under the ABL Facility effective March 17 2009
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Borrowings under the ABL Facility are secured by first-priority lien on certain assets of the Company and

most of its domestic subsidiaries including real property accounts receivable inventory equipment and

other tangible and intangible property including the capital stock of nearly all direct and indirect domestic

subsidiaries other than those domestic subsidiaries the sole assets of which are capital stock of foreign

subsidiaries as well as second-priority lien on substantially all other material tangible and intangible

assets of the Company and most of its domestic subsidiaries which secure the Companys seven-year

term loan agreement The terms of the ABL Facility limit the obligations secured by certain U.S assets to

ensure compliance with the Companys bond indenture Use of the facility is dependent on the Company

meeting minimum excess liquidity requirements

The European Securitization extends until August 2011 and provides up to $325 million in funding from the

sale of trade receivables originating from Company subsidiaries located in Germany Portugal Spain

France the United States and the UK the Sellers The amount of funding available under the European

Securitization is based upon the amount of trade receivables transferred by the Sellers reduced by

outstanding borrowings under the program and other characteristics of those trade receivables that affect

their eligibility such as bankruptcy or the grade of the obligor delinquency and excessive concentration

As of December31 2008 approximately $98 million of the Companys trade receivables were considered

eligible for borrowing under the European Securitization $92 million of secured borrowings were

outstanding and $6 million was available for funding

Borrowings under the European Securitization are secured by the underlying receivables and bear interest

based on one-month variable rate plus 225 basis points determined at the time of borrowing The use of

the European Securitization facility is dependent on the Company meeting minimum excess liquidity

requirements The Sellers act as servicing agents and continue to service the transferred receivables for

which they receive monthly servicing fee based on the aggregate amount of the outstanding purchased

receivables The Company is required to pay monthly fee to the lenders based on the unused portion of

the European Securitization

As of December31 2008 the Company had additional debt facilities of $437 million with $143 million and

$65 million in short-term and long-term debt outstanding respectively consisting of credit facilities and

capital leases for various affiliates and other obligations Remaining availability on these affiliate credit

facilities is approximately $229 million Certain of these balances are related to number of the Companys
non-U.S operations portion of which are payable in non-U.S currencies including but not limited to the

Euro Brazilian Real and Korean Won

Interest Rate Swaps

The Company has entered into interest rate swaps for portion of the 8.25% notes due August 2010

$125 million and portion of the 7.00% notes due March 10 2014 $225 million These interest rate

swaps effectively convert the designated portions of these notes from fixed interest rate to variable interest

rate instruments in connection with the Companys risk management policies These interest rate swaps
have been designated as fair value hedges and the effect of marking these contracts to market has been

recorded in the Companys consolidated balance sheets as direct adjustment to the underlying debt

The adjustment does not affect the results of operations unless the contract is terminated in which case

the resulting gain or loss on termination is recorded as valuation adjustment of the underlying debt and is

amortized to interest expense over the remaining life of the debt
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During 2006 the Company entered into interest rate swaps for portion of the $1 billion seven-year term

loan due 2013 $200 million effectively converting the designated portion of this loan from variable

interest rate to fixed interest rate instrument These interest rate swaps are accounted for as cash flow

hedges with the effective portion of the gain or loss reported in the Accumulated other comprehensive

income component of Shareholders deficit in the Companys consolidated balance sheets The

ineffective portion of these swaps is assessed based on the hypothetical derivative method and is

recorded as interest expense in the Companys consolidated statements of operations

NOTE 14 Employee Retirement Benefits

Visteon Sponsored Employee Retirement Plans

In the U.S the Companys hourly employees represented by certain collective bargaining groups earn

noncontributory benefits based on employee service while the Companys U.S salaried employees earn

noncontributory pay related benefits Certain of the non-U.S subsidiaries sponsor separate plans that

provide similar types of benefits to their employees In general the Companys defined benefit plans are

funded with the exception of certain supplemental benefit plans for executives and certain non-U.S plans

primarily in Germany The Companys policy for funded plans is to contribute annually at minimum

amounts required by applicable law regulation or union agreement

In May 2007 the Companyapproved changes to the U.S salaried pension plans which reduced disability

retirement benefits These changes reduced the projected benefit obligation by approximately $20 million

which is being amortized as reduction of retirement benefit expense over the estimated average

remaining service lives

Most U.S salaried employees and certain non-U.S employees are eligible to participate in defined

contribution plans by contributing portion of their compensation which is partially matched by the

Company Matching contributions were suspended for the U.S defined contribution plan effective

January 2002 were reinstated on July 2006 and were suspended effective December 2008

The expense related to matching contributions was approximately $8 million $8 million and $4 million in

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Visteon Sponsored Postretirement Employee Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits

In the U.S the Company has financial obligation for the cost of providing selected postretirement health

care and life insurance benefits to its employees under Company-sponsored plans These plans generally

pay for the cost of health care and life insurance for retirees and dependents less retiree contributions and

co-pays

In October 2008 the Company communicated changes to certain hourly postretirement employee health

care plans to eliminate Company-sponsored prescription drug benefits for Medicare eligible retirees

spouses and dependents effective January 2009 to eliminate all benefits for certain employees who are

not currently eligible and to provide additional retirement plan benefits These changes resulted in net

reduction in pension and OPEB liabilities of approximately $92 million This amount will be amortized as

net reduction of retirement and postretirement employee benefit expense over the average remaining life

expectancy of plan participants The Company recorded curtailment gains in the fourth quarter of 2008 of

approximately $16 million reflecting the elimination of future service in these plans
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During January 2007 the Company communicated changes to the U.S salaried postretirement health

care plans which became effective June 2007 These changes eliminate Company-sponsored

prescription drug coverage for Medicare eligible salaried retirees surviving spouses and dependents

These changes resulted in reduction to the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation APBO of

approximately $30 million which will be amortized as reduction of postretirement employee benefit

expense over the estimated average remaining employee service lives

Ford Sponsored Postretirement Employee Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits

Ford charges the Company for the expense of postretirement health care and life insurance benefits that

are provided by Ford to certain Company salaried employees who retire after May 24 2005 The Company
is required to fund the actual costs of these benefits as incurred by Ford for the salaried retirees through

2010 In addition the Company has agreed to contribute funds to trust to fund postretirement health care

and life insurance benefits to be provided by Ford related to these salaried employees and retirees The

required funding is over 39-year period beginning in 2011 The annual funding requirement during this

period will be determined annually based upon amortization of the unfunded liabilities at year-end 2010

plus portion of annual expense

The benefit obligations below reflect the salaried life insurance plan changes announced by Ford in 2008

and are based upon Fords assumptions The current and long-term benefit obligations and total net

amount recognized in the balance sheets for the postretirement health care and life insurance benefits

payable to Ford relating to participation by certain salaried employees were as follows

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in

Millions

Obligation for benefits to certain salaried employees 67 81

Unamortized gains associated with the obligation 46 40

Postretirement employee benefits payable to Ford $113 $121
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Benefit Expenses

The Companys expense for retirement benefits is as follows

Retirement Plans
Health Care and Life

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans Insurance Benefits

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions Except Percentages

Costs Recognized in Income

Service cost 21 23 49 19 27 35 16

Interest cost 73 71 73 70 72 70 31 32 42

Expected return on plan

assets 83 76 73 57 55 56
Amortization of

Transition obligation

Plan amendments 30 47 49
Losses and other 11 21 10 15 28

Special termination benefits

Curtailments 79 58 51
Settlements 20 32

_____ _____ _____

Visteon sponsored plan net

pension postretirement

expense 15 30 61 61 96 75 65 52 14
Expense for certain salaried

employees whose pensions

are partially covered by

Ford 32

Employee retirement benefit

expenses excluding

restructuring 15 36 59 61 96 75 72 57 46

Retirement benefit related

restructuring expenses

Special termination benefits 16 27

Other

Total employee retirement

benefit related restructuring

expenses 18 27

Weighted Average

Assumptions Used for

Expenses

Discount rate for expense 6.30% 5.95% 5.70% 5.70% 5.05% 4.90% 6.30% 5.85% 5.70%

Assumed long-term rate of

return on assets 8.25% 8.00% 8.50% 6.80% 6.50% 6.70%

Initial health care cost trend

rate 9.00% 9.30% 9.80%

Ultimate health care cost trend

rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Year ultimate health care cost

trend rate reached 2013 2011 2010
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Curtailments and Settlements

Curtailment and settlement gains and losses are recorded in accordance with Statement of Financial

Accounting Standards Nos 88 Employers Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined

Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits and 106 Employers Accounting for Postretirement

Benefits Other Than Pensions and are classified in the Companys consolidated statements of operations

as Cost of sales or Selling general and administrative expenses Qualifying curtailment and settlement

losses related to the Companys restructuring activities are reimbursable under the terms of the Amended

Escrow Agreement

During 2008 the Company recorded significant curtailments and settlements of its employee retirement

benefit plans as follows

Curtailment gains of $79 million related to elimination of employee benefits associated with U.S OPEB

plans in connection with employee headcount reductions under previously announced restructuring

actions These curtailments reduced the benefit obligations by $7 million

Curtailment losses of $7 million related to the reduction of future service in the UK pension plan for

employees at the Companys Swansea UK operation in connection with the Swansea Divestiture

These losses were partially offset by curtailment gains in Germany Mexico and France related to

employee headcount reductions under previously announced restructuring actions These curtailments

reduced the benefit obligations by $7 million in the UK and $4 million across Germany Mexico and

France

Settlement losses of $20 million related to UK employee pension obligations of approximately

$90 million transferred to Ford in October 2008 for employees that transferred from Visteon to Ford

during the years 2005 through 2007 in accordance with the ACH Transactions

During 2007 the Company recorded significant curtailments and settlements of its employee retirement

benefit plans as follows

Curtailment loss of $7 million related to employee retirement benefit obligations under certain

U.S retirement plans in connection with previously announced restructuring actions These

curtailments reduced the benefit obligations by $32 million

Settlement loss of $13 million related to employee retirement benefit obligations under certain German

retirement plans for employees of the Dueren and Wuelfrath Germany facilities which were included in

the Chassis Divestiture The divestiture also curtailed the future service in the German plans which

reduced the benefit obligations by $28 million

Settlement losses of $20 million related to employee retirement benefit obligations under Canadian

retirement plans for employees of the Markham Ontario facility which was closed in 2002

Curtailment loss of $4 million related to employee retirement benefit obligations for certain salaried

employee reductions in the UK

Curtailment gains of $58 million related to elimination of employee benefits associated with U.S OPEB

plan in connection with employee headcount reductions under previously announced restructuring

actions These curtailments reduced the balance sheet liability by $28 million

During 2006 the Company recorded significant curtailments and settlements of its employee retirement

benefit plans as follows
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Effective January 2006 Ford acquired two plants from ACH which are located in Rawsonville

Michigan and Sterling Heights Michigan In connection with this transaction and the Salaried Employee
Transition Agreement between the Company and Ford certain salaried employees of the Company

were transferred to Ford who were eligible for benefits or who had rights to benefits under Fords

postretirement health care and life insurance plans The Company recorded approximately $24 million

related to the relief of postretirement benefits payable to Ford Additionally the Company recorded

curtailment gains of approximately $48 million related to the reduction in expected years of future service

in Visteon sponsored postretirement health care and life insurance and retirement plans

Reduction of approximately 200 hourly employees at certain U.S manufacturing facilities resulted in

reduction in expected years of future service in the related retirement and postretirement health care

plans As result the Company recorded an OPEB curtailment gain of approximately $14 million and

pension curtailment loss of $3 million

In connection with plan to exit North American manufacturing facility the Company recorded

curtailment loss of $8 million The curtailment loss reflects reduction in expected years of future

service in the related retirement plans

Retirement Benefit Related Restructuring Expenses

In addition to normal employee retirement benefit expenses the Company recorded $46 million

$16 million and $7 million for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively for

retirement benefit related restructuring charges Such charges generally relate to special termination

benefits voluntary termination incentives and pension losses and are the result of various restructuring

actions as described in Note Restructuring Activities Retirement benefit related restructuring charges

are recorded in accordance with SFAS 87 88 106 112 and 158 are initially classified as restructuring

expenses and are subsequently reclassified to retirement benefit expenses

Assumed Health Care Trend Rate Sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to change in the assumed health care trend rate related to

Visteon sponsored postretirement employee health care plan expense excludes certain salaried

employees that are covered by Ford sponsored plan

Total Service and

Interest Cost APBO

100 basis point increase in health care cost trend ratesa $3 million $28 million

100 basis point decrease in health care cost trend ratesa $3 million $25 million

Assumes all other assumptions are held constant
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Benefit Obligations

Health Care

and Life
Retirement Plans

Insurance

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans Benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Dollars in Millions Except Percentages

Change in Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligationbeginning $1179 $1224 $1248 $1566 543 667

Effect of SFAS 158 adoption 17 52 90
Service cost 21 23 19 27

Interest cost 73 71 70 72 31 32

Participant contributions

Amendments/other 19 97
Actuarial loss/gain 49 52 105 117 20
Special termination benefits 22 27

Curtailments net 32 11 32 28
Settlements 95 183

Foreign exchange translation 265 57

Divestitures 70
Benef its paid 69 64 60 50 29 26

Benefit obligationending $1234 $1179 894 $1248 $325 $543

Change in Plan Assets

Plan assets beginning $1048 960 937 $1002

Effect of SFAS 158 adoption 29 24

Actual return on plan assets 89 78 50 45

Sponsor contributions 22 49 111 77 27 25

Participant contributions

Foreign exchange translation 197 38

Settlements 95 171
Divestitures 36
Benefits paid/other 73 68 60 50 29 26

Plan assets ending 908 $1048 652 937

Funded Status of the Plans

Benefit obligations in excess of plan assets 326 131 242 311 $325 $543
Balance Sheet Classification

Other non-current assets 10

Accrued employee liabilities 29 34
Employee benefits including pensions 317 128 249 313
Postretirement benefits other than pensions 296 509
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss gain 118 61 103 119 39 175

Prior service credit/cost 25 32 31 46 274 284
Deferred taxes 47 47

93 93 181 212 $235 $109
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The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $2009 million and

$2246 million at the 2008 and 2007 measurement dates The projected benefit obligation

accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for employee retirement plans with

accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $1 950 million $1 846 million and

$1372 million respectively for 2008 and $1693 million $1605 million and $1323 million

respectively for 2007

Components of the net change in Accumulated other comprehensive income loss related to the

Companys retirement health care and life insurance benefit plans on the Companys consolidated

statements of shareholders deficit for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 are as follows

Health Care and
Retirement Plans

Life Insurance

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans Benefits

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

Actuarial loss/gain arising during the period $178 $57 45 $129 $126 $48
Prior service costlcredit arising during the period 19 97
Reclassification to Net loss 82 97 83

$185 $67 $30 $126 $126 35

Amounts included in Accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31 2008 that are

expected to be realized in 2009 are as follows

Health Care and
Retirement Plans

Life Insurance

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans Benefits

Dollars in Millions

Actuarial gain/loss

Prior service costlcredit 26

$19

Assumptions used by the Company in determining its benefit obligations as of December 31 2008 and

2007 are summarized in the following table

Health Care and
Retirement Plans

Life Insurance

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plans Benefits

Weighted Average Assumptions

Discount rate 6.10% 6.25% 6.05% 5.70% 6.00% 6.05%

Expected rate of return on assets 8.10% 8.25% 6.65% 6.80%

Rate of increase in compensation 3.25% 3.75% 3.15% 3.30%

Initial health care cost trend rate 8.33% 9.00%

Ultimate health care cost trend rate 5.00% 5.00%

Year ultimate health care cost trend rate reached 2014 2013
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Contributions

During January 2009 the Company reached an agreement with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation

PBGC pursuant to U.S federal pension law provisions that permit the PBGC to seek protection when

plant closing results in termination of employment for more than 20 percent of employees covered by

pension plan the PBGC Agreement In connection with the multi-year improvement plan the Company

closed its Connersville Indiana and Bedford Indiana facilities which resulted in the separation of all active

participants in the respective pension plan Under the PBGC Agreement the Company agreed to

accelerate payment of $10.5 million cash contribution provide $15 million letter of credit and

provide for guarantee by certain affiliates of certain contingent pension obligations of up to $30 million

The Company expects to make contributions to its U.S retirement plans and postretirement employee

health care and life insurance plans of $36 million and $29 million respectively during 2009 Contributions

to non-U.S retirement plans are expected to be $30 million during 2009 The Companys expected 2009

contributions may be revised

Pursuant to certain agreements initially completed in connection with the ACH Transactions the Company

was reimbursed by Ford for $22 million of the $54 million contribution required in connection with the

October 2008 settlement of UK pension obligations for employees that transferred from Visteon to Ford

during the years 2005 through 2007

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments which reflect expected future service as appropriate are expected to be

paid by the Company plans expected receipts from the Medicare Prescription Drug Act subsidy are also

included below

Retiree Health and Life

Medicare
Pension Benefits

Gross Subsidy
U.S Non4J.S Payments Receipts

Dollars in Millions

2009 78 42 30 $1

2010 70 43 30

2011 70 44 31

2012 70 46 31

2013 70 48 31

Years2Ol42018 354 268 140

During 2008 the Companys Medicare subsidy receipts were approximately $400000
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Plan Assets and Investment Strategy

Substantially all of the Companys pension assets are managed by outside investment managers and held

in trust by third-party custodians The selection and oversight of these outside service providers is the

responsibility of the Investment Committees and their advisors The selection of specific securities is at the

discretion of the investment manager and is subject to the provisions set forth by written investment

management agreements and related policy guidelines regarding permissible investments risk

management practices and the use of derivative securities Investment in debt or equity securities

related to the Company or any of its affiliates is prohibited Derivative securities may be used by

investment managers as efficient substitutes for traditional securities to reduce portfolio risks or to

hedge identifiable economic exposures The use of derivative securities to create economic leverage to

engage in unrelated speculation is expressly prohibited

The primary objective of the pension funds is to pay the plans benefit and expense obligations when due

Given the relatively long horizon of these obligations and their sensitivity to interest rates the investment

strategy is intended to improve the funded status of its U.S and non-U.S plans over time while maintaining

prudent level of risk Risk is managed primarily by diversifying each plans target asset allocation across

equity fixed income securities and alternative investment strategies and then maintaining the allocation

within specified range of its target In addition diversification across various investment subcategories

within each plan is also maintained within specified ranges The Companys retirement plan asset

allocation at December 31 2008 and 2007 and target allocation for 2009 are as follows

U.S Non-U.S

Target Percentage of Target Percentage of

Allocation Plan Assets Allocation Plan Assets

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Equity securities 40% 25% 68% 31% 25% 44%

Fixed income 30 42 32 59 66 56

Alternative strategies 30 25

Cash

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Alternative strategies include investments in Global Asset Allocation GAA and Hedge Fund of Funds

HFF GAA managers primarily invest in equity fixed income and cash instruments with the ability to

change the allocation mix based on market conditions while remaining within their specific strategy

guidelines HFF managers are investment funds that hold portfolio of Hedge Funds rather than investing

directly in shares bonds or other securities The objective of these investments is to reduce portfolio risk

through diversification

The expected long-term rate of return for pension assets has been chosen based on various inputs

including returns projected by various external sources for the different asset classes held by and to be

held by the Companys trusts and its targeted asset allocation These projections incorporate both

historical returns and forward looking views regarding capital market returns inflation and other

variables The current U.S cash allocation is related to the timing of rebalancing the portfolio back to

its target allocation
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During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company recorded benefits of approximately

$12 million and $1 million respectively due to decrease in the market value of the Companys common

stock The Company recorded compensation expense including the cumulative effect of change in

accounting for various stock-based compensation awards issued pursuant to the plans described below in

the amount of $58 million for the year ended December 31 2006 No related income tax benefits were

recorded during the years ended December31 2008 2007 and 2006 During 2008 the Company received

no cash from the exercise of share-based compensation instruments and paid $8 million to settle share-

based compensation instruments

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Visteon Corporation 2004 Incentive Compensation Plan 2004 Incentive Plan as approved by

shareholders is administered by the Organization and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

and provides for the grant of incentive and nonqualified stock options stock appreciation rights SARs
performance stock rights restricted stock awards RSAs restricted stock units RSU5 and stock and

various other rights based on common stock The maximum number of shares of common stock that may
be subject to awards under the 2004 Incentive Plan is approximately 22 million shares During the year

ended December31 2008 the Companygranted approximately million RSUs million SARs 100000

RSAs and 100000 stock options under the 2004 Incentive Plan At December 31 2008 there were

approximately million shares of common stock available for grant under the 2004 Incentive Plan

Effective June 14 2007 the 2004 Incentive Plan was amended to allow the Company to utilize net exercise

settlement of stock options Under net exercise provision an option holder is permitted to exercise an

option without paying any cash Instead the option holder pays the exercise price by forfeiting shares

subject to the option based on the value of the underlying shares

The Visteon Corporation Employees Equity Incentive Plan EEIP as approved by shareholders is

administered by the Organization and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors and provides for

the grant of nonqualified stock options restricted stock awards and various other rights based on common
stock The maximum number of shares of common stock that may be subject to awards under the EEIP is

approximately million shares During the year ended December 31 2008 the Company granted

approximately million RSAs under the EEIP At December 31 2008 there were approximately

million shares of common stock available for grant under the EEIP

The Visteon Corporation Non-Employee Director Stock Unit Plan provides for the automatic annual grant

of RSUs to non-employee directors RSUs awarded under the Non-Employee Director Stock Unit Plan

vest immediately but are settled after the participant terminates service as non-employee director of the

Company

Stock-Based Compensation Awards

The Companys stock-based compensation awards take the form of stock options SARs RSAs and

RSU5

Stock options and SARs granted under the aforementioned plans have an exercise price equal to the

average of the highest and lowest prices at which the Companys common stock was traded on the New

York Stock Exchange on the date of grant and become exercisable on ratable basis over the vesting

period Stock options and SARs granted prior to January 2004 expire 10 years after the grant date

Stock options and SARs granted after December31 2003 and prior to January 2007 expire five years

following the grant date Stock options and SARs granted after December 31 2006 expire seven years

following the grant date
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Stock options are settled in shares of the Companys common stock upon exercise and are recorded in

the Companys consolidated balance sheets under the caption Additional paid-in capital SARs are

settled in cash and result in the recognition of liability representing the vested portion of the obligation

This liability is recorded in the Companys consolidated balance sheets under the caption Accrued

employee liabilities and was less than $1 million as of December 31 2008 and approximately

$10 million as of December 31 2007

RSAs and RSUs granted under the aforementioned plans vest after designated period of time time
based which is generally one to five years or upon the achievement of certain performance goals

performance-based following the completion of performance period which is generally two or three

years RSAs are settled in shares of the Companys common stock upon the lapse of restrictions on the

underlying shares Accordingly such amount is recorded in the Companys consolidated balance sheets

under the caption Shareholders deficit Other RSUs awarded under the 2004 Incentive Plan are

settled in cash and result in the recognition of liability representing the vested portion of the obligation

As of December 31 2007 approximately $8 million and $6 million were recorded in the Companys

consolidated balance sheets under the caption Accrued employee liabilities and Other non-current

liabilities respectively As of December 31 2008 such amounts were less than $1 million

Upon exercise of stock-based compensation awards settled in shares of Company stock the Companys

policy is to deliver such shares on net-settled basis utilizing available treasury shares purchasing

treasury shares or newly issuing shares in accordance with the terms of approved stock-based

compensation agreements In December 2007 the Companys board of directors authorized share

repurchase program of up to two million shares of Company common stock which may be repurchased

over the following 24 months to fund ongoing employee compensation and benefit plan obligations

Purchases under the program will be funded from Visteons existing cash balance Repurchases under the

program may be made through open market purchases or privately negotiated transactions in accordance

with applicable federal securities laws The timing amount manner and price of repurchases if any will be

determined by Visteon at its discretion and will depend upon among other things the stock price

economic and market conditions and such other factors as Visteon considers appropriate The program

may be extended suspended or discontinued at any time without notice

Fair Value Estimation Methodology and Assumptions

The fair value of RSAs is based on the average of the highest and lowest prices at which the Companys

common stock was traded on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of grant and the fair value of RSUs

is based on the period-ending market price of the Companys common stock while the fair value of stock

options is determined at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the fair value of

SARs is determined at each period-end using the Black-Scholes option pricing model The Black-Scholes

option pricing model requires management to make various assumptions including the expected term

expected volatility risk-free interest rate and dividend yield The expected term represents the period of

time that stock-based compensation awards granted are expected to be outstanding and is estimated

based on considerations including the vesting period contractual term and anticipated employee exercise

patterns Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Companys stock over the expected

term of the award and ranged from 82.06% to 220.52% for SARs at December31 2008 The risk-free rate

is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in relation to the contractual life of the stock-based compensation

instrument The dividend yield assumption is based on historical patterns and future expectations for

Company dividends
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Weighted average assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock-based compensation awards as of

December 31 are as follows

SARs Stock Options

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Expected term in years 2.02 2.76 2.75 5.63 4-6

Expected volatility 100.14% 62.3% 59.0% 53.75% 59.0% 57.0%

Risk-free interest rate 1.02% 3.22% 4.72% 2.72% 4.55%-4.70% 5.1%

Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Assumptions at grant date

Stock Appreciation Rights and Stock Options

The following is summary of the range of exercise prices for stock options and SARs that are currently

outstanding and that are currently exercisable at December 31 2008

Stock Options Stock Options
and SARs Outstanding and SARs Exercisable

Weighted Weighted
Number Average Weighted Average Number Average Exercise

Outstanding Remaining Life Exercise Price Exercisable Price

In thousands In Years In thousands

0.71-s 7.00 13098 3.5 5.18 9110 5.74

7.01 -$12.00. 6530 3.5 9.31 4174 9.49

$12.01 -$17.00. 3472 2.4 $13.44 3472 $13.44

$17.01 -$22.00. 1796 2.3 $17.46 1796 $17.46

24896 18552

The intrinsic value of stock options and SARs outstanding and exercisable was zero at December31 2008

and 2007 The intrinsic value of stock options and SARs was $34 million and $10 million respectively at

December 31 2006 The weighted average fair value of SARs granted was $0.06 $1.65 and $5.25 at

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The weighted average fair value of stock options

granted was $1.97 $4.90 and $2.79 at December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively
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As of December 31 2008 there was approximately $2 million and $65000 of total unrecognized

compensation cost related to non-vested stock options and SARs respectively granted under the

Companys stock-based compensation plans That cost is expected to be recognized over weighted

average period of approximately one year summary of activity including award grants exercises and

forfeitures is provided below for stock options and SARs

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Stock Options Exercise Price SARs Exercise Price

In thousands In thousands

Outstanding at December 31 2005 15014 $10.68 6103 $7.43

Granted 41 5.79 4719 $4.78

Exercised 873 6.62 434 $6.25

Forfeitedorexpired 1217 $12.41 1118 $6.46

Outstanding at December 31 2006 12965 $10.77 9270 $6.30

Granted 1976 8.98 3151 $8.94

Exercised 965 6.51 1219 $5.68

Forfeited or expired 1048 $10.86 1237 $6.50

Outstanding at December 31 2007 12928 $10.80 9965 $7.19

Granted 100 3.63 4266 $3.64

Exercised

Forfeited or expired 1029 $1 1.83 1334 $6.65

Outstanding at December 31 2008 11999 $10.70 12897 $6.07

Less Outstanding but not exercisable at

December 31 2008 802 5542

Exercisable at December31 2008 11197 $10.82 7355 $6.63

Restricted Stock Units and Restricted Stock Awards

The weighted average grant date fair value of RSUs granted was $0.11 $8.79 and $4.90 for the periods

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The weighted average grant date fair value of

RSAs was $3.41 $7.75 and $5.85 for the periods ended December31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The total fair value of RSAs vested during the periods ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was

approximately $132000 $10000 and $10 million respectively As of December 31 2008 there was

approximately $2 million and $500000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested

RSAs and RSUs respectively granted under the Companys stock-based compensation plans That cost

is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of approximately two years summary of

activity including award grants vesting and forfeitures is provided below for RSAs and RSUs
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Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

RSAs RSUs Value

In thousands

Non-vested at December 31 2005 2217 5599 $7.89

Granted 25 2192 $4.90

Vested 2098 324 $7.36

Forfeited 19 804 $6.70

Non-vested at December 31 2006 125 6663 $7.23

Granted 90 1219 $8.73

Vested 2262 $9.76

Forfeited 120 1047 $7.45

Non-vested at December 31 2007 92 4573 $6.42

Granted 1305 3326 $3.60

Vested 35 3335 $5.61

Forfeited 182 418 $5.18

Non-vested at December 31 2008 1180 4146 $4.60

NOTE 16 Income Taxes

Income tax provision

Loss before income taxes minority interests discontinued operations change in accounting and

extraordinary item excluding equity in net income of non-consolidated affiliates and the components
of provision for income taxes are shown below

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

U.S $440 $384 $292
Non-U.S 132 52 170

Total loss before income taxes $572 $332 $122

Current tax provision benefit

U.S federal

Non-U.S 96 93 118

U.S state and local

Total current 93 93 117

Deferred tax provision benefit

U.S federal 73 68
Non-U.S 22 24
U.S stateand local

Total deferred 23 73 92
Total provision for income taxes 116 20 25
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summary of the differences between the provision for income taxes calculated at the U.S statutory tax

rate of 35% and the consolidated provision for income taxes is shown below

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

Loss before income taxes minority interests discontinued operations

change in accounting and extraordinary item excluding equity in net

income of non-consolidated affiliates multiplied by the U.S statutory rate

of 35% $200 $1 16 43
Effect of

Impact of foreign operations including withholding taxes

State and local income taxes

Tax benefits allocated to loss from continuing operations

U.S research tax credits

Tax reserve adjustments

Tax on intragroup transfer of affiliate 34

U.S divestiture of foreign non-consolidated affiliate

Change in valuation allowance

Mexican tax law change

Medicare subsidy

Other

Provision for income taxes $116 20 $25

The Companys 2008 income tax provision includes income tax expense of $1 10 million related to certain

countries where the Company is profitable accrued withholding taxes and the inability to record tax

benefit for pre-tax losses in the U.S and certain foreign countries to the extent not offset by other

categories of income The 2008 income tax provision also includes $12 million for the net increase in

unrecognized tax benefits resulting from positions taken in tax returns filed during the year as well as those

expected to be taken in future tax returns including interest and penalties Additionally the Company

recorded approximately $6 million of income tax benefit related to favorable tax law changes in 2008

including U.S legislation enacted in July 2008 which allowed the Company to record certain U.S research

tax credits previously subject to limitation as refundable

The Companys 2007 income tax provision includes income tax expense of $50 million related to certain

countries where the Company is profitable accrued withholding taxes and the inability to record tax

benefit for pre-tax losses in the U.S and certain foreign countries to the extent not offset by other

categories of income The 2007 income tax provision also includes $72 million for an increase in

unrecognized tax benefits resulting from positions taken in tax returns filed during the year as well as

those expected to be taken in future tax returns including interest and penalties Additionally the Company
recorded approximately $18 million of income tax expense related to significant tax law changes in Mexico

enacted in the fourth quarter of 2007 These expense items were offset by an $1 million benefit due to

favorable tax law changes in Portugal also enacted in the fourth quarter of 2007

34 23
14 16

91 68
10

12 72

316 160 178

18
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SFAS 109 generally requires that the amount of tax expense or benefit allocated to continuing operations

be determined without regard to the tax effects of other categories of income or loss such as other

comprehensive income However an exception to the general rule is provided when there is pre-tax loss

from continuing operations and pre-tax income from other categories in the current year In such instances

income from other categories must offset the current loss from operations the tax benefit of such offset

being reflected in continuing operations even when valuation allowance has been established against the

deferred tax assets In instances where valuation allowance is established against current year operating

losses income from other sources including other comprehensive income is considered when

determining whether sufficient future taxable income exists to realize the deferred tax assets In 2007

net pre-tax income from other categories of income or loss in particular pre-tax other comprehensive

income primarily attributable to foreign currency exchange rates and the re-measurement of pension and

OPEB in the U.S Germany and the UK offset approximately $270 million of pre-tax operating losses

reducing the Companys current year valuation allowance resulting in benefit of $91 million allocated to

the current year loss from continuing operations as component of the deferred income tax provision

In December 2007 Visteon redeemed its ownership interest in newly formed Korean company in

exchange for approximately $292 million as part of legal restructuring of its climate control operations in

Asia with Halla Climate Control Corporation As part of this restructuring the Company concluded that

portion of HCCCs earnings were permanently reinvested under Accounting Principles Board Opinion

No 23 Accounting for Income Taxes-Special Areas and recorded $30 million income tax benefit related

to the reduction of previously established withholding tax accruals partially offset by $12 million of income

tax expense related to taxable gain from the restructuring

The Companys 2006 provision of $25 million reflects $68 million benefit related to offsetting U.S pretax

operating losses against U.S pretax other comprehensive income as well as income tax expense related

to those countries where the Company is profitable accrued withholding taxes certain non-recurring and

other discrete tax items the inability to record tax benefit for pretax losses in certain foreign countries and

pretax losses in the U.S not offset by U.S pretax other comprehensive income as described above Non

recurring and other discrete tax items recorded in 2006 resulted in net benefit of $21 million This includes

$14 million benefit recorded in the second quarter of 2006 related to the restoration of deferred tax assets

associated with the Companys operations in Brazil benefit of $15 million related to reducing the

Companys dividend withholding taxes accrued for the unremitted earnings of Spain and the Czech

Republic as result of legal entity restructuring that was completed in the fourth quarter of 2006 offset by

net $8 million in provisions recorded primarily to increase income tax reserves for prior year tax

exposures in various foreign jurisdictions

Deferred income taxes and related valuation allowances

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between amounts of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and the basis of such assets and liabilities as measured by tax laws and

regulations as well as net operating loss tax credit and other carryforwards Additionally deferred taxes

have been provided for the net effect of repatriating earnings from consolidated and unconsolidated

foreign affiliates except for approximately $220 million of Korean earnings considered permanently

reinvested under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No 23 Accounting for Income Taxes-Special

Areas If these earnings were repatriated additional withholding tax expense of approximately $25 million

would have been incurred
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SFAS 109 requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by valuation allowance if based on all available

evidence both positive and negative it is considered more likely than not that some portion or all of the

recorded deferred tax assets will not be realized in future periods Significant management judgment is

required in determining the Companys valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets and in making

its assessment the evidence considered includes historical and projected financial performance as well

as the nature frequency and severity of recent losses along with any other pertinent information

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company concluded based on the weight of available evidence that

the deferred tax assets associated with its Visteon Sistemas operations located in Brazil required full

valuation allowance which resulted in charge to income tax expense of $22 million Going forward the

need to maintain valuation allowances against deferred tax assets in the U.S and other affected countries

will cause variability in the Companys effective tax rate The Company will maintain full valuation

allowances against deferred tax assets in the U.S and applicable foreign countries which include the

UK and Germany until sufficient positive evidence exists to reduce or eliminate them At December 31
2008 the Company has recorded net deferred tax assets net of valuation allowances of approximately

$33 million in certain foreign jurisdictions the realization of which is dependent on generating sufficient

taxable income in future periods While the Company believes it is more likely than not that these deferred

tax assets will be realized failure to achieve its taxable income targets which considers among other

sources future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences including FIN 48 liabilities would likely

result in an increase in the valuation allowance in the applicable period

The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefit plans 337 387

Capitalized expenditures for tax reporting 128 165

Net operating losses and carryforwards 1746 1703

All other 256 289

Subtotal 2467 2544

Valuation allowance 2079 2102

Total deferred tax assets 388 442

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation and amortization 130 83

All other 337 421

Total deferred tax liabilities 467 504

Net deferred tax liabilities 79 62

At December 31 2008 and 2007 net short-term deferred tax liabilities in the amount of $3 million and

$1 million respectively were included in Other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets
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At December 31 2008 the Company had available tax-effected non-U.S net operating loss and other

carryforwards of $353 million which have carryforward periods ranging from years to indefinite The

Company had available tax-effected U.S net operating loss and capital loss carryforwards of $710 million

at December 31 2008 which will expire at various dates between 2009 and 2028 U.S foreign tax credit

carryforwards are $565 million at December 31 2008 These credits will begin to expire in 2011

U.S research tax credits carryforwards are $118 million at December 31 2008 These credits will

begin to expire in 2020 The availability of the Companys federal net operating loss carryforward and

other federal income tax attributes may be eliminated or significantly limited if change of ownership of

Visteon within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code were to occur

As of the end of 2008 valuation allowances totaling $2079 million have been recorded against the

Companys deferred tax assets Of this amount $1 726 million relates to the Companys deferred tax

assets in the U.S including amounts related to foreign affiliates that are treated as pass-through entities

for U.S tax purposes and $353 million relates to net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred tax

assets in certain foreign jurisdictions where recovery of the carryforwards or assets is unlikely

Unrecognized Thx Benefits

Effective January 2007 the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No 48 FIN 48 Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 which establishes single

model to address accounting for uncertain tax positions and clarifies the accounting for income taxes by

prescribing minimum recognition threshold tax position is required to meet before being recognized in

the financial statements FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition measurement classification

interest and penalties accounting in interim periods disclosure and transition The adoption of FIN 48 did

not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

The Companys gross unrecognized tax benefits at December31 2008 were $238 million and the amount

of unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would impact the effective tax rate were approximately

$1 19 million The gross unrecognized tax benefit differs from that which would impact the effective tax rate

due to uncertain tax positions embedded in other deferred tax attributes carrying full valuation allowance

Since the uncertainty is expected to be resolved while full valuation allowance is maintained these

uncertain tax positions will not impact the effective tax rate in current or future periods In connection with

the adoption of FIN 48 and beginning January 2007 the Company classified all interest and penalties as

income tax expense Prior to the adoption of FIN 48 the Companys policy was to record interest and

penalties related to income tax contingencies as component of income before taxes Estimated interest

and penalties related to the underpayment of income taxes totaled $2 million and $14 million for the twelve

months ended December31 2008 and 2007 respectively Accrued interest and penalties were $36 million

and $34 million as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

2008 2007

Dollars in

Millions

Beginning balance January $229 $147

Tax positions related to current year

Additions 39 77

Tax positions related to prior years

Additions 14

Reductions 13 13
Settlements with tax authorities

Lapses in statute of limitations

Effect of exchange rate changes 16

Ending balance December 31 $238 $229

The Company and its subsidiaries have operations in every major geographic region of the world and are

subject to income taxes in the U.S and numerous foreign jurisdictions Accordingly the Company files tax

returns and is subject to examination by taxing authorities throughout the world including such significant

jurisdictions as Korea India Portugal Spain Czech Republic Hungary Mexico Canada China Brazil

Germany and the United States With few exceptions the Company is no longer subject to U.S federal tax

examinations for years before 2004 or state and local or non-U.S income tax examinations for years

before 2000

It is reasonably possible that the amount of the Companys unrecognized tax benefits may change within

the next twelve months as result of settlement of ongoing audits for changes in judgment as new

information becomes available related to positions both already taken and those expected to be taken in

tax returns primarily related to transfer pricing-related initiatives or from the closure of tax statutes Given

the number of years jurisdictions and positions subject to examination the Company is unable to estimate

the full range of possible adjustments to the balance of unrecognized tax benefits However the Company
believes it is reasonably possible it will reduce the amount of its existing unrecognized tax benefits

impacting the effective tax rate by $5 to $10 million due to the lapse of statute of limitations Further

substantially all of the Companys unrecognized tax benefits relate to uncertain tax positions that are not

currently under review by taxing authorities and therefore the Company is unable to specify the future

periods in which it may be obligated to settle such amounts

NOTE 17 Shareholders Deficit

In conjunction with the October 2005 ACH Transactions the Company granted warrants to Ford for the

purchase of 25 million shares of the Companys common stock at an exercise price of $6.90 The warrants

allow for either cash or share settlement at the sole discretion of the Company were exercisable at any

time after October 2006 and before the expiration date on October 2013 The warrants were valued at

$127 million using Black-Scholes pricing model adjusted for the estimated impact on fair value of the

restrictions relating to the warrants and are recorded as permanent equity in the Companys consolidated

balance sheets
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On May 17 2007 Visteon entered into letter agreement the Letter Agreement with LB Group Inc an

affiliate of Lehman Brothers Lehman and Ford pursuant to which among other things the Company

consented to the transfer by Ford of the warrant to purchase 25 million shares of Visteon common stock

and waived provision of the Stockholder Agreement dated as of October 2005 between Visteon and

Ford that would have prohibited such transfer The Letter Agreement also restricts Lehmans ability to

enter into certain hedging transactions in respect of the shares underlying the Warrant for the first two

years following such transfer In addition the warrant was modified so that that it will not be exercisable

except in the event of change of control of Visteon or transferable until May 17 2009

Accumulated other comprehensive income is comprised of the following

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

Foreign currency translation adjustments $208 $297

Pension and other postretirement benefit adjustments net of tax 39 10
Unrealized losses on derivatives 12 12

Total accumulated other comprehensive income $157 $275

Treasury stock is carried at an average cost basis is purchased for employee benefit plans and consists of

approximately 500000 shares at December 31 2008
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Basic net loss per share of common stock is calculated by dividing reported net loss by the average

number of shares of common stock outstanding during the applicable period adjusted for restricted stock

December 31

Numerator

Net loss from continuing operations before change in accounting and

extraordinary item

Net loss before change in accounting and extraordinary item

Cumulative effect of change in accounting net of tax

Net loss before extraordinary item

Extraordinary item net of tax

Denominator

Average common stock outstanding

Basic shares

Net dilutive effect of restricted stock and stock options
______ ______ ______

Basic and Diluted per Share Data

Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations before

change in accounting and extraordinary item

Loss from discontinued operations net of tax
______ ______ ______

Basic and diluted loss per share before change in accounting and

extraordinary item

Loss from discontinued operations net of tax

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

Except Per Share Amounts

681 348 145

Net loss

Less Average restricted stock outstanding

Diluted shares

24

681 372

681 372

681 372

130.4 129.5

1.0 0.1

129.4 129.4

129.4 129.4

$5.26 $2.69

0.18

22

167

171

163

128.4

0.5

127.9

127.9

$1.13

0.17

5.26 2.87 1.30

Cumulative effect of change in accounting net of tax 0.03

Basic and diluted loss per share before extraordinary item 5.26 2.87 .33

Extraordinary item net of tax 0.06

Basic and diluted loss per share 5.26 2.87 1.27

Options to purchase 12 million shares of common stock at exercise prices ranging from $21 .47 per share to

$3.63 per share and warrants to purchase 25 million shares were outstanding for 2008 but were not

included in the computation of diluted loss per share as inclusion of such itemswould be anti-dilutive The

options expire at various dates between 2009 and 2015 In addition for 2007 and 2006 potential common
stock of approximately 2.9 million shares and 2.4 million shares respectively are excluded from the

calculation of diluted loss per share because the effect of including them would have been anti-dilutive
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In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 establishes

framework for measuring fair value which includes hierarchy based on the quality of inputs used to

measure fair value and provides specific disclosure requirements based on the hierarchy

Fair Value Hierarchy

SFAS 157 requires the categorization of financial assets and liabilities based on the inputs to the valuation

technique into three-level fair value hierarchy The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to the

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities and lowest priority to unobservable

inputs The various levels of the SFAS 157 fair value hierarchy are described as follows

Level Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on unadjusted quoted market prices

for identical assets and liabilities in an active market that the Company has the ability to access

Level Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on quoted prices in markets that are

not active or model inputs that are observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability

Level Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on prices or valuation techniques that

require inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement

SFAS 157 requires the use of observable market data when available in making fair value measurements

When inputs used to measure fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy the level within which the

fair value measurement is categorized is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following table presents the Companys fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2008

Other Observable

Inputs Level

Dollars in Millions

Assets

Foreign currency instruments $15

Interest rate swaps 17

Total $32

Liabilities

Foreign currency instruments $11

Valuation Methods

Interest rate swaps and foreign currency hedge instruments These financial instruments are valued

under an income approach using industry-standard models that consider various assumptions including

timevalue volatility factors current market and contractual prices for the underlying and non-performance

risk Substantially all of these assumptions are observable in the marketplace throughout the full term of

the instrument can be derived from observable data or are supported by observable levels at which

transactions are executed in the marketplace

The carrying amounts of all other financial instruments approximate their fair values because of the

relatively short-term maturity of these instruments
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The Company follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 133 SFAS 133 Accounting for

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities in accounting for financial instruments Under SFAS 133

the criteria used to determine whether hedge accounting treatment is appropriate are the designation of

the hedge to an underlying exposure reduction of overall risk and highly effective relationship between

the hedging instrument and the hedged item or transaction

Where possible the Company uses derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to adverse

fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates in connection with its risk

management policies The Company monitors its exposure to interest rate risk principally in relation to

fixed-rate and variable-rate debt Accordingly the Company has entered into certain fixed-for-variable and

variable-for-fixed interest rate swap agreements to manage such interest rate exposures Additionally the

Company monitors its exposure to the risk that net cash inflows resulting from sales outside the country of

manufacturing origin will be adversely affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates

Accordingly the Company enters into forward exchange contracts and purchase foreign currency

options to hedge certain portions of forecasted cash flows denominated in foreign currencies

At inception the Company formally designates and documents the financial instrument as hedge of

specific underlying exposure as well as the risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking the

hedge transactions The Company formally assesses at the inception and at least quarterly thereafter

whether the financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are effective at offsetting changes
in either the fair value or cash flows of the related underlying exposure Because of the high degree of

effectiveness between the hedging instrument and the underlying exposure being hedged fluctuations in

the value of the derivative instruments are generally offset by changes in the fair values or cash flows of the

underlying exposures being hedged Any ineffective portion of financial instruments change in fair value

is immediately recognized in earnings Derivatives not designated as hedge are adjusted to fair value

through operating results The Companys policy specifically prohibits the use of derivatives for speculative

purposes

The Company recognizes all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated

balance sheets at fair value The fair values of derivatives used to hedge the Companys risks fluctuate

over time generally in relation to the fair values or cash flows of the underlying hedged transactions or

exposures The accounting for changes in fair value of derivative instrument depends on whether it has

been designated and qualifies as part of hedging relationship and further on the type of hedging

relationship At the inception of the hedging relationship the Company must designate the instrument as

fair value hedge cash flow hedge or hedge of net investment in foreign operation This designation

is based upon the exposure being hedged

Fair Value Hedges

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively the Company had interest rate swaps designated as

hedges of the fair value of portion of the 8.25% notes due August 2010 $125 million and portion of

the 7.00% notes due March 10 2014 $225 million These interest rate swaps effectively convert the

designated portions of these notes from fixed interest rate to variable interest rate instruments in

connection with the Companys risk management policies The Company estimates the fair value of

these interest rate swaps based on quoted market prices
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The notional amount of these interest rate swaps was $350 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 The

fair market value of the interest rate swaps was an asset of $25 million and liability of $2 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The effect of marking these contracts to market has been

recorded in the Companys consolidated balance sheets as direct adjustment to the underlying debt The

adjustment does not affect the results of operations unless the contract is terminated in which case the

resulting cash flow is offset by valuation adjustment of the underlying debt and is amortized to interest

expense over the remaining life of the debt During 2008 2007 and 2006 there was no ineffectiveness

related to these interest rate swaps

Cash Flow Hedges

Derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions are

reflected as other assets or liabilities in the Companys consolidated balance sheets Changes in the fair

value of cash flow hedges are initially recorded as component of Other comprehensive loss and

reclassified to the consolidated statement of operations when the hedged transactions affect results of

operations At this time gain or loss on the cash flow hedge is recognized representing the excess of the

cumulative change in the present value of future cash flows of the hedged item Any ineffective portion of

cash flow hedge is immediately recognized in earnings The maximum length of time over which the

Company hedges the variability in future cash flows for forecasted transactions excluding those forecasted

transactions related to the payment of variable interest on existing debt is up to one year from the date of

the forecasted transaction The maximum length of time over which the Company hedges forecasted

transactions related to the payment of variable interest on existing debt is the term of the underlying debt

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had interest rate swaps designated as hedges of

forecasted cash flows related to future interest payments for portion of the $1 billion seven-year term loan

due June 13 2013 $200 million These interest rate swaps effectively convert the designated portion of

the seven-year term loan from variable rate instrument to fixed rate instrument in connection with the

Companys risk management policies The Company recorded less than $1 million and $1 million of

ineffectiveness related to these interest rate swaps for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively The notional amount of these interest rate swaps was $200 million at December31 2008 and

2007 The fair market value of the interest rate swaps was liability of $8 million and $7 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

As of December31 2008 and 2007 the net fair value of foreign currency instruments which are designated

as hedges of forecasted cash flows related to the sale of products in countries other than the

manufacturing source foreign currency denominated supplier payments debt and other payables or

subsidiary dividends were an asset of $4 million and liability of $1 million respectively The notional

amounts of foreign currency instruments in equivalent U.S dollars were $355 million and $515 million at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The fair value of foreign currency instruments was estimated

using current market rates provided by outside quotation services

The net gain recognized in earnings related to cash flow hedges during the year ended December31 2008

was $6 million the net gain realized in December 31 2007 and 2006 was less than $1 million and

$4 million respectively Such amounts are recorded in the Companys consolidated statements of

operations under the classification Cost of sales Within the next 12 months the Company expects

to reclassify approximately $1 million on pre-tax basis from other comprehensive loss to results from

operations as the anticipated underlying transactions occur
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Other

The notional amounts of derivative financial instruments do not necessarily represent amounts exchanged

by the parties and therefore are not direct measure of the Companys exposure to the financial risks

described above The amounts exchanged are calculated by reference to the notional amounts and by

other terms of the derivatives such as interest rates foreign currency exchange rates or other financial

indices

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments including cash equivalents marketable securities derivative contracts and

accounts receivable expose the Company to counterparty credit risk for non-performance The

Companys counterparties for cash equivalents marketable securities and derivative contracts are

banks and financial institutions that meet the Companys requirement of high credit standing The

Companys counterparties for derivative contracts are substantial investment and commercial banks

with significant experience using such derivatives The Company manages its credit risk through policies

requiring minimum credit standing and limiting credit exposure to any one counterparty and through

monitoring counterparty credit risks The Companys concentration of credit risk related to derivative

contracts at December 31 2008 was not significant

With the exception of the customers below the Companys credit risk with any individual customer does

not exceed ten percent of total accounts receivable at December 31

December 31

2008 2007

Ford and affiliates 18% 18%

PSAPeugeotCitroen 16% 11%

Hyundai Motor Company 13% 13%

Hyundai Mobis Company 10% 7%

Management periodically performs credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require

collateral

NOTE 21 Commitments and Contingencies

In formation Technology Agreement

Prior to January 2003 and since the Companys separation from Ford Ford had provided the Company
with and charged the Company for many of the Companys information technology needs In January

2003 the Company entered into 10-year outsourcing agreement with International Business Machines

IBM pursuant to which the Company outsources most of its information technology needs on global

basis including mainframe support services data centers customer support centers application

development and maintenance data network management desktop support disaster recovery and

web hosting During 2006 the Company and IBM modified this agreement resulting in certain

changes to the service delivery model and related service charges The service charges under the

outsourcing agreement are expected to aggregate approximately $350 million during the remaining term of

the agreement subject to changes based on the Companys actual consumption of services to meet its

then current business needs The outsourcing agreement may also be terminated for the Companys
business convenience under the agreement for scheduled termination fee Associated expenses were

approximately $100 million in 2008 and approximately $200 million in both 2007 and 2006
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Operating Leases

At December 31 2008 the Company had the following minimum rental commitments under non-

cancelable operating leases 2009$49 million 2010$37 million 2011 $28 million 2012
$37 million 2013$14 million thereafter$18 million Rent expense was $81 million in 2008

$80 million in 2007 and $70 million in 2006

Debt

Debt including capital lease obligations at December 31 2008 included maturities as follows 2009

$2697 million 2010$60 million 2011 $3 million 2012$1 million 2013$1 million

Guarantees

The Company has guaranteed approximately $90 million for lease payments and $8 million of debt

capacity related to its subsidiaries The Company has also guaranteed certain Tier supplier and other

third-party obligations of up to $2 million to ensure the continued supply of essential parts In connection

with the January 2009 PBGC Agreement the Companyagreed to provide guarantee by certain affiliates

of certain contingent pension obligations of up to $30 million

Litigation and Claims

On March 31 2009 Visteon UK Limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales and

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company the UK Debtor filed for administration the UK
Administration under the United Kingdom Insolvency Act of 1986 with the High Court of Justice

Chancery division in London England The UK Administration does not include the Company or any

of the Companys other subsidiaries The UK Administration is discussed in Note 24 Subsequent Event

Product Warranty and Recall

Amounts accrued for product warranty and recall claims are based on managements best estimates of the

amounts that will ultimately be required to settle such items The Companys estimates for product

warranty and recall obligations are developed with support from its sales engineering quality and legal

functions and include due consideration of contractual arrangements past experience current claims and

related information production changes industry and regulatory developments and various other

considerations The Company can provide no assurances that it will not experience material claims in

the future or that it will not incur significant costs to defend or settle such claims beyond the amounts

accrued or beyond what the Company may recover from its suppliers The following table provides

reconciliation of changes in the product warranty and recall claims liability for the selected periods

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

Beginning balance $108 $105

Accruals for products shipped 43 48

Changes in estimates 16
Settlements 54 29

Ending balance $100 $108
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Environmental Matters

Costs related to environmental assessments and remediation efforts at operating facilities previously

owned or operated facilities and Superfund or other waste site locations are accrued when it is probable

that liability has been incurred and the amount of that liability can be reasonably estimated Estimated

costs are recorded at undiscounted amounts based on experience and assessments and are regularly

evaluated The liabilities are recorded in Other current liabilities and Other long-term liabilities in the

consolidated balance sheets

The Company is subject to the requirements of federal state local and foreign environmental and

occupational safety and health laws and regulations These include laws regulating air emissions water

discharge and waste management The Company is also subject to environmental laws requiring the

investigation and cleanup of environmental contamination at properties it presently owns or operates and

at third-party disposal or treatment facilities to which these sites send or arranged to send hazardous

waste

At the time of spin-off the Company and Ford agreed on division of liability for and responsibility for

management and remediation of environmental claims existing at that time and further that the

Company would assume all liabilities for existing and future claims relating to sites that were

transferred to it and its operation of those sites including off-site disposal except as otherwise

specifically retained by Ford in the Master Transfer Agreement In connection with the ACH

Transactions Ford agreed to re-assume these liabilities to the extent they arise from the ownership or

operation prior to the spin-off of the locations transferred to ACH excluding any increase in costs

attributable to the exacerbation of such liability by the Company or its affiliates

The Company is aware of contamination at some of its properties and relating to various third-party

Superfund sites at which the Company or its predecessor has been named as potentially responsible

party The Company is in various stages of investigation and cleanup at these sites At December31 2008

the Company had recorded reserve of approximately $5 million for this environmental investigation and

cleanup However estimating liabilities for environmental investigation and cleanup is complex and

dependent upon number of factors beyond the Companys control and which may change

dramatically Accordingly although the Company believes its reserve is adequate based on current

information the Company cannot provide any assurance that its ultimate environmental investigation and

cleanup costs and liabilities will not exceed the amount of its current reserve

Other Contingent Matters

Various legal actions governmental investigations and proceedings and claims are pending or may be

instituted or asserted in the future against the Company including those arising out of alleged defects in the

Companys products governmental regulations relating to safety employment-related matters customer

supplier and other contractual relationships intellectual property rights product warranties product

recalls and environmental matters Some of the foregoing matters may involve compensatory punitive

or antitrust or other treble damage claims in very large amounts or demands for recall campaigns

environmental remediation programs sanctions or other relief which if granted would require very large

expenditures
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Contingencies are subject to many uncertainties and the outcome of individual litigated matters is not

predictable with assurance Reserves have been established by the Company for matters discussed in the

immediately foregoing paragraph where losses are deemed probable and reasonably estimable It is

possible however that some of the matters discussed in the foregoing paragraph could be decided

unfavorably to the Company and could require the Company to pay damages or make other expenditures

in amounts or range of amounts that cannot be estimated at December31 2008 and that are in excess

of established reserves The Company does not reasonably expect except as otherwise described herein

based on its analysis that any adverse outcome from such matters would have material effect on the

Companys financial condition results of operations or cash flows although such an outcome is possible

The Company enters into agreements that contain indemnification provisions in the normal course of

business for which the risks are considered nominal and impracticable to estimate

NOTE 22 Segment Information

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 131 SEAS 131 Disclosures about Segments of an

Enterprise and Related Information requires the Company to disclose certain financial and descriptive

information about its reportable segments Reportable segments are defined as components of an

enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief

operating decision-maker or decision-making group in deciding the allocation of resources and in

assessing performance

The Companys operating structure is comprised of the following Climate Electronics Interiors and Other

These global product groups have financial and operating responsibility over the design development and

manufacture of the Companys product portfolio Within each of the global product groups certain facilities

manufacture broader range of the Companys total product line offering and are not limited to the primary

product line Regional customer groups are responsible for the marketing sales and service of the

Companys product portfolio to its customer base Certain functions such as procurement information

technology and other administrative activities are managed on global basis with regional deployment In

addition to these global product groups the Company also operates Visteon Services centralized

administrative function to monitor and facilitate transactions primarily with ACH for the costs of leased

employees and other services provided by the Company

The Companys chief operating decision making group comprised of the Chief Executive Officer CEO
and Chief Financial Officer CFO evaluates the performance of the Companys segments primarily

based on net sales before elimination of inter-company shipments gross margin and operating assets

Gross margin is defined as total sales less costs to manufacture and product development and engineering

expenses Operating assets include inventories and property and equipment utilized in the manufacture of

the segments products

The Companys reportable segments as of December 31 2008 are as follows

Climate The Companys Climate product group includes facilities that primarUy manufacture climate air

handling modules powertrain cooling modules heat exchangers compressors fluid transport and engine

induction systems Climate accounted for approximately 30% 28% and 26% of the Companys total net

sales excluding ACH and intra-product group eliminations in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively
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Electronics The Companys Electronics product group includes facilities that primarily manufacture

audio systems infotainment systems driver information systems powertrain and feature control modules

climate controls electronic control modules and lighting Electronics accounted for approximately 33%
31% and 30% of the Companys total net sales excluding ACH and intra-product group eliminations in

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Interiors The Companys Interiors product group includes facilities that primarily manufacture

instrument panels cockpit modules door trim and floor consoles Interiors accounted for

approximately 28% 27% and 26% of the Companys total net sales excluding ACH and intra-product

group eliminations in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Other The Companys Other product group includes facilities that primarily manufacture fuel products

powertrain products as well as parts sold and distributed to the automotive aftermarket Other accounted

for approximately 5% 10% and 14% of the Companys total net sales excluding ACH and intra-product

group eliminations in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Services The Companys Services operations provide various transition services in support of

divestiture transactions principally related to the ACH Transactions The Company supplies leased

personnel and transition services as required by certain agreements entered into by the Company
with ACH as part of the ACH Transactions and amended in 2008 Pursuant to the Master Services

Agreement and the Amended Salaried Employee Lease Agreement the Company has agreed to provide

ACH with certain information technology personnel and other services to enable ACH to conduct its

business Services to ACH are provided at rate approximately equal to the Companys cost until such

time the services are no longer required by ACH or the expiration of the related agreement In addition to

services provided to ACH the Company provided certain transition services related to the Chassis

Divestiture through October 2008

The accounting policies for the reportable segments are the same as those described in the Note

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the Companys consolidated financial statements Key

financial measures reviewed by the Companys chief operating decision makers are as follows

Net Sales Gross Margin
Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

Climate $2994 3370 3123 $207 $233 $170

Electronics 3251 3646 3514 193 276 373

Interiors 2748 3183 3059 27 75 65

Other 505 1178 1658 29 68

Eliminations 421 656 648

Total Products 9077 10721 10706 456 587 676

Services 467 554 550

Total Segments 9544 11275 11256 459 593 681

Reconciling Items

Corporate 20 72

Total consolidated $9544 $1 1275 $1 1256 $459 $573 $753

The above amounts include product sales of $3095 million to Ford Motor Company and $1983 million to

Hyundai/Kia for the year ended December 31 2008
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Segment Operating Assets

Climate

Electronics

Interiors

Segment Expenditures

Other

Total Products

Reconciling Items

Corporate

Total consolidated

Inventories Net

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

$166 $197 $161

131 154 154

43 59 66

14 85 139

354 495 520

Property and Equipment Net

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

813 947 962

626 758 796

298 533 484

57 253

1742 2295 2495

Reconciling Items and Reclassifications

Certain adjustments are necessary to reconcile segment financial information to the Companys
consolidated amounts Corporate reconciling items are related to the Companys technical centers

corporate headquarters and other administrative and support functions

Segment information as of December 31 2007 has been reclassified to reflect the Companys Mobile

Electronics and Philippines operations in the Electronics and Interiors product groups respectively These

operations were previously reflected in the Other product group and have been reclassified consistent with

the Companys current management reporting structure Additionally segment information as of

December 31 2006 has been reclassified to reflect the alignment of the Companys South American

operations with their respective global product groups during the first quarter of 2007

Other

Total Products

Reconciling Items

Corporate

Total consolidated

420 498 539

$354 $495 $520 $2162 $2793 $3034

Depreciation and

Amortization Capital Expenditures
Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Climate $129 $151 $129 $133 $147 $174

Electronics 135 129 109 68 89 78

Interiors 61 64 49 63 88 66

11 27 45 13 55

336 371 332 265 337 373

80 101 98 29 39

$416 $472 $430 $294 $376 $373
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 22 Segment Information Continued

Financial In formation by Geographic Region

Net Property
Net Sales and Equipment

Year Ended December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

Geographic region

United States $3262 4070 4471 719 931

Mexico 75 55 247 66 69

Canada 66 102 96 23 35

Intra-region eliminations 71 68 94

North America 3332 4159 4720 808 1035

Germany 274 490 699 43 63

France 799 853 864 150 245

United Kingdom 401 529 460 17 50

Portugal 487 543 554 115 136

Spain 570 658 672 73 122

Czech Republic 602 608 466 225 250

Hungary 469 416 277 78 94

Other Europe 250 258 211 72 45

Intra-region eliminations 159 231 211

Europe 3693 4124 3992 773 1005

Korea 2077 2204 1810 308 443

China 282 231 231 91 87

India 238 260 257 57 68

Japan 224 236 226 18 16

Other Asia 223 217 159 35 49

Intra-region eliminations 162 159 184

Asia 2882 2989 2499 509 663

South America 474 528 522 72 90

lntra-region eliminations 837 525 477

$9544 $11275 $11256 $2162 $2793
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 23 Summary Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

The following tables present summary quarterly financial data

2008 2007

First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Dollars in Millions Except Per Share Amounts

Net sales $2862 $2909 $2120 $1653 $2889 $2975 $2547 $2864

Gross margin 195 231 43 10 117 155 99 202

Loss from continuing

operations 105 42 188 346 136 60 109 43
Loss from discontinued

operations net of tax 17

Net loss 105 42 188 346 153 67 109 43
Per Share Data

Loss from continuing

operations

Basic $0.81 $0.32 $1.45 $2.67 $1.06 $0.46 $0.84 $0.33

Diluted $0.81 $0.32 $1.45 $2.67 $1.06 $0.46 $0.84 $0.33

Loss from discontinued

operations net of tax

Basic 0.13 0.06

Diluted 0.13 0.06

Net loss per share

Basic $0.81 $0.32 $1.45 $2.67 $1.19 $0.52 $0.84 $0.33

Diluted $0.81 $0.32 $1.45 $2.67 $1.19 $0.52 $0.84 $0.33

2008 Quarterly Financial Data

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Companys financial results were negatively impacted by

significant reduction to OEM production levels resulting from the economic downturn as described in

Note Description of the Business and Basis of Presentation The Companyalso recorded $200 million

impairment charge in the fourth quarter of 2008 as described in Note Asset Impairments and Loss on

Divestitures

2007 Quarterly Financial Data

During 2007 the Company recorded income tax benefits of $91 million related to offsetting pre-tax

operating losses against current year pre-tax income from other categories of income or loss in particular

pre-tax other comprehensive income primarily attributable to foreign currency exchange rates and the re

measurement of pension and OPEB in the U.S Germany and the UK Of this amount $37 million was

recorded during the fourth quarter of 2007
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE 24 Subsequent Event

On March 31 2009 Visteon UK Limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales and

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company filed for administration under the United Kingdom

Insolvency Act of 1986 with the High Court of Justice Chancery division in London England The UK
Administration does not include the Company or any of the Companys other subsidiaries The UK
Administration was initiated in response to continuing operating losses of the UK Debtor and mounting

labor costs and their related demand on the Companys cash flows Under the UK Administration the UK

Debtor will likely be run down The UK Debtor has operations in Enfield UK Basildon UK and Belfast UK

and recorded sales of $250 millionfor the year ended December31 2008 The UK Debtor had total assets

of $153 million as of December 31 2008
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information

required to be disclosed in periodic reports tiled with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is

recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and

forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Companys management

including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosure

As of December31 2008 an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of

the Companys management including its Chief Executive and Financial Officers of the effectiveness of

the design and operation of disclosure controls and procedures Based on that evaluation the Chief

Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and

procedures were effective as of December 31 2008

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Managements report on internal control over financial reporting is presented in Item of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K along with the attestation report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP the Companys

independent registered public accounting firm on the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008

There were no changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended

December 31 2008 that have materially effected or are reasonably likely to materially effect the

Companys internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Waivers and Amendments to Senior Secured Credit Facilities

Effective March 31 2009 the Company entered into limited waivers and amendments to the following

agreements

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of April 10 2007 as amended supplemented

or otherwise modified the Term Credit Agreement among the Company certain of its subsidiaries

the lenders party thereto Credit Suisse Securities USA LLC and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking

Corporation as co-documentation agents Citicorp USA Inc as syndication agent JPMorgan
Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent and J.P Morgan Securities Inc and Citigroup Global

Markets Inc as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners

The Credit Agreement dated as of August 14 2006 as amended supplemented or otherwise modified

the ABL Credit Agreement among the Company certain of its subsidiaries the lenders party thereto

and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Administrative Agent and

The Master Receivables Purchase Servicing Agreement dated as of August 14 2006 and as

amended and restated as of October 29 2008 the Securitization Agreement by and among Visteon

UK Limited Visteon Deutschland GmbH Visteon Sistemas Interiores Espana S.L.U Cadiz Electronica

S.A.U Visteon Portuguesa Limited VC Receivables Financing Corporation Limited Visteon

Electronics Corporation Visteon Financial Centre P.L.C The Law Debenture Trust Corporation

P.L.C Citibank N.A Citibank International Plc Citicorp USA Inc and the Company and the

related securitization agreements
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Pursuant to the Limited Waiver Term Waiver to the Term Credit Agreement the potential default relating

to the inclusion of an explanatory paragraph in the report of the Companys independent registered public

accounting firm indicating substantial doubt about the Companys ability to continue as going concern

the Going-Concern Default is waived until May 30 2009 and the Company is required to complete

certain collateral disclosure and perfection matters within certain periods following effectiveness or the

Term Waiver may be terminated prior to May 30 2009 and certain other Events of Default may occur The

Company also entered into letter agreement effective as of March 31 2009 the Ad Hoc Committee

Letter Agreement with the Ad Hoc Committee which requires among other things that the Company
and it subsidiaries to provide access to management as well as certain analysis and reports to the Ad Hoc

Committee The agreement also requires the Company and its subsidiaries in North America and Europe

to maintain balance of cash and cash equivalents of at least $335.1 million on consolidated basis and

requires the Company and its subsidiaries in North America to maintain balance of cash and cash

equivalents of at least $193.5 million on consolidated basis The Ad Hoc Committee Letter Agreement

provides that the failure to comply with any of its terms will cause termination of the Term Waiver prior to

May 30 2009 and certain other Defaults or Events of Default may occur

Pursuant to the Fourth Amendment and Limited Waiver to the Credit Agreement and Amendment to

Security Agreement the ABL Waiver the Going-Concern Default is waived until May 30 2009 and the

Company is required to complete certain collateral disclosure and perfection matters within certain periods

following effectiveness or the ABL Waiver may be terminated at the discretion of the Administrative Agent

The ABL Waiver also makes several amendments to the ABL Credit Agreement including

Increasing the interest rate applicable to borrowing and commitment fees payable thereunder

Eliminating the availability of swingline loans and overadvances

Restricting future borrowings or the issuance of any new letters of credit if such borrowing or letter of

credit would cause the amount of the Companys cash and cash equivalents in the U.S to exceed

$100 million excluding amounts held in certain designated collateral accounts

Requiring the Company to maintain cash and cash equivalents in certain designated deposit or

securities account in amount that at least equals the amount borrowed plus letters of credit issued under

the ABL Credit Agreement and

Ensuring that only certain amount of cash and cash equivalents are held in accounts that are not

subject to control agreements securing outstanding amounts under the ABL Credit Agreement

Pursuant to the Conditional Waiver the Securitization Waiver to the Securitization Agreement the

Going-Concern Default is waived until June 29 2009 The Securitization Waiver also makes several

amendments to the Securitization Agreement including

Decreasing the variable funding facility limit to $200 million

Increasing the borrowing rates and commitment fees payable thereunder

Increasing certain reserves

Requiring notification to customers by Visteon of the sales of certain receivables and re-direction of

customer payments to special purpose segregated accounts

Increasing the frequency of borrowing base and other reporting and settlement periods

Giving the agent discretion to access receivables collections and

Requiring further amendments from May 31 2009 that would require customers whose receivable have

been sold under the program to make payment thereon directly to the lenders
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2009 Incentive Plan Awards

On March 27 2009 the Organization and Compensation Committee the Compensation Committee of

the Board of Directors of the Company approved the performance criteria and relative weighting of each

criterion that will be used to determine awards to eligible employees pursuant to the annual incentive

program for the 2009 fiscal year the 2009 Annual Incentive and the long-term incentive program for the

2009-2011 performance period the 2009-2011 Long-Term Incentive each in accordance with the terms

of the 2004 Incentive Plan

Pursuant to the 2009 Annual Incentive certain executives are eligible to receive cash bonus to be

payable in 2010 based on the Companys financial performance relative to target free cash flow metric

cash from operations minus capital expenditures subject to certain adjustments and target product

quality metric defects per million as measured by the Companys OEM customers 75% of each eligible

employees award will be based on the free cash flow metric with target free cash flow of negative

$89 million and 25% will be based on the product quality metric with target of 20 defective parts per

million The following table sets forth the 2009 Annual Incentive opportunity for the principal executive and

financial officers as well as those current executive officers of the Company that were the named

executive officers in the Companys 2008 proxy statement the Named Executives

Target
2008 Annual

Incentive Award as

Percentage
of

Name and Position Base Salary1

Donald Stebbins

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer 115%

William Quigley III

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 65%

John Donofrio

Senior Vice President and General Counsel 60%

Payments will be based on the base salary of the recipient as of December 31 2009 Final payments

may be adjusted based on the recipients individual performance with respect to individual objectives

with maximum payout of 200% of the award opportunity

Pursuant to the 2009-2011 Long-Term Incentive executives are eligible to receive cash bonus to be

payable in 2012 based on the achievement of three successive annual performance metrics The final

bonus amount payable following the conclusion of the three-year performance period is based upon the

number of annual metrics achieved with the achievement of each annual metric representing one-third of

the total target award For the first year of the 2009-2011 Long-Term Incentive the opportunity will be

based on the Companys financial performance relative to target free cash flow metric cash from

operations minus capital expenditures subject to certain adjustments and target EBITDAR metric

earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization subject to certain adjustments 50% of

each eligible employees award will be based on the free cash flow metric with target free cash flow of

negative $89 million for 2009 and 50% will be based on the EBITDAR metric with target EBITDAR of

$85 million for 2009 The Compensation Committee has the discretion to modify or adjust the metrics to

take into account the disposition of businesses and/or facilities currency fluctuations and other factors

Except under certain circumstances such as retirement or involuntary termination an executive must be

employed in good standing with the Companyat the conclusion of the three-year performance period to be

entitled to bonus payment
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The following table sets forth the total 2009-2011 Long-Term Incentive opportunity for the Named

Executives

Target
2009-2011

Long-Term
Incentive Award
as Percentage

Name and Position of Base Salary1

Donald Stebbins

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer 375%

William Quigley Ill

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 250%

John Donofrio

Senior Vice President and General Counsel 150%

Cash payments will be based on the base salary of the recipient as of December31 of the fiscal year

preceding payment

2007-2009 Long-Term Incentive Performance Cash Metrics for 2009

In early 2007 the Compensation Committee awarded performance cash opportunities under the

2007-2009 Long-Term Incentive program which are payable in 2010 Half of this bonus opportunity is

based on the achievement of three successive annual Restructuring metrics with the other half based on

the achievement of three successive annual Grow the Business metrics The final bonus amount payable

following the conclusion of the three-year performance period is based upon the number of annual metrics

achieved with the achievement of each annual metric representing one-third of the total target award On

March 27 2009 the Compensation Committee approved metrics for the third year of this program

Namely the Restructuring metric will be based on the accomplishment of reduction in total administrative

and engineering staff costs in 2009 of at least 21 .9% compared to 2008 and the Grow the Business metric

will be based on achieving incremental consolidated and unconsolidated new business wins and gross

re-wins of at least $1 billion in 2009 The Compensation Committee has the discretion to modify or adjust

the metrics to take into account the disposition of businesses and/or facilities currency fluctuations and

other factors Except under certain circumstances such as retirement or involuntary termination an

executive must be employed in good standing with the Company at the conclusion of the three-year

performance period to be entitled to bonus payment

2008-2010 Long- Term Incentive Performance Cash Metrics for 2009

In early 2008 the Compensation Committee awarded performance cash opportunities under the

2008-2010 Long-Term Incentive program which are payable in 2011 The final bonus amount payable

following the conclusion of the three-year performance period is based upon the number of annual metrics

achieved with the achievement of each annual metric representing one-third of the total target award On

March 27 2009 the Compensation Committee approved the metric for the second year of this program

Namely the Companymust achieve reduction in total administrative and engineering staff costs in 2009

of at least 21.9% compared to 2008 The Compensation Committee has the discretion to modify or adjust

the metrics to take into account the disposition of businesses and/or facilities currency fluctuations and

other factors Except under certain circumstances such as retirement or involuntary termination an

executive must be employed in good standing with the Company at the conclusion of the three-year

performance period to be entitled to bonus payment
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except as set forth herein the information required by Item 10 regarding its directors is incorporated by

reference from the information under the captions Item Election of Directors Corporate

Governance Committees and Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in its

2009 Proxy Statement The information required by Item 10 regarding its executive officers appears

as Item 4A under Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The Company has adopted code of ethics as such phase is defined in tern 406 of Regulation S-K that

applies to all directors officers and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries including the

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and

the Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer The code entitled Ethics and Integrity Policy is available

on the Companys website at www.visteon.com

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference from the information under Item 9B under

Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and under the captions Compensation Committee Report

Executive Compensation and Director Compensation in its 2009 Proxy Statement

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except as set forth herein the information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference from the

information under the caption Stock Ownership in its 2009 Proxy Statement

The following table summarizes information as of December 31 2008 relating to its equity compensation

plans pursuant to which grants of stock options stock aooreciation rghts stock rights restricted stock

restricted stock units and other rights to acquire shares its common stock may be made from time to

time

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available for

to be Issued Upon Weighte--Average Future Issuance Under

Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation
Outstanding Outstanding Plans excluding

Options Warrants Options Warrants securities reflected in

Plan Category and Rights a1 and Rightsb columna c2

Equity compensation plans approved

by security holders 15543519 $8.77 5232914

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders

Total 15543519 $8.77 5232914

Excludes 1180693 unvested shares of restricted common stock issued pursuant to the Visteon Corporation 2004 Incentive Plan

and the Visteon Corporation Employees Equity Incentive Plan Aso cxc udes stock arociaton rights and restricted stock units

issued pursuantto the Visteon Corporation 2004 Incentive Pla ano Erioyees Equir ncent Plan that bytheirterms mayonly

be settled in cash

Excludes an inoefinite number of deferred stock units tna may be awarded unde fne aon Corporation Non-Employee

Director Stock Plan which units may be settled in casr or shares ot the Companys comnnn stock Such Plan provides for an

annual automat grant of stock units worth $70000 to each non-employee director te Company There is no maximum

number of securdles that may be issued under this Plan however the Plan wW terr-as on May 12 2014 unless earlier

terminated by tne Board of Directors This Plan was approved by stockholders on May 10 2006
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ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions

Corporate Governance Director Independence and Transactions with Related Persons in its 2009

Proxy Statement

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference from the information under the captions

Audit Fees and Audit Committee Pre-Approval Process and Policies in its 2009 Proxy Statement

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Financial Statements

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II Item hereof

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule Condensed Financial Information of the Parent Company

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other financial statement schedules are omitted because they are not required or applicable under

instructions contained in Regulation S-X or because the information called for is shown in the financial

statements and notes thereto

Exhibits

The exhibits listed on the Exhibit Index on pages 144 150 are filed with this Annual Report on

Form 10-K or incorporated by reference as set forth therein
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Net sales 984

Cost of sales 1353

Other expenses 682

Equity in net income of consolidated subsidiaries and non-consolidated

affiliates
_______

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes

Benefit for income taxes ______

Net loss 681
_____

See accompanying notes to condensed financial information of the parent company

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

$1249 $1316

1661 1746

872 828

368

683

826

458

86

372

1021

237

74

163
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents 646 1173

Due from consolidated subsidiaries 5916 4391

Accounts receivable net 112 137

Inventories net 24 45

Equity in net assets of subsidiaries and affiliates 8544 8406

Property and equipment net 204 280

Other assets 39 77

Total assets $15485 $14509

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS DEFICIT

Debt including debt in default 2464 2516
Due to consolidated subsidiaries 13035 11086

Other liabilities 873 997

Shareholders deficit Preferred stock par value $1.00 50 million shares

authorized none outstanding

Common stock par value $1.00 500 million shares authorized 131 million

shares issued 131 million and 130 million shares outstanding

respectively 131 131

Stock warrants 127 127

Additional paid in capital 3407 3406

Accumulated other comprehensive income and other 152 262

Accumulated deficit 4704 4016
Total shareholders deficit 887 90
Total liabilities and shareholders deficit $15485 $14509

See accompanying notes to condensed financial information of the parent company

139



VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in Millions

Net cash used by provided from operating activities 398 376 383

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures 45 66 27
Other including proceeds from asset disposals 22

Cash used by investing activities 23 65 28
Financing Activities

Other short-term debt net 347

Proceeds from issuance of other debt net of issuance costs 260 496 1329

Repurchase of unsecured debt securities 337 141

Principal payments on other debt 358

Other including book overdrafts 22 14

Net cash used by provided from financing activities 106 475 484

Net increase in cash and equivalents 527 786 73

Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 1173 387 314

Cash and equivalents at end of year 646 $1173 387

Supplemental cash flow information

Cash dividends received from consolidated subsidiaries 353 14

Cash dividends received from non-consolidated affiliates

See accompanying notes to condensed financial information of the parent company
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Note Basis of Presentation

The accompanying condensed financial statements include the accounts of Visteon Corporation the

Parent Company and on an equity basis its subsidiaries and affiliates These financial statements

should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes

thereto of Visteon Corporation and Subsidiaries the Company

Basis of Presentation

The Companys financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States GAAP consistently applied and on going concern basis

which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business

Pursuant to affirmative covenants contained in the agreements associated with the Companys senior

secured facilities and European Securitization the Facilities the Company is required to provide audited

annual financial statements within prescribed period of time after the end of each fiscal year without

going concern audit report or like qualification or exception On March 31 2009 the Companys

independent registered public accounting firm included an explanatory paragraph in its audit report on

the Companys 2008 consolidated financial statements indicating substantial doubt about the Companys

ability to continue as going concern The receipt of such an explanatory statement constitutes default

under the Facilities On March 31 2009 the Company entered into amendments and waivers the

Waivers with the lenders under the Facilities which provide for waivers of such defaults for limited

periods of time as more fully discussed in Item 9B Other Information of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The Company is exploring various strategic and financing alternatives and has retained legal and financial

advisors to assist in this regard The Company has commenced discussions with lenders under the

Facilities including an ad hoc committee of lenders under its senior secured term loan the Ad Hoc

Committee regarding the restructuring of the Companys capital structure Additionally the Company
has commenced discussions with certain of its major customers to address its liquidity and capital

requirements Any such restructuring may affect the terms of the Facilities other debt and common stock

and may be affected through negotiated modifications to the related agreements or through other forms of

restructurings including under court supervision pursuant to voluntary bankruptcy filing under

Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code There can be no assurance that an agreement regarding

any such restructuring will be obtained on acceptable terms with the necessary parties or at all If an

acceptable agreement is not obtained an event of default under the Facilities would occur as of the

expiration of the Waivers excluding any extensions thereof and the lenders would have the right to

accelerate the obligations thereunder Acceleration of the Companys obligations under the Facilities

would constitute an event of default under the senior unsecured notes and would likely result in the

acceleration of these obligations as well In any such event the Company may be required to seek

protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code

The aforementioned resulted in the current classification of substantially all of the Companys long-term

debt as current liabilities in the Companys consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2008

Visteons ability to continue operating as going concern is among other things dependent on the

success of discussions with the lenders under the Facilities including the Ad Hoc Committee The

Companys financial statements do not include any adjustments related to assets or liabilities that may be

necessary should the Company not be able to continue as going concern

Reclassifications Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year

presentation
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Other Liabilities Pension liabilities and other postretirement employee benefits of $280 and $144

respectively for 2008 and $106 and $151 respectively for 2007 are included in Other liabilities

Note Debt

Pursuant to affirmative covenants under the Facilities the Company is required to provide audited annual

financial statements within prescribed period of time after the end of each fiscal year without going
concern audit report or like qualification or exception On March 31 2009 the Companys independent

registered public accounting firm included an explanatory paragraph in its audit report on the Companys
2008 consolidated financial statements indicating substantial doubt about the Companys ability to

continue as going concern The receipt of such an explanatory statement constitutes default under

the Facilities On March 31 2009 the Company entered into Waivers with the lenders under the Facilities

which provide for waivers of such defaults for limited periods of time as more fully discussed in Item 9B

Other Information of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

These events have resulted in the classification of substantially all long-term debt as current liability in

accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 78 Classification

of Obligations that are Callable by the Creditor and FASB Emerging Issues Task Force No Issue

No 86-30 Classification of Obligations When Violation Is Waived by the Creditor

Parent Company short and long-term debt consisted of the following

Weighted

Average
Interest Rate Book Value

Maturity 2008 2007 2008 2007

Dollars in Millions

Short-term debt

Debt in default

Current portion of long-term debt _____ _____

Total short-term debt

Long-term debt

8.25% notes due August 12010

Term loan due June 13 2013

Term loan due December 13 2013

7.00% notes due March 10 2014

12.25% notes due December 31 2016

Other
_____ _____

Total long-term debt _____ _____

Total debt _____ _____

Aggregate annual maturities of debt including capital lease obligations at December 31 2008 were as

follows in millions 2009 $2459 million 2010 $3 million 2011 $1 million 2012 $1 million

7.5% $2455

7.6% 7.6%

2459

2010

2013

2013

2014

2016

201 0-2012

8.4%

8.5%

8.6%

7.7%

553

1000

500

449

7.6% 7.6%

2510

$2464 $2516
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY

Note Subsequent Event

On March 31 2009 Visteon UK Limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales and

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company the UK Debtor filed for administration the UK
Administration under the United Kingdom Insolvency Act of 1986 with the High Court of Justice

Chancery division in London England The UK Administration does not include the Company or any

of the Companys other subsidiaries The UK Administration was initiated in response to continuing

operating losses of the UK Debtor and mounting labor costs and their related demand on the Companys
cash flows Under the UK Administration the UK Debtor will likely be run down The UK Debtor has

operations in Enfield UK Basildon UK and Belfast UK and recorded sales of $250 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 The UK Debtor had total assets of $153 million as of December 31 2008
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VISTEON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at Benefits Balance

Beginning Charges to at End
of Year Income Deductionsa Otherb of Year

Dollars in Millions

Year Ended December 31 2008

Allowance for doubtful accounts 18 18 37

Valuation allowance for deferred

taxes 2102 316 339 2079

Year Ended December 31 2007

Allowance for doubtful accounts 44 19 18

Valuation allowance for deferred

taxes 2103 160 161 2102

Year Ended December 31 2006

Allowance for doubtful accounts 77 $20 17 44

Valuation allowance for deferred

taxes 1961 178 36 2103

Deductions represent uncollectible accounts charged off

Valuation allowance for deferred taxes

Represents adjustments recorded through other comprehensive income exchange and includes other adjustments such as

adjustments related to the Companys U.S residual tax liability on assumed repatriation of foreign earnings various tax return

true-up adjustments and adjustments related to deferred tax attributes adjusted for uncertain tax positions carrying full

valuation allowance all of which impact deferred taxes and the related valuation allowances In 2008 other also includes the

transfer of certain U.K tax attributes carrying full valuation allowance to Linamar Corporation in connection with the Swansea

Divestiture in the third quarter of 2008

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Other represents reduction of allowance amounts upon entering into the European securitization agreement in 2006 as those

receivables were recorded at fair value The European securitization amendment in October 2008 whereby the Transferor was

consolidated in accordance with the requirements of FIN 46R resulted an increase of the allowance for doubtful accounts

144



EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Name

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Visteon Corporation Visteon is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon

dated May 22 2007

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Visteon as in effect on the date hereof is incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated May 22 2007

4.1 Amended and Restated Indenture dated as of March 102004 between Visteon and J.P Morgan

Trust Company as Trustee

4.2 Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 10 2004 between Visteon and J.P Morgan
Trust Company as Trustee

4.3 Form of Common Stock Certificate of Visteon is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1

to Amendment No to the Registration Statement on Form 10 of Visteon dated May 19 2000

4.4 Warrant to purchase 25 million shares of common stock of Visteon dated as of May 17 2007 is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon

dated May 18 2007

4.5 Form of Stockholder Agreement dated as of October 2005 between Visteon and Ford Motor

Company Ford is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K of Visteon dated September 16 2005

4.6 Letter Agreement dated as of May 17 2007 among Visteon LB Group Inc and Ford Motor

Company is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of

Visteon dated May 18 2007

4.7 Term sheet dated July 31 2000 establishing the terms of Visteons 8.25% Notes due August

2010 and 7.00% Notes due March 10 2014 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to

the Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 of Visteon dated April 30 2008

4.8 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 18 2008 between Visteon the guarantors

party thereto and The Bank of New York Trust Company N.A as Trustee including form of

Note is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of

Visteon dated June 24 2008

10.1 Master Transfer Agreement dated as of March 30 2000 between Visteon and Ford is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-i

of Visteon dated June 2000 File No 333-38388

10.2 Master Separation Agreement dated as of June 2000 between Visteon and Ford is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Amendment No to the Registration

Statement on Form S-i of Visteon dated June 2000 File No 333-38388

10.3 Amended and Restated Employee Transition Agreement dated as of April 2000 as amended

and restated as of December 19 2003 between Visteon and Ford

10.3.1 Amendment NumberTwo effective as of October 12005 to Amended and Restated Employee

Transition Agreement dated as of April 2000 and restated as of December 19 2003 between

Visteon and Ford is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005

10.4 Tax Sharing Agreement dated as of June 2000 between Visteon and Ford is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registration Statement on Form S-i of Visteon dated

June 2000 File No 333-38388

10.5 Visteon Corporation 2004 Incentive Plan as amended through March 12 2009

10.5.1 Form of Terms and Conditions of Nonqualified Stock Options is incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.5.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 of Visteon dated November 2007

10.5.2 Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Grants is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.5.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 of Visteon dated May 2007

10.5.3 Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Units is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.5.3 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 of Visteon dated May 2007
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit Name

10.5.4 Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Appreciation Rights is incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.5.4 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Visteon dated May 2007
10.5.5 Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Appreciation Rights stock or cash settled is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5.6 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 of

Visteon dated April 30 2008
10.5.6 Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Units stock or cash settled is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5.7 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 of Visteon dated

April 30 2008
10.6 Form of Amended and Restated Three Year Executive Officer Change in Control Agreement is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q of Visteon

dated October 30 2008
10.6.1 Schedule identifying substantially identical agreements to Revised Change in Control

Agreement constituting Exhibit 10.6 and Amendment to Revised Change of Control

Agreement constituting Exhibit 10.6.1 hereto entered into by Visteon with Messrs Johnston

Stebbins Donofrio and Quigley and Ms Stephenson is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.6.2 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Visteon for the period ended December31
2007

10.7 Visteon Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors as amended
effective June 12 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q of Visteon dated July 30 2008

10.7.1 Amendments to the Visteon Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee
Directors dated as of March 27 2009

10.8 Visteon Corporation Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors

10.8.1 Amendments to the Visteon Corporation Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors

effective as of January 2005 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15.1 to the

Annual Report on Form 10-K of Visteon for the period ended December31 2005
10.8.2 Amendment to the Visteon Corporation Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors

effective as of May 10 2006 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current

iReport on Form 8-K of Visteon dated May 12 2006
10.9 Visteon Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and restated effective

January 2009

10.10 Employment Agreement dated as of December 2004 between Visteon and William

Quigley Ill is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Annual Report on

Form 10-K of Visteon for the period ended December 31 2005

10.11 Visteon Corporation Pension Parity Plan as amended and restated effective January 2009
10.12 Visteon Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as amended and restated

effective January 2009

10.13 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effective as of March 2007 between

Visteon and Michael Johnston is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the

Annual Report on Form 10-K of Visteon for the period ended December 31 2006
10.14 Visteon Corporation Executive Separation Allowance Plan as amended and restated effective

January 2009

10.15 Trust Agreement dated as of February 2003 between Visteon and The Northern

Trust Company establishing grantor trust for purposes of paying amounts to certain

directors and executive officers under the plans constituting Exhibits 10.6 10.6.1 10.7

10.7.1 10.9 10.9.1 10.11 10.11.1 10.12 10.12.1 10.12.2 10.14 and 10.14.1 hereto is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 of

Visteon dated April 30 2008
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Number Exhibit Name

10.16 Credit Agreement dated as of August 14 2006 among Visteon certain subsidiaries of Visteon

the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time party thereto Bank

of America NA Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation New York and Wachovia Capital

Finance Corporation Central as co-documentation agents Citicorp USA Inc as

syndication agent and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of

Visteon dated November 2006

10.16.1 First Amendment to Credit Agreement and Consent dated as of November 27 2006 to the

Credit Agreement dated as of August 14 2006 among Visteon certain subsidiaries of Visteon

the several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time party thereto Bank

of America NA Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation New York and Wachovia Capital

Finance Corporation Central as co-documentation agents Citicorp USA Inc as

syndication agent and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of

Visteon dated December 2006

10.16.2 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement and Consent dated as of April 10 2007 to the Credit

Agreement dated as of August 14 2006 among Visteon certain subsidiaries of Visteon the

several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time party thereto Bank of

America NA Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation New York and Wachovia Capital Finance

Corporation Central as co-documentation agents Citicorp USA Inc as syndication agent
and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated April 16 2007

10.16.3 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of March 12 2008 to the Credit Agreement

dated as of August14 2006 among Visteon certain subsidiaries of Visteon the severarbanks

and other financial institutions or entities from time to time party thereto Bank of America NA
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation New York and Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation

Central as co-documentation agents Citicorp USA Inc as syndication agent and JPMorgan
Chase Bank N.A as administrative agent is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.16.3 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Visteon dated April 30 2008

10.17 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of April 10 2007 among Visteon the

several banks and other financial institutions or entities from time to time party thereto Credit

Suisse Securities USA LLC and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation as co-documentation

agents Citicorp USA Inc as syndication agent and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as

administrative agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated April 16 2007

10.18 Hourly Employee Conversion Agreement dated as of December 22 2003 between Visteon and

Ford

10.19 Letter Agreement effective as of May 23 2005 between Visteon and Mr Donald Stebbins is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon

dated May 23 2005

10.20 Visteon Corporation Non-Employee Director Stock Unit Plan as amended effective June 12

2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q

of Visteon dated July 30 2008

10.20.1 Amendments to the Visteon Corporation Non-Employee Director Stock Unit Plan dated as of

March 27 2009

10.21 Change in Control Agreement as amended and restated as of October 2008 between Mr

GohI and Visteon

10.22 Visteon Executive Severance Plan as amended and restated as December 15 2008

10.23 Form of Executive Retiree Health Care Agreement is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.28 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated December 2004
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10.23.1 Schedule identifying substantially identical agreements to Executive Retiree Health Care

Agreement constituting Exhibit 10.23 hereto entered into by Visteon with Messrs Johnston

and Stebbins and Ms Stephenson is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25.1 to

the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Visteon for the period ended December 31 2007
10.24 Contribution Agreement dated as of September 12 2005 between Visteon and VHF Holdings

Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of

Visteon dated September 16 2005

10.25 Visteon Transaction Agreement dated as of September 12 2005 between Visteon and Ford

is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon

dated September 16 2005

10.26 Visteon Purchase Agreement dated as of September 12 2005 between Visteon and Ford is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon

dated September 16 2005

10.27 Escrow Agreement dated as of October 2005 among Visteon Ford and Deutsche Bank

Trust Company Americas as escrow agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11

to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005

10.27.1 Amendment dated as of August 14 2008 to the Escrow Agreement dated as of October

2005 among Ford Visteon and Deutsche Bank Trust CompanyAmericas is incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated August 20 2008

10.28 Amended and Rested Reimbursement Agreement dated as of August 14 2008 between

Visteon and Ford is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K of Visteon dated August 20 2008

10.29 Master Services Agreement dated as of September 30 2005 between Visteon and Automotive

Components Holdings LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005

10.29.1 Third Amendment dated as of August 14 2008 to the Master Services Agreement dated as of

September 30 2005 as amended between Visteon and Automotive Components Holdings

LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of

Visteon dated August 20 2008

10.30 Visteon Hourly Employee Lease Agreement effective as of October 2005 between Visteon

and Automotive Components Holdings LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2

to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005

10.30.1 Amendment No dated as of November 16 2006 to Visteon Hourly Employee Lease

Agreement effective as of October 2005 between Visteon and Automotive Components

Holdings LLC

10.30.2 Letter Agreement dated as of February 20 2008 to Visteon Hourly Employee Lease

Agreement effective as of October 2005 between Visteon and Automotive Components

Holdings LLC

10.31 Visteon Hourly Employee Conversion Agreement dated effective as of October 2005
between Visteon and Ford is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005

10.32 Visteon Salaried Employee Lease Agreement effective as of October 2005 between Visteon

and Automotive Components Holdings LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3

to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005

10.32.1 Amendment to Salaried Employee Lease Agreement and Payment Acceleration Agreement
dated as of March 30 2006 among Visteon Ford Motor Company and Automotive Components

Holdings LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.46.1 to the Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q of Visteon dated May 10 2006
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10.32.2 Amendment dated as of August 14 2008 to the Visteon Salaried Employee Lease Agreement
dated as of October 2005 as amended between Visteon and Automotive Components

Holdings LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K of Visteon dated August 20 2008

10.33 Visteon Salaried Employee Lease Agreement Rawsonville/Sterling dated as of October

2005 between Visteon and Ford is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the

Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005

10.34 Visteon Salaried Employee Transition Agreement dated effective as of October 2005

between Visteon and Ford is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the

Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005

10.34.1 Amendment Number One to Visteon Salaried Employee Transition Agreement effective as of

March 2006 between Visteon and Ford is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.36.1

to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 of Visteon dated August 2006

10.34.2 Amendment Number Two to Visteon Salaried Employee Transition Agreement effective as of

January 2008 between Visteon and Ford

10.35 Purchase and Supply Agreement dated as of September 30 2005 between Visteon as seller

and Automotive Components Holdings LLC as buyer is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005.t

10.36 Purchase and Supply Agreement dated as of September 30 2005 between Automotive

Components Holdings LLC as seller and Visteon as buyer is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005.t

10.37 Purchase and Supply Agreement dated as of October 2005 between Visteon as seller and

Ford as buyer is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005.t

10.38 Intellectual Property Contribution Agreement dated as of September 30 2005 among Visteon

Visteon Global Technologies Inc Automotive Components Holdings Inc and Automotive

Components Holdings LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Current

Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005

10.38.1 Amendment to Intellectual Property Contribution Agreement dated as of December 112006

among Visteon Visteon Global Technologies Inc Automotive Components Holdings Inc and

Automotive Components Holdings LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.40.1 to

the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Visteon for the period ended December 31 2006

10.38.2 Fourth Amendment dated as of August 14 2008 to the Intellectual Property Contribution

Agreement dated as of October 2005 as amended among Visteon Visteon Global

Technologies Inc Automotive Components Holdings LLC and Automotive Components

Holdings Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on

Form 8-K of Visteon dated August 20 2008

10.39 Software License and Contribution Agreement dated as of September 30 2005 among

Visteon Visteon Global Technologies Inc and Automotive Components Holdings Inc is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of

Visteon dated October 2005

10.40 Intellectual Property License Agreement dated as of October 2005 among Visteon Visteon

Global Technologies Inc and Ford is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the

Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated October 2005

10.41 Master Agreement dated as of September 12 2005 between Visteon and Ford is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated

September 16 2005
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10.42 Form of Master Receivables Purchase Servicing Agreement dated as of August 14 2006 and

as amended and restated as of October 29 2008 by and among Visteon UK Limited Visteon

Deutschland GmbH Visteon Sistemas Interiores Espana S.L.U Cadiz Electronica S.A.U
Visteon Portuguesa Limited VC Receivables Financing Corporation Limited Visteon

Electronics Corporation Visteon Financial Centre P.L.C The Law Debenture

Trust Corporation RL.C Citibank N.A Citibank International Plc Citicorp USA Inc and

Visteon

10.43 Variable Funding Agreement dated as of August 14 2006 by and among Visteon UK Limited

Visteon Financial Centre RL.C The Law Debenture Trust Corporation P.L.C Citibank

International PLC and certain financial institutions listed therein is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 of Visteon dated November
2006

10.44 Form Subordinated VLN Facility Agreement dated as of August 14 2006 and as amended and

restated as of October 29 2008 by and among Visteon Netherlands Finance B.V Visteon

Financial Centre P.L.C The Law Debenture Trust Corporation RL.C and Citibank International

PLC

10.45 Form of Master Definitions and Framework Deed dated as of August 14 2006 and as amended
and restated as of October 29 2008 by and among Visteon Visteon Netherlands Finance B.V
Visteon UK Limited Visteon Deutschland GmbH Visteon Systemes Interieurs S.A.S Visteon

Ardennes Industries S.A.S Visteon Sistemas Interiores Espana S.L.U Cadiz Electronica

S.A.U Visteon Portuguesa Limited VC Receivables Financing Corporation Limited Visteon

Electronics Corporation Visteon Financial Centre P.L.C The Law Debenture Trust Corporation

P.L.C Citibank N.A Citibank International PLC Citicorp USA Inc Wilmington Trust SP
Services Dublin Limited and certain financial institutions and other entities listed therein

10.46 Share Purchase Agreement dated as of July 2008 among Visteon UK Limited Linamar UK

Holdings Inc and Visteon Swansea Limited is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

the Current Report on Form 8-K of Visteon dated July 11 2008

10.47 Limited Waiver dated as of March 31 2009 among Visteon JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A and

certain lenders party thereto

10.48 Letter agreement dated as of March 31 2009 among Visteon and certain members of an ad

hoc steering committee of lenders

10.49 Fourth Amendment and Limited Waiver to Credit Agreement and Amendment to Security

Agreement dated as of March 31 2009 among Visteon certain of its subsidiaries certain

lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A

10.50 Visteon Securitisation Programme Conditional Waiver dated as of March 30 2009 among
Citibank International Plc Citicorp USA Inc Visteon Financial Centre P.L.C The Law
Debenture Trust Corporation P.L.C France Titrisation BNP Paribas Securities Services

certain lenders party thereto Visteon Visteon Netherlands Finance B.V Visteon Electronics

Corporation Visteon Deutschland GmbH Visteon Systemes Interieurs S.A.S Visteon

Ardennes Industries S.A.S Visteon Sistemas Interiores Espana S.L.U Cadiz Electronica

S.A.U Visteon Portuguesa Limited and VC Receivables Financing Corporation Limited

12.1 Statement re Computation of Ratios

14.1 Visteon Corporation Ethics and Integrity Policy code of business conduct and ethics is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 of Visteon

dated July 30 2008

21.1 Subsidiaries of Visteon

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

24.1 Powers of Attorney relating to execution of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

31.1 Rule 13a-14a Certification of Chief Executive Officer dated March 31 2009

31.2 Rule 13a-14a Certification of Chief Financial Officer dated March 31 2009
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32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer dated March 31 2009

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer dated March 31 2009

Portions of these exhibits have been redacted pursuant to confidential treatment requests filed with the Secretary of the Securities

and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended The redacted

material was filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission

Indicates that exhibit is management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

In lieu of filing certain instruments with respect to long-term debt of the kind described in Item 601 b4 of

Regulation S-K Visteon agrees to furnish copy of such instruments to the Securities and Exchange
Commission upon request
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Visteon Corporation

has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

VISTEON CORPORATION

By Is DONALD STEBBINS

Donald Stebbins

Date March 31 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been signed below

on March 31 2009 by the following persons on behalf of Visteon Corporation and in the capacities

indicated

Signature Title

Is DONALD STEBBINS Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

Donald Stebbins Principal Executive Officer

Is WILLIAM QUIGLEY III Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

William Quigley III
Principal Financial Officer

Is MICHAEL WIDGREN Vice President Corporate Controller and Chief

Michael Widgren Accounting Officer Principal Accounting Officer

Is WILLIAM GRAY 111 Director

William Gray III

Is STEVEN HAMP Director

Steven Hamp

/5/ PATRICIA HIGGINS Director

Patricia Higgins

Is KARL KRAPEK Director

Karl Krapek

Is ALEX MANDL Director

Alex Mandl

Is CHARLES SCHAFFER Director

Charles Schaffer

Is RICHARD TAGGART Director

Richard Taggart

Is JAMES THORNTON Director

James Thornton

Is KENNETH WooDRow Director

Kenneth Woodrow

By /s WILLIAM QUIGLEY III

William Quigley III

Attorney-in-Fact
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Directors Executive Leadership
As of 4/6j09 As of 4/6/09

Donald Stebbins Donald Stebbins

Chairrran and Chairman and

Oh ef Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer

William Gray ill William Quigley Ill

Chairroan Executive Vice President and

Amani Group Chief Financial Officer

Steven Hamp John Donofrio

Principre Senior Vice President and

Hemp Advisors LLC General Counsel

Patricia Higgins Robert Pallash

Forme President arid CEO Senior Vice President and President

Switch and Dabs Global Customer Group

Karl Kropek Dorothy Stephenson
Former President and COO Senior Vice President

Linted Technologies Corporation Human Resources

Alex Mandl Asaf Farashuddin

NorroExecutive Chairman Vice President

Gemafo NV Corporate Strategy

Chares Sohaffer Julie Fream

Former COO Vice President

un ted Parcel Service mc North America Customer Group and

Global Communications

Riohord Tagoart

Former Executive VVe President arid CFO Joy Greenway

Weyerhaeuser Company
Vice President and President

Climate Product Group

James Thornton

Former Senior Executive Vice President
Steve Meszaros

MBNA America Bank N.A
Vice President and President

Electronics Product Group

10 Kenneth Woodrow
Formei \/ice Chairman

James Smsfek

Target Corporation
Vice President and

Chief Information Officer

Miohael Widgren
Vice President

Corporate Controller and

Chief Accounting Officer




